HARINGEY COUNCIL
r

NOTICE OF MEETING

The Executive

TUESDAY, 22ND NOVEMBER, 2005 at 19:00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD
GREEN, N22 8LE.

MEMBERS: Councillors Adje (Chair), Canver, Diakides, Hillman, Lister (Vice-Chair),
Meehan, Milner, Reith, Sulaiman and Wynne

AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

(if any)
2. URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. (Late
items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will be
dealt with at item 17 below).

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority
at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the
interest becomes apparent.

A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the
member's judgement of the public interest.

4. MINUTES



10.

To confirm and sign the minutes of the meeting of the Executive held on 1 November
2005.

DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/QUESTIONS
To consider any requests received in accordance with Standing Orders.

MATTERS IF ANY REFERRED TO THE EXECUTIVE FOR CONSIDERATION BY
THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Scrutiny Review of Estate Parking

Head of Member Services to report, for information, that the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee at their meeting on 24 October 2005 considered the Scrutiny Review
having been endorsed, the Director of Housing should be asked to produce a
proposed response for consideration by the Executive in accordance with the
requirements of the Constitution.

FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE - SEPTEMBER 2005 (JOINT REPORT OF THE
INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE - AGENDA ITEM
7) (PAGES 1 - 20)

(Joint Report of the Chief Executive and the Director of Finance - to be introduced by
the Executive Member for Finance): To set out an exception report on the finance and
performance monitoring for September 2005.

PRELIMINARY ANALYSIS OF RESULTS AT THE END OF KEY STAGES 1 -4 AND
POST 16 RESULTS FOR 2004/5 (REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE
CHILDREN'S SERVICE - AGENDA ITEM 8): (PAGES 21 - 92)

(Report of the Director of the Children's Service - To be introduced b the Executive
Member for Children and Young People): To provide a detailed analysis of results
achieved at Key Stages 1-4 and post 16 in the 2004/5 academic year.

CHANGES TO TENANCY AGREEMENT (REPORT OF DIRECTOR OF HOUSING -
AGENDA ITEM 9): (PAGES 93 - 108)

(Report of Director of Housing - To be introduced by the Executive Member for
Housing): To summarise the results of consultation on demoted tenancies and
identify photographs and to outline the further stages in the review of the Council’s
tenancy agreement.

UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - ANNUAL MONITORING REPORT (REPORT OF
THE DIRECTOR OF DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES - AGENDA
ITEM 10): (PAGES 109 - 118)

(Report of the Director of Director of Environmental Services - To be introduced by
the Executive Member for Environment and Conservation): To approve the Annual
Monitoring Report for submission to the Government Office for London.



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

FINSBURY PARK CPZ EXTENSION - STATUTORY CONSULTATION (REPORT OF
THE DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES - AGENDA ITEM 12): (PAGES
119 - 148)

(Report of the Director of Environmental Services - To be introduced by the Executive
Member for Environment and Conservation): To report the feed back of the Statutory
Consultation for the extension of the Finsbury Park CPZ.

DEFRA CONSULTATION - RESPONSE TO THE PROPOSALS TO CHANGE THE
LEVY DEFAULT (REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES
- AGENDA ITEM 11): (PAGES 149 - 176)

(Report of the Director of Environmental Services - To be introduced by the Executive
Member for Environment and Conservation):To report that payment for the disposal
of household waste is to move from the current levy based on Band C equivalent
property to an actual tonnage basis.

STREETSCAPE MANUAL (REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENTAL
SERVICES - AGENDA ITEM 13): (PAGES 177 - 194)

(Report of the Director of Environmental Services - To be introduced by the Executive
Member for Environment and Conservation):To seek approval for the introduction of
the Street Scene Streetscape Manual.

MINUTES OF SUB-BODIES (AGENDA ITEM 15) (PAGES 195 - 216)

Procurement Committee — 11 October 2005

Transforming Tottenham Advisory Committee — 13 October 2005

Children’s Services Advisory Committee — 17 October 2005

Building Schools for the Future Strategic Management Board — 19 October
2005

e) Race Equality Joint Consultative Committee — 20 October 2005

f) Procurement Committee — 25 October 2005

2208

URGENT ACTIONS TAKEN IN CONSULTATION WITH THE LEADER OR
EXECUTIVE MEMBERS (REPORT OF THE INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE -
AGENDA ITEM 14): (PAGES 217 - 220)

(Report of the Chief Executive): To inform the Executive of urgent actions taken by
Directors in consultation with the Leader or Executive Members.

MATTERS RAISED BY MEMBERS OF THE EXECUTIVE
NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

To consider any items admitted at item 2 above.



Yuniea Semambo

Head of Member Services
5" Floor

River Park House

225 High Road

Wood Green

London N22 8HQ

Richard Burbidge

Principal Support Manager

Tel: 020-8489 2923

Fax: 020-8881 5218

Email: Richard.burbige@haringey.gov.uk



Page 1 Agenda ltem 7

Agenda ltem

Executive On 22 November 2005

Report title: Finance & Performance — September 2005

Report of: The Chief Executive and Director of Finance

Ward(s) affected: All Report for: Key Decision

1. Purpose

1.1 To set out an exception report on the finance and performance monitoring for
September 2005.

2. Introduction by Executive Member for Finance (Clir Richard Milner)

2.1 The table at 10.1 shows the overall revenue position for each of the services and
indicates the emerging pressures for September 2005, amounting to a variation of
around £2.3m (around 0.7% of the total revenue budget).

2.2  While this remains a manageable position within an appropriate tolerance zone, we
must look to reduce any variation against plan. | have identified the key sources for
the variance below and have sought to identify the remedial actions in place.

2.3 As reported last month, Social Services is working to resolve the significant financial
pressures in the adults and older peoples services which may require further
discussions with our partners in the NHS. Environment Services the parking income
target remains behind plan but with encouraging signs of progress in September
against the run of the previous months. Non-Revenue Services continue to carry its
underperformance on the procurement savings targets.

2.4  Additionally, the HRA continues to show cost pressures in repairs for reasons
outlined in last month’s report. Options have been agreed by members on how the
budget pressures can be contained within the available resources without significant
impact on service performance and are expected to reduce the net overall
overspend to £500k

2.5 With regard to the capital position, pressures on the BSF programme, Tech Refresh
and CCTV implementation are driving the projected variance of £0.6m and we
continue to work to resolve these and will update members on progress in the next
monthly report.

10of 12



Page 2

2.6 Members have also requested that this report picks out the highlights of council
performance and | have some of these at 8.6.5 onward.

Introduction by Executive Member for Organisational Development and Performance
(Clir Takki Sulaiman)

2.7 Haringey is striving to improve its performance for the benefit of the people of the
borough. This report shows continuing good progress against many challenging
targets set by ourselves and the government. There are also areas where we must
try harder and this report sets out some of the measures being taken.

3. Recommendations
3.1 To note the report.

To agree virements set out in section 11.

Report authorised by: Max Caller — Interim Chief Executive

Contact officers: John Hardy — Chief Accountant
Telephone 020 8489 3726

Margaret Gallagher — Performance Manager
Telephone 020 8489 2553

4. Executive Summary

4.1 This report sets out the routine financial and performance monitoring for September
2005.

5. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if applicable)

5.1 None

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report:
Budget management papers

Service Pl returns

20f12




7.

7.1

7.2

7.3

8.

8.1

8.1

8.1

8.1

Page 3

Background

This is the regular finance and performance monitoring report for September
2005. 1t is based on the financial monitoring reports prepared for the budget
management meetings held on 21 October 2005 for period 6 and the service
submission of the basket of performance indicators that we are using for 2005/06.

For 2005/6 the indicators contained within the Appendix 1 for the traffic light
report include key threshold indicators used in the Council’'s Comprehensive
Performance Assessment (CPA) and those included in Haringey’s Local Public
Service Agreement (LPSA) as well as some key local indicators for the Council.

Performance data is shown in full in Appendix 1. Progress is tracked on the
monthly and year to date position against the target using a traffic light annotation
where:

green = target achieved / performance better than planned

amber = just below target

red = target not achieved / below expectation
In addition, trend arrows depict progress since the last financial year, so whilst an
indicator may receive a red traffic light for not achieving target, it would show an
upward trend arrow if performance had improved on the previous year’s outturn.

Between them, the lights and arrows indicate current progress and predict the
likely annual position.

Service Positions

Children

.1 The overall revenue position shows a marginal projected overspend of £0.1m.

Within this overall position there are a number of over-spending budgets
where action is required to resolve the on-going position.

.2 The looked after children commissioning budget remains an area of concern.

The number of children looked after is 407 compared to the budget figure of
390, although a lower unit cost results in a projected underspend of £154k.
The budget for additional young people over 18, however, shows a projected
overspend of £346k due to significantly higher unit costs. The overall projected
overspend is therefore £192k. The commissioning strategy for future years
assumes that net savings will be delivered and this remains key to the
Council’s overall financial strategy.

.3 The asylum position remains as previously reported, that is a gross shortfall of
£3.4m to be covered by a contingency and assumed special case grant claims
for 2004/5 and 2005/6. The position remains a serious concern for the financial
strategy and the Leader has written to the relevant Home Office Minister.

4 The £0.8m shortfall in respect of BSF costs remains an issue and action is
required to contain this within Children’s Service resources.

3of12



8.1.5
8.1.6

8.1.7

8.1.9

8.2

8.2.1

8.2.2

8.2.3

8.2.4

8.2.5

Page 4

Performance highlights for Children’s services are as follows.

Performance on both parts of the indicator on issuing statements of special
educational needs is on target. Where exceptions under the Code of Practice
are included 49 out of 58 statements were issued within the 18-week timescale
in the year to August. For part a, which excludes exceptions, all xx statements
issued in the year to September were in time.

Care leavers engaged in employment, education and training at the age of 19
is an LPSA measure. Our target for 2005/06 is that 65% of these young people
are in employment, education or training. Excellent progress has been made in
this area with all the children who turned 19 in September in education,
training or employment on their 19" birthday. Performance in the year to date
at 74% is exceeding the LPSA target of 65% for 2005/06.

All reviews of children on the register due so far were completed. (BV162).
Excellent performance has been sustained in this area.

There have been 6 adoptions in the year to September '05. The target for
2005/06 is 20 adoptions.

Social Services

As reported last month it is recognised that there are significant financial
pressures within Adults and Older People’s services that will need to be
managed carefully.

In Adults there are increased costs in physical disabilities where there is
growth in the number of clients receiving a service (294 to 346) where revised
NHS criteria means that less people qualify for NHS funding. The projected
overspend in Older People is mainly as a result of a higher number of weeks
being commissioned above the commissioning strategy assumptions.

The net projected overspend is currently £0.6m.

Further work will be done to identify ways of containing this cost. This
underlying pressure is a risk to the existing financial strategy. The position for
future years will require careful review in the budget process, particularly in the
light of efficiency savings required by government in the supporting people
programme.

The performance appendix reports the latest performance figures on some key
indicators in Adults and Older People's services. This shows that:

3073 out of 3795 (81%) items of equipment have been delivered in 7 working
days in the year to September with an excellent performance of 93% in the
month of September. Performance now exceeds the 80% target.

There have been 2 new supported admissions to residential / nursing care in

September. The indicator is calculated per 10,000 population aged over 65

and equates to a value of 51.4 for the year, placing us inside the Department

of Health “Good” performance banding range. Our LPSA target to be in the

banding of between 70 and 100 admissions per 10,000 population. However in

order to promote independence, the objective of the Community Care Strategy
40of 12



8.2.6

8.3
8.3.1

8.3.2

8.3.3

8.3.4

Page 5

has been to reduce supported admissions and current performance is very
close to the target set for 2005/06.

Our performance on clients receiving a statement of need remains on the 95%
target. Recent work to identify all clients requiring a statement of need has led
to this improvement in performance.

18.2% of carers for Adults and Older People have received a carer's break or
specific carer's service in the last year. This compares with a target of 25% set
for the year.

Some areas where we need to improve our performance in Adults and Older
People’s services are:

Adults and older clients receiving a review as a percentage of those receiving
a service.

64% of clients received a review against a target of 75% (BV55). Although the
new Framework i report is capturing the data more accurately and the figures
show improvement, performance is still well below the target.

Acceptable waiting times for assessment- new older clients aged 65+

This indicator is the average of the percentage of clients where time from first
contact to beginning of assessment is less than 48 hours and the percentage
where time from first contact to completion of assessment is less than or equal
to 4 weeks. Performance on this key threshold indicator at 65% although
improved from the August position is still below the 70% target.

Housing

As reported last month, there is potentially a further improvement on the
homelessness general fund budget of around £2m in addition to the approved
budget changes already implemented. This is a financial consequence of the
successful programme of private sector lease procurement and movement of
families from short-term bed and breakfast accommodation and the increasing
total numbers of these in the current year.

As reported last month, in the HRA there are pressures on repairs spending
mainly due to an increase in demand and therefore increases in the volume of
general repairs delivered by the HHBS service. The potential overspend could
be in the region of £2m. Options have been prepared on how the budget
pressures can be contained within the overall resources available without any
significant impact on service performance and these were considered at a
Member working group and will now be implemented. These actions will
reduce the net overall overspend in 2005/06 to £500k.

Performance issues in Housing are as follows:
Homelessness Assessments

In September '05, decisions on homelessness applications were issued in 33
days for 98.9% of cases, exceeding the 92% target.

50f 12



8.3.5

8.3.6

8.3.7

8.3.8

8.3.9

Page 6

BV183a and BV183b measure the average length of stay in weeks that a
household at the point of permanent rehousing have spent in bed and
breakfast or hostel accommodation, respectively. The indicators only measure
households with children or pregnant women, who have spent time in
accommodation where facilities are shared with other people.

Since 2004, we no longer place any such households in shared facility
accommodation for long periods. The definition for this indicator has recently
been amended to exclude tenant's historical stays in bed & breakfast prior to
April 2004. This was the date from which the Homelessness (Suitability of
Accommodation) England order 2003 took effect.

The average length of stay in bed & breakfast accommodation, under this new
definition is expected to fall dramatically from last year’s outturn. The reports
to calculate this are currently being finalised.

The average length of stay in hostels, in September '05 increased to 153
weeks well above the 40 week target. The year to date position is 59 weeks.

Average Re-let Times

The average re-let time of local authority dwellings increased to 31 days in
September, outside both the local target of 29 days and our LPSA target of 25
days. There were high levels of staff shortage within the lettings team in
September compromising the outputs of this indicator. The year to date
position is 32.7 days.

Rent Collection

8.3.10 Rent collected to the end of September (BV 66a) dipped and is projected at

96.7% of rent due for the year, against a target of 97.8%.

8.3.11 The percentage of tenants with more than seven weeks rent arrears at 13% is

also above our target of 8%.

Repairs

8.3.12 An appointment was made and kept for 97% of responsive repair jobs in

8.4

8.4.1

September which although falls short of the 99% target is within the London
top quartile. Reports from Optitime will not now be available until February '06
therefore a manual validation exercise will be undertaken as current figures
calculated using customer care cards are unreliable.

Environment Services

A shortfall of £400k was reported last month against the parking income target
for 2005/06 based on income performance for the first 5 months. The shortfall
is still projected at this level this month. However, there are encouraging signs
that the position may improve as income for September held up well and
exceeded the monthly target. The position is being kept under close review
and further actions are being investigated in order to recover the projected

6 of 12



8.4.2

8.4.3

8.4.4

8.4.5

8.4.6

8.4.7

8.4.8

8.4.9

8.4.10

8.4.11

8.4.12

Page 7

shortfall. The income recovery rate for parking charges is now at 57%, which
meets the target.

A number of other budget pressures have also been identified by Business
Units but the Directorate is committed to managing these within it's approved
cash limit for the year.

There is a projected underspend on capital of £650k due to slippage on the
CCTV project.

Performance highlights in Environment are:

Household waste recycled or composted in September '05 passed 20% with
total tonnage reaching an all time high. This exceeds the 18% target for the
fifth month running.

Waste Minimisation- Performance in September and the year to date remains
within the London top quartile although still above the target. New
minimisation schemes are planned.

Waste collections missed per 100,000 reduced further to 116 in September
'05, inside the LPSA target of 130 for the second month this year. This has
been achieved through a combination of contract monitoring, practical on-
street remedial measures. If this level of performance is sustained, we should
hit our LPSA target.

98.2% of Zone 1 streets were of an acceptable standard of cleanliness in
September against a 95% target. Performance continues to be above the
target and it is expected that this level of achievement should be sustained.

44 out of 58 minor planning applications (76%) were determined in 8 weeks in
September falling slightly short of our 78% target although still beating the
government target. In addition all but one of the twenty one major applications
processed in the year so far were determined within 13 weeks.

Parks Cleanliness index improved to 83.5 in September beating the target of
80 for 2005/06. The year to date figure at 79 is just short of the target.

Incidents of dumped rubbish reported to the Call Centre have reduced this
year and are below our target placing the Council in a strong position to meet
its LPSA target.

The average number of days to repair streetlights at 1.5 days for the year is
well below the target of 3.5 days. However the average length of time to repair
faults relating to power supply handled by our District Network Operator
(DNO)- currently EDF was 29.7 days in September and 24.5 days in the year
to date against a target of 10 days. This continues to be dissapointing but the
performance of DNOs is an issue across London and OFGEM are reviewing
all DNOs across the UK because performance has been an on-going problem
for many years.

70of 12



8.5
8.5.1

8.5.2

8.5.3

8.5.4

8.6
8.6.1

8.6.2

Page 8

Finance

As reported last month, the continuing drive to improve performance in
Benefits and Local Taxation in the context of an on-going recruitment
programme has resulted in a significant level of agency staff. Additional costs
are projected with a best case scenario of £0.2m and a worst case of £0.6m.
After carrying out a review of all budget areas within Finance it is now
expected that this additional cost can be contained within the overall budget of
the department.

Council Tax and Business Rates

93.3% of Council tax due was collected in the year to September '05 just
short of the 93.5% target set for 2005/06. Performance has remained steady
over the last three months with an improvement over the same period last
year. Enforcement processes have been reviewed and to ensure that the
annual target is reached the service is concentrating on improving the
collation of key information from customers after a liability order has been
obtained.

99.3% of business rates due were collected in September, exceeding the
99% target level. The position in the year to date is 98.9%. The collection rate
will continue to be closely monitored to ensure the annual target is achieved.

Invoice payments

88.7% of invoices were paid in 30 days in September and 89.4% in the year
to date, close to the 90% target for 2005/06. Three way matching is generally
working well for those purchasing groups (particularly as experience is
gained) that have so far been moved to this process - with more being added
every week.

Chief Executive's

As reported last month, a budget pressure identified to date is that Local Land
Charges income is projected to be below target. The projected shortfall has
increased from £133k to £158k since last month in light of reduced activity in
the housing market and further losses of business to private sector personal
search agencies. Measures to reduce the impact of this are currently being
pursued.

As reported last month, there is also a budget pressure that has been identified
in respect of Broadwater Farm Community Centre. An options appraisal is
being undertaken regarding use of the building. A budget is being drawn up to
run the centre effectively in the short term — this will be in excess of the
previous grant payment budget and could be as much as £250k. Work is being
undertaken to minimise this figure. Proposals are also being developed around
the use of the centre in the longer term that could include accessing
regeneration grants. This issue has been included in the business planning
process.

8 of 12



8.6.3

8.6.4

Page 9

Other budgets within Chief Executives Service are being reviewed such that
the overspends can be contained in overall terms. In particular there may be
some flexibility in Strategy arising from vacancies in the first half of this year.

As reported last month, on capital there is potential slippage and subsequently
additional costs on the Tech Refresh project. The roll-out of PC replacement is
now well underway and while good progress is being made some niggles are
being experienced which have been highlighted in the risk monitoring process.
An overspend of £0.5m is currently projected.

Performance highlights are:

8.6.5

8.6.6

8.6.7

8.6.8

8.6.9

9.

9.1

Public Complaints

In the year to September 781 or 80% of complaints at stage 1 (local resolution)
were dealt with within the 15 working day timescale against a target of 80%.
For the more complex service investigation stage, 15 out of 23 (65%)
complaints were resolved within timescale in September and 71% in the year
to date, both below the 80% target.

The use of the CRM system, implemented in May 2005, to log Freedom of
Information (FOI) requests is still bedding in. Data cleansing was recently
carried out on the CRM system and as a result performance data has been
amended with a year to date position of 64% against a target of 90%. However
September's performance with 77% of replies in timescale was an
improvement on previous months.

Sickness

The average number of working days lost to sickness per full time equivalent
employee in September '05 increased to 8.2 days per annum but the year to
date position, including late reported sickness, of 8.7 days is only just below
the target of 8.8 days.

Access Services

68% of callers to Customer Service Centres were seen within 15 minutes in
September. The year to date position is also 68% falling just short of the 70%
target set for 2005/6.

There have been 1,103,818 visits to our libraries in the year to September '05,
the equivalent of 9.8 visits per head of population in a year. The target for
2005/06 is 9 visits per head.

Performance Summary
In summary the traffic lights for the year to date position as at September '05
show that for 76% of indicators, performance is on target or close to the end of

year target. In addition 81% of indicators have maintained or improved
performance since the end of last year.

9of 12



10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

Page 10

Summary - Budget Monitoring

The aggregate revenue projected position in 2005/6 is as shown in the following
table. The variation shown under non-service revenue relates to the likely non-
achievement of part of the budgeted savings in relation to the Programme
Board and specifically the Procurement savings. There is a target of £1 million
in respect of Procurement savings in 2005/06 and to date only £200k from the
renewal of the Insurance contract is likely.

General Fund revenue | Approved | Projected
Budget | variation
£m £m

Children 202.1 0.1
Social Services 51.7 0.6
Housing (0.2) 0
Environment 48.9 0.4
Finance 12.9 0
Chief Executive 19.0 0.4
Non-service revenue 11.5 0.8
Total 345.9 2.3

As reported last month, in the HRA there are pressures on repairs spending
mainly due to an increase in demand and therefore increases in the volume of
general repairs delivered by the HHBS service. The potential overspend could
be in the region of £0.5m.

The aggregate capital projected position in 2005/06 is as shown in the following
table. There is a pressure on the BSF programme within Children’s Services of
the order of £0.8m. The CCTV project in Environment is projected to slip by
£0.7m. There is also potential slippage and subsequently additional costs on
the Tech Refresh project within Chief Executive’s Service.

Capital Approved | Spend to | Projected
Budget date variation
£m £m £m

Children 40.0 18.3 0.8
Social Services 4.7 0.5 0
Housing — General Fund 4.4 1.1 0
Housing — HRA 23.5 8.3 0
Environment 21.5 4.8 (0.7)
Finance 7.3 2.0 0
Chief Executive 17.4 4.3 0.5
Total 118.8 39.3 0.6

10 of 12




11.

11.1

11.4

Financial administration

Page 11

Financial regulations require proposed budget changes to be approved by
Executive. These are shown in the table below. These changes fall into one
of two categories:

) budget virements, where it is proposed that budget provision is to be
transferred between one service budget and another. Explanations are
provided where this is the case;

) Increases or decreases in budget, generally where notification has
been received in-year of a change in the level of external funding such
as grants or supplementary credit approval.

Under the Constitution, certain virements are key decisions.

are:

Key decisions

. for revenue, any virement which results in change in a directorate cash
limit of more than £250,000; and

. for capital, any virement which results in the change of a programme

area of more than £250,000.

Key decisions are highlighted by an asterisk in the table.

The following table sets out the proposed changes. Each entry in the table
refers to a detailed entry in the appendices, which show the budgets that it is
proposed to change. There are two figures shown in each line of the table
and the detailed sheets. The first amount column relates to changes in the
current year’s budgets and the second to changes in future years’ budgets
(full year). Differences between the two occur when, for example, the budget
variation required relates to an immediate but not ongoing need or where the
variation takes effect for a part of the current year but will be in effect for the
whole of future years.

Proposed virements are set out in the following table:

Period

Service

Key

Amount
current year
(£°000)

Full year
Amount
(£°000)

Description

Social
Services

Cap

154

Allocation of Mental Health SCE [R]
2005/06 grant.

Chief
Executive

*

Rev

417

DAAT funding £177k, LDA sub regional
partnership engagement programme
£240k

Chief
Executive

Rev

24

GOL Building Safer Communities
adjustment £121k(-), ODPM Beacon grant
for getting closer to communities £67k,
SRB grant for improving the public realm
in Northumberland Park £30k, NDC grant
for Black Arts in Seven Sisters £20k, SRB
grant for Northumberland Park Aspire
summer programme £23k, Youth
Offending Service adjustment £5k

Finance

Rev

22

Programme evaluations: SRB grant for
JUNP £10k and West Green £12k.

11 of 12




Page 12

Chief Rev* (755) (755)|Neighbourhoods — SRB budgets removed

Executive that were added to base in previous years
as on-going.

Chief Rev* 285 Removal/grant reduction of Laurel Health

Executive Centre NDC income.

Chief Rev 143 (45)|IRT grant no longer receivable£47k(-),

Executive Arts Council — North London sub-regional
arts partnership grant £10k, ODPM Local
enterprise growth initiative grant £100k,
LDA employment ULV framework
developing beneficiary consultancies
grant £25k, other grants £55k.

Environment |Cap* 290 TFL funding for Dukes avenue area.

Environment [Cap 138 TFL funding for Priory road bus lane
£16k, Local safety schemes £87k, W4 re-
routing £10k, Heartland regeneration
£25k.

Environment |Rev* 150 300|Parking Shop merger with Cashiers.

Education Rev* 751 New allocation of DfES Standards Fund
grant.

Chief Rev 100 100|Assumed annual spend for CRB checks.

Executive

Chief Rev* 400 Drugs Intervention programme c/f from

Executive 2004/05.

Chief Rev 223 Resettlement & aftercare provision.

Executive

Chief Rev 20 Heritage economic regeneration funded

Executive scheme at Hornsey High Street.

Chief Cap 245 Heritage economic regeneration funded

Executive schemes £220k, Conservation area
partnership scheme £25k.

Chief Cap* (1,756) UCCG profile between years amended.

Executive

Chief Cap* 3,000 Unsupported borrowing for IT refresh

Executive project.

Recommendations

12.1 To note the report.

Legal Comments

12.2 To agree the virements set out in section 11.

There are no legal implications.

14. Use of Appendices

Appendix i. September Performance summary
Appendix ii September Telephone answering performance

12 of 12




Monthly Performance Review - 2005/06

Page 13

September

APPENDIX 1

Key:
Same as last year Better than last year * Worse than last year
mPerformance missing target Performance close to target Performance on target
Monthly
Monthly YTD Target
Ref. 04/05 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Progress | Progress| 05/06 Petrfo. ::q.
Children's Services Monthly indicators
BV 43a % of statements of special educational need issued by the authority in a financial year and prepared within 18
weeks excluding those affected by “exceptions to the rule” under the SEN Code of Practice.
10 cases in Sep, 59 in April to Sep.
99% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | | | | | 100% | 99% | poaman
BV 43b % of statements of special educational need issued by the authority in a financial year and prepared within 18
weeks including those affected by “exceptions to the rule” under the SEN Code of Practice.
In April to Sep, 59 cases were done on time out of 70. In Sep,10 out of 12.
74% | 4% | 86% | 100% | 83% | 100% | sa% | | | | | | 84% | 80% | poraman
BV 49 Stability of placements of children looked after by the authority by reference to the % of children looked after on
31st March in any year with three or more placements during the year.
Al CPA Key Threshold
We remain in the top performance banding for this indicator (<13%)
14.7% | 14.79% | 14.7% | 13.2% | 10.6% | 10.4% | 11.60% | | | | | 11.6% | 13% | poanan
BV 161 Employment, education and training for care leavers: The % of those young people who were looked after on 1
April in their 17th year (aged 16), who were engaged in education, training or employment at the age of 19
A4 LPSA Indicator Target 65% based on 60-70 clients
We have made excellent progress in this area and have exceeded the target set for the year
47% | 68% | 40% | 100% | 50% | 67% | 100% | | | | | 74% | 65% | pegoman
BV 162 Reviews of child protection cases: The % of child protection cases which should have been reviewed during the
year that were reviewed
C20 |CPA Key Threshold
We have remained in the top performance banding and have maintained 100% each month this year
100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | | | | | 100% | 100% | poaman
Adoptions of children looked after: The number of looked after children adopted during the year as a % of the
BV 163 |number of children looked after at 31 March who had been looked after for 6 months or more at that date.
C23 |CPA Key Threshold
It is not possible to accurately forecast the number of adoptions at this early stage in the year, however, it is
expected that Haringey will achieve its target of around 20 adoptions for the year.
1 1 1 3 6 20
5% 0.0% | adoption | 0.0% | adoption | adoption |adoptions adoptions | adoptions | 3 per month
0.3% 0.3% 0.3% 0.9% 1.8% or 6%
L60 SSI 50: % of all children on the register (excluding those missing and registered in the last week of the month) who
were visited within the calendar month
Good performance maintained, with visits remaining over 90%. Data not available for July as report unavailable on
new client system.
92% | 94.2% | 92.3% | 95.1% | 91.5% | 95.8% | | | | | 95%
Children's act complaints - Stage 1 responded to in 14 days
Local This relates to 8 out of 12 complaints dealt with in time since April.
80% 100% 0% 50% 67%
100% 50% Maintain
1O, 1O,
39% |4 ogt of | 1 ot1Jt of [0 ot1Jt of [ 1 o;t of 14 out of 1|1 out of 2 8outof | 50% | periormance
Children's act complaints - Stage 2 responded to in 28 days
Local
None of the 7 cases since April completed on time, 5 of which were completed within 90 days. Stage 2 complaints
involve the appointment of two external specialists, an investigating officer and a dedicated person for the child or
young person. The consequence is that progress on these complaints is particularly susceptible to the availability
of people outside the Council. Once appointed the investigating officer and the independent person meet the
complainant to clarify the exact nature of the complaint and get them to sign it off. Only after the complainant has
signed do they proceed with the investigation. Following a survey of practice in other London Boroughs the
timescale for stage two complaints is now being counted from the time the complaint is signed off. It is hoped that
this will improve the performance on these timescales, though discussions with other Boroughs has revealed a
general widespread difficulty in responding to stage two complaints within the timescales.
20% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% | [ [ [ [ [ 0% 20% 40%
Executive20051122Item7FinancePerformanceSeptemberAppendices0.Risge 1 of 7 08/12/05



Page 14

Monthly
Monthly YTD Target
Ref. 04/05 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Progress | Progress| 05/06 Petrfo. :i(teq.
Environment Monthly indicators
BV 109a |% of major planning applications determined within 13 weeks (Gov't target 60%)
CPA Key Threshold
6 done on time out of 7 in Sep - 20 out of 21 in Apr-Sep
o, o, o, o, o, none. o, o, o, Maintain
78% 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% |determin| 86% 95% 77% | performance
ed
BV 109b |% of minor applications determined in 8 weeks (Gov't target 65%)
CPA Key Threshold
44 applications on time in Sep (out of 58). In April to Sep 253 out of 313. Performance beats Gov't target.
79% | 86% | 77% | 82% | 81% | 86% | 76% | | | | | 81% | 78% | petoran
BV 109c (% of other applications determined in 8 weeks (Gov't target 80%)
CPA Key Threshold
In Sep, 113 applications done on time out of 122. In Apr to Sep 635 out of 699
g6% | o2% | 91% | sow | ea% | sow% | os% | | | | | | 91% | 86% | poraman
BV 204 |% planning application appeals allowed against the authority's decision to refuse.
New for 2004/05
There were 3 appeals in September, 2 of the 3 were dismissed.
s | ss% | 21% | o% | 20% | 42% | 3% | | | | | | 27% | 30% | posaman
BV 215a |Average days to repair street lighting faults (except faults relating to power supply - see below)
New starting in 2005/06. Our District Network Operator (electricity supplier) is EDF
We have maintained the performance expected below the target figure.
Maintain
tbc | 1.86 | 1.95 | 1.54 | 1.09 | 1.54 | 1.36 | | | | | | 1.52 3.50 | performance
BV Average days to repair street lighting power supply related faults (these are handled by our District Network
215b Operator - currently EDF)
New starting in 2005/06. Our District Network Operator (electricity supplier) is EDF
This continues to be disappointing: EDF have stated that they are doing all they can, but we are constantly
chasing them for repairs to be done. The performance of DNOs is an issue across London and OFGEM is
reviewing all DNOs across the UK because performance has been an ongoing problem for many years.
toc | 10.50 | 3.00 | 20.33 | 38.30 | 18.31 | 29.69 | 24.54 | | | | | 2249 | 10 [UERM
BV 218a|% of reports of abandoned vehicles investigated within 24 hrs of notification
New starting in 2005/06
Excellent performance and the level of achievement continues to be above target.
96.8% | 99.6% | 96.2% | 92.0% | 96.3% | 93.0% 95.4% o
tbc | (393 out|(224 out|(379 out|(333 out| (336 out | (334 out (1999 out| 84% | poraman
of 406) | of 225) | of 394) [ of 362) | of 349) | of 359) of 2095)
BV 218b|% of abandoned vehicles removed within 24 hrs (from when the LA is legally entitled to remove them)
New starting in 2005/06
Excellent performance continuously exceeding the target.
81.5% | 90.0% | 94.5% | 96.4% | 94.1% | 99.2% 92.3% Maintai
tbc | (128 out| (45 out | (121 out| (107 out| (111 out | (120 out 6320ut] 84% | parman
of 157) | of 50) | of 128) | of 111) | of 118) | of 121) of 685)
BV |% of household waste which has been recycled or composted
82ai +bi | CPA Key Threshold
I he previously reported tigures for 2005/06 have been revised by NLWA and amended here. For the tirst time the
monthly recycling rate has passed 20%, with the total tonnage reaching an all time high. This was largely due to
the commingled collection being 830 tonnes (the new organic scheme having an immediate impact). The kerbside
and estates tonnage was also at its highest for this financial year and the improvements planned (particularly the
oraanic. particination and incentive schemes) should increase performance in the comina maonths.
14% 18.1% | 18.6% [19.95% | 19.2% | 19.3% | 20.5% | | | 19.27% | 18% Pe"r",i'rfﬁ:ce
BV 84a |Kg of household waste collected per head (seasonally adjusted annual equivalent) *
Amber is awarded if performance is top quartile (London 2004/05)
The figure for September is relatively high, but the target is challenging. New minimisation schemes are planned -
details will be given in coming months. Figures for whole year have been revised - see BV 82 above.
371.3 | 378.7 | 357.5 | 341.2 372.0 371.6 365.1
354.18 | (actual | (actual | (actual | (actual [ (actual | (actual (actual 345 325.0
30.5) | 32.1) | 32.3) | 30.4) | 31.2) 31.8) 188.3)
Executive20051122Item7FinancePerformanceSeptemberAppendices0.Risge 2 of 7 08/12/05




Page 15

Monthly
Monthly YTD Target
Ref. 04/05 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Progress | Progress| 05/06 Petrfo. :i(teq.
BV 99a |Number of casualties - All killed or seriously injured (KSI). Seasonally adjusted annual equivalent.
CPA Key Threshold. Data here is for calendar year 2005, shown 3 months in arrears.
May/June data is not yet available from TfL.
2004 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul | Aug | Sep | Oct [ Nov | Dec 2005
58 66 8 7 not yet | not yet Jan7-;\pr: Maintai
. . . . laintain
131 (actual: | (actual: | (actual: | (actual: available | available (actual: 145 | perormance
5) 5) 7) 6) 25)
Was [No waste collections missed per 100,000 household waste collections (from Accord)
BV 88 |LPSA Indicator
Good performance this month. For the first time this year the figure for missed collections is below the target level.
This has been achieved through a combination of contract monitoring, practical on-street remedial measures and a
more comprehensive assessment of household collections. Practical measures have now been put in place to
sustain the level of performance.
190 | 149 | 150 | 149 | 148 | 128 | 116 | | | | | | 140 130 120.1
Incidents of dumped rubbish reported to the Accord Call Centre (seasonally adjusted annual equivalent).
L LPSA Indicator
Performance continues to be above the target level.
6,142 | 5,636 | 4,799 | 4,420 | 4,311 5,169 5,023 Maintai
10,849 | (actual: | (actual: | (actual: | (actual: | (actual: | (actual: (actual: | 8,246 | poraran
474) 429) 484) 423) 426) 504) 2,740)
L 790 |Zone 1 Streets of an acceptable standard of cleanliness (Accord)
Continued high level of performance with 98.2% roads being clean to at least an acceptable standard this month.
97.7% | 98.3% | 98.5% | 99.2% | 98.8% | 99% | 98.2% | | | | | 98.7% | 95% | pegartan
Sports & Leisure usage (seasonally adjusted annual equivalent) *
L Figures seasonally adjusted to a profile supplied by Recreation.
Cumulative use is down 4.5% on target. Works have commenced at Park Road with some disruption to service
and impact on usage. Revision of annual target, taking into account performance to date, disruption during works,
and planned growth in 2006, will be completed by end of October and reported in November.
894,257 | 815,810 | 898,129 | 863,890 | 822,712 | 866,288 859,819
876,581 | (actual: | (actual: | (actual: | (actual: | (actual: | (actual: (actual: | 900,000 940,181
71,349) | 81,274) | 94,960) | 87,331) | 76,013) | 80,781) 491,708)
Parks cleanliness Index
Continuing to see an upward trend in Cleanliness Index with a 0.78 point increase bringing the overall score for the
year to 79.01.
7920 | 732 | 769 | 81.11 ] 79.46 | 79.81 [ 83.52 | [ [ [ [ [ 79.01 80 81.0
Housing Monthly indicators
£ The % of responsive (but not emergency) repairs during the year, for which the authority both made and
X kept an appointment. *
BV 185
Optitime installed in May 2005. Current performance based on customer care card returns, is unreliable and
understates actual performance. Optitime prevents any missed appointments. Reports from Optitime not now
available until TASK go live in Feb '06, therefore manual validation exercise to be undertaken.
99% |96.36%| 95.9% | 98% | 96% | 96% | 97% | | | | | | 96% | 99% |Uieriont
The average length of stay in bed and breakfast accommodation of households which include dependent
BV 183a(children or a pregnant woman and which are unintentionally homeless and in priority need. (Amended
definition applied wef Apr)
CPA Key Threshold
19.1 (0|d Maintain
definition) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4 Performance
The average length of stay (weeks) in hostel accommodation of households which include dependent
BV 183b [children or a pregnant woman and which are unintentionally homeless and in priority need.
Red Red
79.34 | 6964 | 25 | 4133 [ 7455 | 56.33 | 153.00 | [ [ [ [ [ 59.18 | 40.00 208
BV 212 |Average relet times for local authority dwellings let in the financial year (calendar days)
LHO 4 |Reintroduced for 05/06 - Ex. BV 68
September saw high levels of staff shortage within the Lettings Team - this has compromised outputs.
29
29.6 | 32.78 | 30.83 | 34.29 | 33.73 | 27.53 | 31.03 | | | | | | 32.72 LPSA 25 253
BV 66a |Local authority rent collection and arrears: proportion of rent collected w
97.6% |91.84%[96.11% ] 96.65% | 96.95% ] 97.05% | 96.71% | [ [ [ [ [ 96.71% | 97.8% | 98.9%
BV 66b |Percentage of tenants with more than seven weeks rent arrears *
New from 2005/06
Executive20051122Item7FinancePerformanceSeptemberAppendices0.Risge 3 of 7 08/12/05




Page 16

Ref.

04/05 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

9% | NA [ NA [11.8% | 12.2% | 11.89% | 13.02% | [ [ [ [ [

Monthly

Progress

YTD
Progress

Target
05/06

Monthly
Perf. Req.
to hit

13.02%

8%

was
BV 67

Decisions on homelessness applications made in 33 days

81.10%| 100% | 97.04% | 97.83% [ 94.16% | 96.67% | 98.9% | | | | |

97.9%

92%

LHO 6
(BV 73)

The average time taken to complete non-urgent responsive repairs (calendar days)

Performance has significantly improved as a result of improvements following BPR including the establishment of
area working and the introduction of Optitime

11| 919 [ 1075 [ 789 | 847 | 846 [ 812 | [ [ [ [ [

8.73

LHO 5
(BV 72)

The % of urgent repairs completed within Government time limits.

Same comments as for LHO 6 (BV 72) above

97% | 100% [ 99.7% | 98% [ 98.8% | 98% | 96.4% | [ [ [ [ [

98.3%

97%

Social Services Monthly indicators

BV 54
C32

Older people helped to live at home per 1000 population aged 65 or over

This information has been taken from a 'test' system as the report is not yet 100% accurate. The report should be
correct in time for the Executive meeting.

121.00 | 121.71 | 120.81 | 116.16 | 120.35| 121.66 | 131.00 | | | | | |

131.00

127

55
D40

Adult and older clients receiving a review as a percentage of those receiving a service

This is a joint (older people and adults) indicator. Due to the use of Framework | report, the data is more accurate
hence the improved performance.

61% | 53% | 61% | 62% | 62% | 58% | 64% | [ [ [ [ [

64%

75%

BV 56
D54

% of items of items of equipment & adaptations delivered within 7 working days

CPA Key Threshold

This equates to an increase from 77% in Quarter 1 to 86% in Quarter 2. The year to date figure of 81% is derived
from 3073 items of equipment delivered in 7 days from a total of 3795.

70% | 72% 87% 70% 73% 91% | 93% | | | | | |

93%

81%

80%

BV 58
D39

% of people receiving a statement of their needs and how they will be met.
Joint Indicator for Adults & Older People - Deleted as BVPI from 05/06

89% | 87%

88% 95% 95% 95% | 95% | | | | | |

95%

95%

BV 195

D55

Acceptable waiting time for assessment- average of () % where time from first contact to beginning of assessment
is less than 48 hours & (ii) % where time from first contact to completion of assessment is less than or equal to 4

weeks

CPA Key Threshold

This Pl is based on acceptable waiting times for assessment for new older clients (65+). This data has been
produced from a new Framework | report.

625% | 62% | 62% | 62% | 62% | 63% | 65% | [ [ [ [ [

65%

70%

BV 196

D56

Acceptable waiting time for care packages - % where the time from completion of assessment to provision of all

services in a care package is less than or equal to 4 weeks

CPA Key Threshold

This Pl is based on acceptable waiting times for care packages for new older clients (65+). This performance
places us within the top performance banding although falling short of our target. The outturn has been produced
from a new Frameworki report and although fairly accurate, further testing is being carried out.

89.9% | 89% | 88% | 88% | 88% | 89% | 84% | [ [ [ [ [

84%

91%

Paf C26

Supported admissions to residential/nursing care per 10,000 population over age 65 [annual equivalent]

CPA Key Threshold (using 2003 mid year estimate population of 21,100)

There were 2 new supported admissions during September. Our performance is still within the good DH
performance banding although our LPSA target was to remain in the top banding. In order to promote
independence, the objective of the Community Care Strategy has been to reduce supported admissions. Due to
this the number of supported admissions reduced by almost half in 2004/05.

56.10 | 97.83 | 40.28 | 58.80 | 61.10 | 60.30 | 51.40 | | | | | |

51.40

50.5

Paf C62

The number of carers for Adults & Older People receiving a carer's break or specific carer's service as a pr
of all Adult clients receiving a community based service

We now have a full year's worth of data from which to calculate PAF C62.

oportion

25.7% | 24.0% |22.43% | 22% 20.4%
24% scaled | scaled | scaled | scaled | scaled | 18.2%
up up up up up

7

18.2%

[ BTN

25%

Local

Percentage of all identified carers of older people aged 65+ receiving an assessment
LPSA
Based on 227 Assessments of Older People from 269 known carers.

NA ] 82% | 82% | 82% | 82% | 82% | 84% | [ [ [ [ [

84%

90%

PAF D43

Number of new clients (adults and older people) where time from first contact to first service is more than

Unfortunately this figure is not available within a reasonable margin of error.

6 weeks

[ DTN |

Executive20051122ltem7FinancePerformanceSeptemberAppendices0.Risge 4 of 7

2.0%

Maintain
Performance

Maintain
Perfarmance

Maintain
Parformance

Maintain
Performance

86.0%

Maintain
Performance

Maintain
Performance

75.0%

98.0%

Maintain
Performance

31.8%

96.0%

08/12/05




Page 17

Monthly
Monthly YTD Target
Ref. 04/05 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Progress | Progress| 05/06 Petrfo. :icteq.
301 280 284 272 289 296 N/A 296 125 -4600.0%
Adults and older people receiving direct payments at 31 March per 100,000 population aged 18 or over (age
BV 201 standardised)
C51 |CPA Key Threshold
Indicator value equates to 147 people in receipt of a direct payment. The decrease is due to a few deaths in the
past month. We are still on course to hit the target of 120 by March 06.
108 for Maintain
86 84.66 86 95 102 109 107 107 ;S:gts;m&z Performance
NHS & Community Care Act Complaints - Stage 1 responded to within 14 days
Local |50 out of 27 responses on time in since April
62% | 50% | 100% | 86% | 50% | 75% | 80% | [ [ [ [ [ 74% 70% | povnan
NHS & Community Care Act Complaints - Stage 2 responded to within 28 days
Local
Only response of the year sent late in August, but was completed within 90 days. Under the Act, subject to
agreement between the complainant and the investigating officer the response date can extend to 90 days. This is
the case in the current situation.
0% N/A N/A NA [ NA T 0% | NA ] [ [ [ [ [ 0% 30% 60%
Finance Monthly indicators
BV 8 The percentage of invoices for commercial goods and services that were paid by the authority within 30 days of
such invoices being received by the authority
CPA Key Threshold
Three way matching is generally working well for those purchasing groups (particularly as experience is gained)
that have so far been moved to this process - with more being added every week.
85% | 90.3% | 88.4% | 89.5% | 90.4% | 89.1% | 88.7% | [ [ [ [ [ 89.4% | 90.0% | 9o6%
BV 9 |The percentage of council taxes due for the financial year which were received in year by the authority.
CPA Key Threshold
Performance has remained steady and shows an improvement over the same period last year. The service has
worked with Customer Services to improve the enforcement processes. To ensure that the annual target is
reached there is a focus on improving the collation of key information from customers after a liability order has
been obtained.
93% | 92.8% [ 93.9% | 93.2% [ 93.2% | 93.4% | 93.3% | [ [ [ [ [ 93.3% | 93.5% | 937%
BV 10 The percentage of non-domestic rates due for the financial year which were received in year by the authority.
CPA Key Threshold
Performance in September achieved target. The collection rate will continue to be closely monitored to ensure that
the annual target is achieved.
98.6% | 98.6% | 98.9% | 99.1% | 98.8% | 98.8% | 99.3% | [ [ [ [ [ 98.9% | 99% 99.1%
Performance Indicator for average speed of processing new claims (Standard 36 days)
PM1 |Measured in days
The performance has remained above target. A revised process for submitting improved proofs with claims to
customer services and mobile claim processing are being implemented. This will reduce the number of days to
process claims and meet the annual target.
48 | 47 | 44 | a4 | a4 | 40 | 40 | | ] ] ] 43 42 410
Performance Indicator for average speed of processing change of circumstances (Standard of 9 days — subject to
review) *
PM5 |Measured in days
Performance has improved from April and remains on target.
Maintai
4 | 20 | 18 | 76| 7 | 18 | 18 | | [ | | | 18| 18| ootomane
Chief Executive's Monthly indicators
BV 12 (Working days lost due to sickness per FTE employee
CPA |FTE = full time equivalent
The YTD progress includes late reporting of sickness inevitably missing from monthly figures
0.64 0.72 0.75 0.75 0.61 0.68 4.37
Equivalent Equivalent Equivalent Equivalent Equivalent Equivalent Equivalent
Maintain
9.53 7.7 8.6 9.0 9.0 7.3 8.2 8.7 8.8 Performance
BV 117 |The number of physical visits per 1,000 population to public libraries
Deleted as BVPI from 05/06
871 829 813 814 767 821 4921
Annual Annual Annual Annual Annual Annual Annual
Equivalent Equivalent Equivalent Equivalent Equivalent Equivalent Equivalent
Maintain
9,032 | 10,448 | 9,944 | 9,754 | 9,765 | 9,205 9,850 9,842 9,000 | performance
Executive20051122Item7FinancePerformanceSeptemberAppendices0.Risge 5 of 7 08/12/05




Page 18

Monthly
Monthly YTD Target
Ref. 04/05 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Progress | Progress| 05/06 Petrfo. :i(teq.
Members Enquiries, percentage responded to within 10 working days
Local
Performance has been below target for most of the year. However, the target of 90% is a very challenging one.
MEs performance for 04-05 was 71.5%. Performance this year is therefore a significant improvement at 84.1%. It
is hoped that the roll out of the new Members' Enquiries procedure and associated training for officers will further
improve performance.
71% | 82.3%| 83.4%| 84.2%| 82.8%| 88.2%| 85.7%| [ [ [ [ [ 95.9%
Local Resolution complaints (stage 1) responded to within 15 working days
Local
781 responded to on time since April. There was a drop in performance across virtually all directorates to bring the
year to date performance very slightly below the target. The reasons for this will be investigated.
75% | 79% | 80% | 81% | 81% | 83% | 75% | [ [ [ [ [ 79.9% | 80% 80.1%
Service investigation complaints (stage 2) responded to within 25 working days
Local
81 out of 114 stage 2 complaints replied to on time April to September. 15 out of the 23 in September. Housing's
performance fell to 45% in September. This is largely responsible for the overall dip in performance. This is a
temporary downfall as they were clearing up a number of cases that had been outstanding for some time.
76% | 75% | 47% | 92% | 78% | 76% | 65% | [ [ [ [ [ 71% 80% 89.0%
Independent review (stage 3) public complaints responded to within 25 working days
LCE1
13 out of 13 in year to September.
86% | 100% | 100% | 100% | WA | 100% | 100% | | | | | 100% | 90% | poianan
Freedom of information act replies within 20 day time scale
L
Use of the CRM system, implemented in May 2005, to log FOI requests is still bedding in. Data cleansing was
recently carried out on the CRM system and as a result performance data has been amended
N/A | 51% | 62% | 69% | 65% | 53% | 77% | | | | | | 64% | 90% |
Waiting times - % personal callers to Customer Service Centres seen in 15 minutes *
L
Performance in line with target
77% | 74% | 56% | 67% | 67% | 75% | 68% | | | | | | 68% | 70% 72.2%
Switchboard- Telephone answeting in 15 seconds
I
Switchboard operatives are being trained in other areas of customers service to assist with call centre demand and
address any spare capacity
92% | 98% | 98% | 99% | 98% | 8w | 9s% | | ] | [ ] 98% | 90% | Maman
Council Wide Position- Telephone Calls answered within 15 seconds as a % of total calls
L (total includes those that reached the busy signal and unanswered calls)
Performance in line with target
67% | NA | NA | 81% | 81% | 83% | so% | | | | | | 81% | 75% |, Maman
Call Centre Totals
Calls answered in 15 Secs as % of calls presented
The proactive management of resources continues with rearranging of leave to fit in with billing schedules and
other demands form our client services, we are also flexible when client services' business needs alter with no
notice, but this more difficult to manage as effectively - September will bring performance back in line with target.
43.0% | 84.0% | 61.9% | 67.8% | 66.6% | 67.6% | 78.3% | | | | | | 71% | 70% | e
Calls answered as percentage of all calls presented
Performance in line with target
65.3% | 97.34% | 92.11% | 94.52% | 89.20% | 95.32% | 94.94% | | | | | 93.9% | 85% | peraman
Average queuing time
Min:Sec
Achieving target
01:02 | 00:13 | 00:37 | 00:29 | 00:35 | 00:24 | o00:16 | | ] ] ] 00:25 |40 Secs | ,Manan
Housing Other indicators
Local |The number of under-occupied tenancies re-housed
LPSA
Comprehensive Lettings LPSA target action plan has been produced and is in the process of implementation.
Incremental improvement expected over next quarter.
45 | 1+ | 7 1 3 [ 6 | 7 1 12 1T T T T 1T 1 36 95 10
Tenancies re-housed under the Moving out of London Scheme
DMT 10
LPSA
Comprehensive Lettings LPSA target action plan has been produced and is in the process of implementation.
Incremental improvement expected over next quarter.
23 | 1+ [ 4 | 2 ] | [ o [T T T T T 1 26 50 | 3
% of permanent social lettings which are made through the choice-based lettings processes
LHO 7 |LPSA
Red Red
61% | 27% | 51% | 22% | 33% | 43% | 43% | | | | | | 36% | 80% |“Miero™
Executive20051122Item7FinancePerformanceSeptemberAppendices0.Risge 6 of 7 08/12/05




Page 19

Monthly
Monthly YTD Target
Ref. 04/05 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Progress | Progress| 05/06 Petrfo. :icteq.
Social Services other Indicators
Local |Number of people placed in long term extra care sheltered housing places, excluding step down provision
LPSA
65 orLPsA]  Maintain
60 60 60 60 target 45 | Performance
Finance Services other indicators
BV 156 The percentage of authority buildings open to the public in which all public areas are suitable for and accessible to
disabled people
Adaptation works are in hand to meet the target of 25% by the end of this financial year
22% | | | 22% | | 229 | | ] | | | 20% | 25% |, Mamain
Percentage of new claims outstanding over 50 days (Standard 10%)
PM2
Although this is classified as a 'good’ score for CPA ratings an improvement is required. The service is identifying ways to
reduce the length of time it takes for customers to return proofs to enable the claim to be processed. Similar to new claims
(BVPI78a) mobile processing and improved information collation with customers who visit are being implemented.
| [ [ 19% | [ [ 10.8% | [ [ [ [ [ [ 14% 9% 4.0%
What is the percentage of interventions when review action commenced in the last quarter against the annual
taraet?
PM10
The target for the first quarter is 8 and 16 has been achieved. This equates to an 'excellent' score for CPA purposes and on
target to reach 100% for the year.
0, 0, 10, 10, M i it i
I | | 16% | | |ses% | [ [ [ T | | 39% | 100% | peormance
What is the percentage of visits carried out against the annual target?
PM12
The target for the first quarter is 8 and 33 has been achieved. This equates to an 'excellent' score for CPA purposes and on
target to reach 100% for the year.
o, o, o, o, Maintain
| | 33% | | 63% | | | | | | | 63% 100% | performance
BV 126 |Domestic burglaries per 1,000 households (seasonally adjusted annual equivalent)
LPSA target 27.51
Maintain
345 | 261 [ 362 | 328 | 277 | 303 | | | | | | | 303 | 31.7 | Maman
Chief Executive's Other indicators
BV 14 |Employees retiring early (excluding ill-health retirements) as a % of the total work force
Annual equivalents shown
None in first quarter, 3 in the year to date.
0.37% | | | 0.00% | | 0.12% | | | | | 0.06% | 0.20% | poaman
BV 15 |Employees retiring on grounds of ill health as a % of the total workforce
Annual equivalents shown
5 Il health retirements
0.35% | | | 0.17% | | 0.04% | | | | | 0.10% | 0.30% | poraman
BV 17a |The percentage of staff from minority ethnic communities
Maintain
40.8% | | | 41.7% | | 41.6% | ] | | 416% | 40.8% | ,Manan
BV 11a The percentage of top 5% of earners that are women
o, o, o o, o, Maintain
50% | | | 50% | | 52.4% | | | | | 52% 50% | performance
BV 11b |The percentage of top 5% of earners from ethnic minority communities
o, o, o, o, o, Maintain
24% | | | 25% | | 25% | | | | | | 25% 25% | performance
BV 11c |The percentage of top 5% of earners declaring they meet the Disability Discrimination Act disability definition
New for 2005/06
o o, o, o, Maintain
4.55% | | | 4.88% | | 4.96% | | | | | 4.9% Performance
Executive20051122Item7FinancePerformanceSeptemberAppendices0.Risge 7 of 7 08/12/05




Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 21 Agenda Item 8

Agenda item:

Executive On 22" November 2005

Report Title: Preliminary analyses of results at the end of Key Stages 1, 2, 3, 4 and
Post 16 for 2005 and data for attendance and exclusions

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable):

Report of: Director of the Children’s Service

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Information

Purpose

To inform members of the provisional results at Key Stages 1, 2, 3,4 and Post 16
for 2005, the analyses of these results and the implications for the School
Improvement Programme 2005-6.

To highlight the priorities for raising standards during this and coming years.

Introduction by Executive Member

One of the Council’s priorities is to raise educational achievement. | am pleased
that this report shows how the Children’s Service has worked with the
headteachers and teachers in schools in the borough to support children and
young people to make the progress outlined in this report. Pages 4-6 of the report
provide a good summary. Congratulations are due for the hard work of Haringey's
students and school staff and the support of the parents and carers. There is still
much to do and the report also signals the priority areas where standards need to
rise further next year.

Recommendations

To note the good progress made by Haringey’s children and young people
outlined in the attached report.

Report Authorised by:

Sharon Shoesmith
Director
The Children’s Service




Page 22

Contact Officer: Janette Karklins, Deputy Director School Standards and Inclusion

David Holmes, Deputy Director Service Delivery and Performance
Avi Becker, Head of Management Information and Research
Tel: 020 8489 5009

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Executive Summary

The results at Key Stages 1 and 2 in Haringey have been improving and tracking
the national results but the gap is not closing substantially although the
improvement at Key Stage 2 English this year has been very encouraging. At Key
Stage 3 the progress is well ahead of the national figures and the closing gap is
beginning to show the same pattern as we have seen at Key Stage 4.

At Key Stage 4 there has been a significant improvement which has led to
progress at almost four times the national rate since 2001. Haringey has improved
from 31% (2001) to 50% 5+ A* - C in 2005. The national result has increased
from 50% (2001) to 55.7% in 2005. The greatest improvement has been seen in
the schools in the east of the borough.

Progress for the major ethnic minority groups in the borough has been good.
Caribbean pupils are now the fastest improving group with 20% more achieving 5+
A*-C grades since 2002 compared with African pupils at 15% and White UK pupils
at 4%. The gap of achievement between ethnic minority groups is now closing.

Attendance in primary and secondary schools continues to improve.

Priorities for raising standards are focused on: Key Stage 2, especially schools
where fewer than 65% of pupils achieve level 4; continuing to improve the
achievement of pupils from ethnic minorities; lower achievers, especially those
with special educational needs, and higher achievers, especially those from ethnic
minority heritages.

Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if
applicable)

Not applicable

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

There are no background documents to this report
Not applicable

Background

This report presents information on the attainment of children in Haringey schools.
Members will be aware of headline information. This report gives significantly more
detailed information which lies behind those headlines.



8.

Page 23

Summary and Conclusions

Haringey’s strategy for raising attainment is very well established and has been
positively praised by successive inspections over the last five years. The major focus
has been on Key Stage 4 and the rapid improvement has been encouraging. That
focus will continue but now must include a concerted drive to improve performance at
Key Stage 2 and on continuing to drive up attainment for pupils from ethnic minority
heritages. The progress now apparent, especially for Caribbean pupils, and is very
encouraging. Clear evidence that the strategies are working.

9.1

10

10.1

11

12

12.1

Recommendations

To note the detailed analysis of the performance results set out in the report
Comments of the Director of Finance

The Director of Finance has been consulted on this report and comments that there
are no financial implications associated with the recommendations contained within
this report.

Comments of the Head of Legal Services

The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on the content of this report and
has no comments to make.

Equalities Implications

The report gives detailed information on the attainment of the different ethnic and
gender groups in Haringey. It also details the attainment of children who are
eligible for free school meals and who have English as a second language. The
Children's Service uses this and other information to target resources where they
are most needed.



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



The Children's Service

Analyses of results at the end of
Key Stages 1,2,3,4 and Post 16 for 2005
and data for attendance and exclusions

NOVEMBER 2005



Page 26

CONTENTS

Pages
Introduction 3
Summary 4-6
Summary of results 2005 7
Section1  Key Stage 1 8-10
Section2 Key Stage 2 11-20
Section3 Key Stage 3 21-25
Section 4 Key Stage 4 26 - 31
Annexes
Annex 1 Key Stage 1 test and task data 32-37
Annex 2 Key Stage 2 test data 38-48
Annex 3 Key Stage 3 test data 49 - 59
Annex 4 Key Stage 4 and Post 16 data 60 - 65

Annex 5 Attendance and exclusions 66



Page 27

Analyses of results at the end of Key Stages 1,2,3,4 for 2005
and data for attendance and exclusions

Introduction

The results overall show improving trends, in particular progress at Key Stage 4 has
improved year on year since 2001 at almost four times the national rate. The schools in
the east of the borough have been rapidly closing the gap between east and west, with
400 more 16 year olds in the east of the borough achieving 5+ A* - C grades in 2005
than was the case in 2001.

At Key Stage 2 many schools have achieved major improvements. Almost three-
quarters (72%) of schools achieved at or above the national average in English, at level
4+ and 68% of schools achieved at or above the national average in maths at level 4+.

This report provides a very detailed analyses of the results for 2005, which reflects the
breadth and depth of data available.

The detailed analyses and reporting of Haringey results is an annual publication,
prepared in the latter half of the autumn term when results can start to be compared
with national data. Readers need to be aware that at the time of writing schools are still
checking their data with the DfES. This may lead to some of the analyses and data
being modified when final results are confirmed by the DfES in February 2006.

The analyses will continue into the new year when DfES data is confirmed and a final
report will be prepared usually in February.

The annual evaluation of performance data is very important as it is used to drive future
priorities. The analysis and evaluation of the 2005 data will be used to inform and drive
the priorities in the new Children and Young People's Plan.

The report starts with a useful summary giving key points and presents the overall
results for 2005 on one page. The report continues with analyses of the results for each
key stage, by gender, ethnic minority pupils, mobility, English as an additional
language, special educational needs, free school meals, high and low attaining pupils
and Looked After Children. Where relevant the value added analysis of progress
between each key stage is compared with progress made nationally.

Haringey data includes detailed analysis of all ethnic groups. The largest African,
African Caribbean Turkish, Kurdish and White British. The attainment of all groups is
monitored in the Children's Service and information provided at school level ensures
that the progress of all pupils is monitored closely.

In this report high attaining pupils are defined as those attaining at least one level above
national expectations at the end of each Key Stage and low attaining pupils are defined
as those pupils attaining two levels below national expectations. The annexes to the
report, contain detailed tables of data which show Haringey relevant to national data
and where available statistical neighbours. The report also includes an overview of the
strategies for raising standards and the support measures that have been put in place.



Page 28

SUMMARY

The results at Key Stage 1 indicate that overall Haringey is making similar
progress to the national rate but remains below the national average.

In 2005 some apparent decline in reading, writing and mathematics at Level 3
can be accounted for by a change of assessment method. Haringey was one of
34 LAs invited in 2004 to participate in a national trial to use teacher assessment
as the main method of determining results, rather than using national tests for
seven year olds. In 2005 all LAs moved to a similar method of assessment. Our
view is that teacher assessment is more reliable for children at this age because
it assesses a wider range of achievement. However, a consequence has been a
local as well as a national downward trend at Level 3.

At Key Stage 2 the gap between the Haringey and national figures at Level 4 and
above has narrowed slightly in English (from 8% to 7%) and remained
unchanged in maths (7%) and in science (9%). The key priority is to identify and
target support for groups of pupils that are at risk of not achieving level 4 by age
11. Ensuring that more pupils achieve what is expected for eleven year olds will
provide them with a firm foundation for the next phase of their education.

Whilst the ambitious LEA targets for Key Stage 2 have not been met, many
schools have secured major improvements. For example, in English, some of
the most substantial gains were made at Alexandra, Broadwater Farm, Stroud
Green and Nightingale schools. In mathematics, some of the biggest gains were
made at South Harringay Juniors, Muswell Hill, St Mary’s RC Junior and
Earlsmead, as well as schools already mentioned for English. There has also
been a substantial reduction in the number of schools where fewer than 65% of
pupils achieve level 4+ in English and maths. In English (since 1999) the
number has reduced from 29 schools to 18, in mathematics the number has
reduced from 30 schools to 19.

Twenty six schools (49% of schools) in Haringey achieve at or above the national
average in English at level 4+ (national average is 79% Level 4+). Fourteen
schools (26%) obtain 90% and over at English level 4+.

Twenty schools (38% of schools) achieve at or above the national average in
maths at level 4+ (national average is 75% Level 4+). At Key Stage 2 seven
schools (13%) obtain 90% and over at maths level 4+. Coleridge, Rhodes
Avenue, Our Lady of Muswell, St Gildas' RC Juniors, Tetherdown, Muswell Hill
and Stroud Green obtain 50% and over at English level 5+ (national is 27%).
Sixty nine percent of pupils at Rhodes Avenue and Weston Park achieved level
5+ in maths (national is 31%). Rhodes Avenue, St James and St Aidan's
achieved 100% level 4+ in science. West Green achieved 96% and Welbourne
88% level 4+ in science.

There are still a number of schools where high proportions of pupils do not
achieve what is expected of them by the end of Key Stage 2. To some extent
this is a reflection of low attainment on entry, but some schools manage to
overcome this obstacle and we want all schools to be like this. All these lower-



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Page 29

performing schools receive an individual programme of intervention focused on
raising standards. In all cases this support is provided in line with the schools’
participation in one or more of the national and local initiatives specifically aimed
at raising standards in such schools.

The majority of pupils make the progress expected of them in English and maths
between the ages of 7 and 11. However there are a small number who do not
make the expected progress in science across Key Stage 2. Specialist
consultants continue to develop teachers’ subject knowledge and teaching
methods in these areas and promote rigorous assessment, target setting and
tracking of progress as a means to ensure that this situation is redressed. There
are a range of programmes to support and develop primary school leadership
which are also clearly focused on improving pupils’ achievements.

The attainment of most ethnic minority pupils continues to improve in English and
maths, both at Key Stage 2 with evidence of beginning to close the gap with UK
White pupils. At Key Stage 3 the progress is ahead of UK White pupils.

The difference in attainment levels between girls and boys in Haringey primary
schools generally mirrors the national picture. The attainment of all mobile pupils
continues to be well below that of other pupils across all phases of education.
Many of these pupils speak English as an additional language (EAL) and achieve
less well than their English-speaking peers in tests. However, once they become
fully fluent in English, EAL pupils attain equally to, or better than pupils speaking
English as their first language.

Pupils’ attendance in Haringey primary schools has improved by 0.22%,
representing approximately, an additional 11,000 sessions attended this year.
Attendance has also improved in secondary schools by 0.12%, representing
approximately, an additional 4,000 sessions attended. Primary attendance is
now 0.98%, secondary is now 0.81% behind the national. This improvement is
due to a range of effective school-based initiatives and the improved work of the
Education Welfare Service.

There were no permanent exclusions in primary schools during the academic
year. There were 28 permanent exclusions from secondary schools in the
2004/05 academic year (20 exclusions in 2003/04). This represents
approximately 0.25% of the secondary school population. The 2003/04 national
figure for secondary school exclusions is also 0.25%.

At Key Stage 3, Haringey’s rate of progress over the past four years has been
significantly better than the national trend. Since 2001 improvement in English
level 5+ has been 17% in Haringey (10% national), in maths the improvement
has been 14% (8% national), in science the improvement has been 10% (4%
national). The gap between Haringey overall results and the national remain
substantial, but good progress is being made.

Park View Academy and St. Thomas More schools secured significant
improvements in Key Stage 3 English. Notable improvements were made in
mathematics at Northumberland Park, John Loughborough, Greig City Academy
and Highgate Wood.



15.

16.

17

18

19

20

Page 30

Good progress has continued at GCSE with very impressive gains in the
percentage of pupils attaining 5+ A* - C grades. Since 2001 Haringey has
improved from 31% to 50% in the 5+ A* - C indicator (national improvement is
from 50% to 56%). Haringey is now only 6% behind the national figure.

The gap in performance between schools in the east and the west of Haringey is
quickly closing at Key Stage 4. Since 2001 schools in the east have improved
from 18% to 42%, schools in the west have improved from 48% to 58% in the 5+
A* - Cindicator. This has had a significant impact on improving the life chances
of many of Haringey’s young people. All schools have made very significant
progress since 2001. This year has seen Northumberland Park, John
Loughborough and Greig City Academy also making big improvements.

The attainment of most ethnic minority pupils at KS4 has improved considerably
and progress is beginning to close the gap with White UK pupils. Caribbean
pupils are the fastest improving group at Key Stage 4 with 20% more achieving
5+ A*-C grades since 2002 compared with 15% of African pupils and 4% of
White UK pupils.

Post 16 the Haringey result in the percentage of pupils obtaining A — E grades in
A level courses is in line with national results. The average point score per exam
entry is below the national. The number of final year students taking advanced
courses in Haringey schools is 321 from a potential year 11 cohort of
approximately 2,100 students. These figures reinforce the need for the new
Haringey Sixth Form Centre.

The educational attainment of Looked After Children at Key Stage 2 has
improved by 5% in English and remained the same in mathematics and science.
At Key Stage 3 results have declined slightly in English, mathematics and
science. At Key Stage 4 results stayed the same in the 5+ A* - C indicator,
declined by 3% in the 5+ A* - G indicator, and improved by 3.6% in the 1+ A* - G
indicator. National 2005 results for Looked After Children are not currently
available.

The percentage of the 16-18 cohort in Haringey who are NEET (Not in
Employment, Education or Training) is 14.3% in August 2005. This is
significantly higher than for neighbouring local authorities.



Page 31

Summary of results 2005 (2004 in brackets)

Key Stage 1

% Reading level 2+
% Writing level 2+
% Maths level 2+

% Reading level 2B+
% Writing level 2B+
% Maths level 2B+

Key Stage 2

% English level 4+
% Maths level 4+
% Science level 4+

% English level 5+
% Maths level 5+
% Science level 5+

Key Stage 3

% English level 5+
% Maths level 5+
% Science level 5+

% English level 6+
% Maths level 6+
% Science level 6+

Key Stage 4
% 5+ A*-C
%1+ A* -G

Post 16 Advanced

% A — E grades

Total average point score
Average point score per exam
entry

Haringey

79 (78)
76 (74)
87.5 (85)

66 (63)
53 (54)
68 (66)

96 (96)
186.5 (208.7)
71.9 (74.0)

National

86 (85)
82 (82)
91 (90)

96 (96)
273.7 (269.2)
79.6 (78.7)



Page 32

Section 1

Key Stage 1 (see Annex 1 for more detail)

21

22

23

24

The 2005 results are not directly comparable with previous years because the
DfES has introduced more flexible reporting arrangements using tests and tasks to
underpin an overall teacher assessed grade at the end of Key Stage 1. Haringey
participated in the 2004 trial of this new arrangement. Evidence from previous
years shows that Haringey teacher assessment is reliable and correlates well to
test results, though there may be a tendency for teachers to be more strict in
awarding a level 3 in some areas, particularly in mathematics. (see national trend
at level 3+)

Over the last five years, Haringey’s rate of progress at the end of Key Stage 1 has
been very similar to the rate nationally. At Level 2 and above (L2+) in reading, the

improvement has been better than the national rate at 4% compared to 2%
nationally. Writing has not changed, whilst the national has fallen by 4%.
Mathematics has improved by 3.5% to 87.5%, whilst national has remained at 91%

In 2005, the percentage of pupils achieving L2+ has improved by 1% to 79% in
reading, improved by 2% to 76% in writing and improved by 2.5% to 87.5% in
mathematics The percentage achieving L3 decreased from 23% to 22% in reading,
from 14% to 13% in writing and from 23% to 18% in mathematics (this substantial
reduction is also reflected in the national trend).

Nationally at L2+ there has been a 1% improvement in reading, no change in
writing and a 1% improvement in mathematics. At L3+, nationally there has been
a 2% fall in reading, a 1% fall in writing and a 5% fall in mathematics.

KS1 reading trend KS1writing frend
86 88 86 86
88 85
g6 | 84 84 T/‘/O 86
84 + & & 84 81 82 82
82
] 78 78 79 82
80 76 80 77
784 75 8 76 75 76
;2 : 76 ./.\.\7.4/.
74
e 72
68 70
68 v v v v
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
=——t— National =—#— Haringe e N @t O NG| el Haring ey




Page 33

92

90

88

86

84

82

80

KS1 maths frend

91 91
90 90 90
87 87.5
85 85

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

e N3t iO NG| el Haring ey

Gender

25

At Key Stage 1, girls outperform boys in reading by 11% at L2+ and 6% L3+
(national 8% and 10% respectively). In writing by 13% at L2+ and 6% at L3+
(national 11% and 10%). The results in mathematics are closer; girls outperform
boys by 3% at L2+, boys outperform girls by 4% at L3+. These differences are
similar to national results.

Ethnic Minority Pupils

26

At Key Stage 1, there continues to be a substantial difference in attainment
between White British pupils and pupils from the other large ethnic groups. This
is particularly significant at the higher levels of achievement. Thirty seven
percent of White UK pupils attain L3+ in reading compared to 21% African
Caribbean, 15% African, 6% Turkish and 24% White Other pupils. In writing, the
comparative L3+ figures are: 20% White UK, 11% African Caribbean, 8%
African, 2% Turkish and 18% White Other. Mathematics L3+ figures are 28%
White UK, 15% African Caribbean, 10% African, Turkish 8% and 25% White
Other.

Mobility

27

2164 (77%) of KS1 pupils were at their school for more than 2 years prior to
taking KS1. 643 (23%) were at their school for less than 2 years. There is a
15% to 20% difference in the percentage of pupils attaining L2+ and 2B+ in
reading, writing and mathematics between pupils who have been at their school
for more than two years compared to pupils with less than two years. Traveller,
Congolese, Somali, Kosovan, Kurdish and Turkish pupils continue to be some of
the most mobile at Key Stage 1.

English as an Additional Language (EAL)

28

At the end of Key Stage 1, 477 pupils (18% of cohort) at EAL Stage 3 and above
continue to attain higher standards in reading, writing and mathematics than
pupils without EAL.



Page 34

Special Educational Needs (SEN)

29  There were 701 pupils at the end of Key Stage 1 who had special educational
needs (25% of cohort). 61 pupils had statements of special educational needs,
twelve of these pupils were attending special schools. Most statemented pupils
follow the national curriculum and where necessary are assessed using P scales.
(P scales are a series of descriptors that operate below level 1). Many schools are
now using P scales but there is currently not enough information to use them
comparatively.

Eligibility for free school meals

30 There were 1733 pupils eligible for free school meals, 1022 not eligible. 53% of
eligible pupils and 75% of not eligible obtained Reading level 2B+. The figures
for level 3 are 10% and 30% respectively. Writing and mathematics have similar
differences.

High Attaining Pupils

31 At Key Stage 1 there has been a reduction in the percentage of high attaining
pupils (pupils attaining L3+). In reading the figure fell by 1% to 22% (nationally a
2% fall to 27%), in writing a 1% decrease to 13% (nationally a 1% fall to15%),
and in mathematics a 5% decrease to 18% (nationally a 5% fall to 23%).

Low attaining pupils

32 At Key Stage 1 there continues to be a slight reduction in the percentage of low
attaining pupils. In reading the percentage of pupils who attained a W (working
towards level 1) fell from 5.3% to 5.1% (nationally the 2005 figure is 3%).
Writing fell from 7.3% to 6.8% (5% nationally) and mathematics fell from 4.3% to
3.4% (2% nationally).

Looked After Children

33  There has been an overall reduction of the percentage of pupils achieving L2+ in
reading (50% to 47%) and writing (50% to 41%) and improvement in
mathematics ( 61% to 65%) Haringey results for Looked After Children are 7%
below the 2004 national in reading and writing and 1% above in mathematics.
The number of Looked After Children in 2005 was 17. This means that each
child is approximately 6% of the cohort and that changes in the attainment of a
few children can have a significant effect on the percentage variation year on
year.

10



Page 35

Section 2

Key Stage 2 (see Annex 2 for more detail)

34

Overall, Haringey’s rate of progress since 2002 at Key Stage 2 has been roughly in
line with the national trend. At level 4 and above (L4+), English has improved by
5% in Haringey compared to national improvement of 4%. Mathematics in
Haringey has improved by 1% compared to a 2% gain nationally. In science the
Haringey result has dropped by 1% whilst the national result has not changed.

90 90

50

Haringey KS2 English trends Haringey KS2 Maths trends

78 79
75 75

70 A_/Q

72 70
& — o ——+—*
66 67 68

2002 2003 2004 2005 50

T T
provisional 2002 2003 2004 2005_ )

—&— Haringey all —#— National —4— Haringey —ji— National

35

36

Haringey KS2 Science trends

87
86 86 86

— 5 5 =

0

78 78
77 77

70 T T T
2002 2003 2004 2005 provisional

Haringey all National

In 2005 in English, the percentage achieving L4+ has improved from 70% to 72%.
In mathematics the improvement is from 67% to 68%. In science, results
remained the same at 77%. The percentage of pupils achieving L5+ in English
and mathematics has decreased by 1% to 24% and 25% respectively. The result
in science has increased by 2% to 38%. Targets for the end of Key Stage 2 have
not been met.

Nationally, in 2005, at L4+ there has been an increase of 1% in English and

mathematics and no change in science. At L5+ the English result is 27%, the
mathematics result is 31% and the science result is 47%.

11



37

38

39

40

Page 36

A continuing concern is lack of progress in science at Key Stage 2. To some extent
this remains a consequence of schools concentrating on English and mathematics.
The LA has developed a science strategy, which has been in place for a little over
a year, and the science consultant is targeting those schools where there is a
significant gap between the science results and those in English and mathematics.
We are also pursuing links with King's College in terms of specialist teaching input
for schools.

Although Haringey is following the national trend, our rate of overall improvement
still needs to increase in order for us to close the gap on national results. To
address this issue the LA will work closely with schools to ensure they have
appropriate pupil tracking systems and procedures in place, that pupils’ progress is
monitored regularly and teacher’s plans for learning are in place to meet the needs
of all pupils.

There remains a significant gap between the results in the east and west of the
borough.

In English Key Stage 2 Level 4 and above, for example, the difference in 2002
between east and west was 23%, in 2005 the gap is 21%. The gap in maths
remains at 18%.

Gender

41

Haringey's results mirror the national picture with girls outperforming boys in
English at L4+ by 8% and at L5+ by 10% (national difference is 10% at L4+ and
12% at L5+). This is reversed in maths with boys outperforming girls at L4+ by 2%
and at L5+ by 5% (national picture is 1% at L4+ and 5% at L5+). In science, boys
outperform the girls at L4+ by 2% (against a national picture of girls outperforming
boys by 1% and at L5+ by 1% (nationally boys outperform girls by 2%).

Looked after Children

42

At KS2 results have improved (since 2004) by 5% for English and remained the
same for maths and science. All results are above the national 2004 figures for
Looked After Children. The number of Looked After Children at KS2 in 2005 is
21. This means that each child is approximately 5% of the cohort.

60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

KS2 results for Looked After Children
(21 children in 2005)

57 % 57% N 57% 57% 57%
——DH27 537%  53%

43%  43%
37% 40%

29%

National KS2 Haringey KS2  National KS2 Haringey KS2 National KS2 Haringey KS2
English English Maths Maths Science Science

0 2003 O 2004 @ 2005

12



Page 37

Ethnic Minority Pupils

43

In English at L4+, African, African-Caribbean and Turkish pupils’ attainment has
improved since 2004 by 4%, 4% and 2% respectively compared to a 7% rise for
UK White pupils. The achievements of Kurdish pupils remained the same. These
improvements build on the gains made in 2004. The differences between boys and
girls attainment in most of the ethnic groups are not significantly different to
national differences — when the size of the cohort is taken into account. For
African Caribbean, African, Kurdish, Turkish and White UK pupils, the differences
are 14%, 8%, 6%, 11% and 11% in favour of girls.

KS2 English Level 4+

86%

90%

T 79%

X

o o
X N
> S 2 N
© o N~ N~

IS N ©

N aQ >

© © ]

2R
[s2] o [s2]
< < <

20% ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘
African African Kurdish Turkish White UK Haringey
Caribbean

@ 2002 O 2003 m 2004 O0 2005

13



Page 38

44 In mathematics at L4+, African, African-Caribbean, Turkish and Kurdish pupils’
attainment has improved by 3%, 2%, 8% and 1% respectively compared to a 4%
rise for UK White pupils. The differences between boys and girls attainment for
African Caribbean pupils is 4%, White UK 2% in favour of girls, Kurdish, African
and Turkish are 14%, 5% and 6% in favour of boys.

KS2 Maths Level 4+
90% = %
;’ ® R
2 2 0 'S 8
3 o 2 ©
7 = 8 © R o 7
w o § ) f% :
Q
300/° Lt ; e ; i
African African Kurdish Turkish White UK Haringey
Caribbean
2002 02003 m 2004 2005
45 In science, at L4+, African, African-Caribbean, Turkish, Kurdish pupils’

attainment has improved by 4%, 3%, 6%, 4% respectively compared to a 1% rise
for UK White pupils.

100%

40%

KS2 Science Level 4+

74%
74%

]
o~
(<]
~

76%

56%
56%
54%

N
N
0

89%

R
~
e
7]

78%
77%

African

African

Kurdish Turkish

Caribbean

White UK

@ 2002 O0 2003 m 2004 O 2005

Haringey

14



Page 39

46 At L5+ 44% (+5) of White UK pupils attained L5+ compared to 16% (-1) African
Caribbean, 18% (+1) African and 10% (+6) Kurdish and 6% Turkish. Figures in
brackets show 2004 results.

47 In mathematics, the comparative L5+ figures are 43% (-1) White UK, 11% (-4)
African Caribbean, 16% African, 8% (-1) Turkish and 10% (+2) Kurdish.

48 In science, the figures are 59% (+2) White UK, 27% (+3) African Caribbean, 28%
(+5) African, 17% (+3) Turkish and 14% Kurdish (no change). Figures in brackets
show 2004 results.

49 This year, a further cohort of primary schools in Haringey are participating in the
DfES EAL programme. This programme is expressly designed to train primary
teachers in methods that will accelerate the progress of pupils approaching
fluency in English.

Mobility

50 At the end of Key Stage 2, 548 pupils (21%) were at their school for less than
three years prior to taking the Key Stage 2 tests. The attainment of these
‘mobile’ pupils is significantly below ‘non mobile’ pupils. In English, for example,
58% of mobile pupils attain L4+ compared to 76% of non-mobile pupils. Similar
differences occur in mathematics and science.

English as an Additional Language (EAL)

51 At the end of Key Stage 2 pupils with EAL Stage 4 and above attain higher in
English, mathematics and science than pupils without EAL. There were 483
pupils who were at EAL stages 1 to 3 who sat the tests and whose overall results
were significantly below the average attainment.

Special Educational Needs (SEN)

52 There were 798 pupils at the end of Key Stage 2 with special educational needs
(30% of cohort). 104 pupils had statements of special educational needs. Twenty
five of these pupils were attending special schools. Most statemented pupils follow
the national curriculum and where necessary are assessed using P scales. (P
scales are a series of descriptors that operate below level 1). Many schools are
now using P scales but there is currently not enough information to use them
comparatively.

Eligibility for free school meals
53  There were 1022 pupils eligible for free school meals, 1643 not eligible. 58% of
eligible pupils and 78% of not eligible obtained English level 4+. The figures for

level 5+ are 11% and 32% respectively. Mathematics and science have similar
differences.

15



Page 40

High attaining pupils

54

At Key Stage 2 there has been a slight decrease in the percentage of high
attaining pupils (pupils attaining L5+, a level above the expected level). In
English the figure decreased by 1% to 24% (nationally it stayed the same at
27%), in mathematics the figure decreased by 1% to 25% (nationally there was
no change at 31%) and in science it increased by 2% to 38% (nationally it rose
by 5% to 47%).

Low attaining pupils

55

At Key Stage 2 there has been a small decrease in the percentage of low attaining
pupils in English, but a slight increase in mathematics and science. In English the
percentage of pupils attaining L2 and below has decreased from 12.8% to 10.1%
(nationally the figure has increased to 7%). Mathematics has decreased from 11%
to 10.1% (nationally it increased from 5% to 6%) and science has increased from
6.2% to 6.8% (nationally it has increased from 2% to 3%)

Value Added - Key Stage 1 to Key Stage 2

56

The attainment of pupils at Key Stage 1 is matched to their attainment at Key
Stage 2, and their progress is compared with nationally expected progress.
Haringey has matched 2035 pupils out of 2626 who took the Key Stage 2 tests in
2005. The reason for pupils not being matched is usually because they have
arrived from abroad and have not been in England for Key Stage 1. Results in
English show that matched pupils in Haringey did slightly better than expected;
about 53 more pupils achieved L4+ English than expected nationally. The number
at L5+ was 80 above that which is to be expected nationally. These figures
represent a considerable increase from 2004 when 4 more pupils than expected
reached L4+ and 53 more pupils than expected reached L5+. In mathematics
matched pupils did better than expected at L4+ by 21 pupils and at L5+ by 19
pupils. In science, Haringey fell short by 57 pupils at L4+, a reduction of 30 on
2004, but 57 more pupils than expected reached L5+. We will continue our focus
on higher achieving pupils in the coming terms. The expansion of the EiC gifted
and talented project to all Haringey primary schools and the dissemination of gifted
and talented strategies to all primary schools will support implementation. We also
need to develop and implement effective strategies to meet the learning needs of
newly-arrived pupils. The targeted pupils' team will carry this out.

Schools

Targets

57

These are national targets aimed to be achieved by 2008. The target for Key
Stage 2 is to substantially reduce the number of schools where fewer than 65%
of pupils achieve level 4+ in English and maths. There are 18 schools in
Haringey that in 2005 are below the floor target in English and 19 schools below
the target in maths. These are both very good improvements from 1999 when
there were 29 schools below the target in English and 30 schools below the
target in maths.

16



Page 41

KS2 Eng | KS2 Eng | KS2 Eng | KS2 Eng | KS2 Eng | KS2 Eng | KS2 Eng
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
Less 29 23 21 20 24 19 18
than
65%
KS2 KS2 KS2 KS2 KS2 KS2 KS2
Maths Maths Maths Maths Maths Maths Maths
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
Less 30 26 25 23 24 19 19
than
65%

Trend in number of schools where fewer than 65% of pupils achieve
level 4+ in English and maths

: 8 8 § B & 9§ 8 § ;3 & §o§ot
22k EOEOEOEoFOEOEOEG oG

58

A number of schools improved their results dramatically in English, maths and

science. In English, Alexandra Primary improved by 33%, Broadwater Farm by
29%, Stroud Green by 18%, Nightingale by 15%, Rokesly Junior by 14% and

In maths Alexandra improved by 37%, Broadwater Farm by

31%, South Harringay Junior by 16%, Muswell Hill by 15%, St Mary's RC Junior

Mulberry by 14%.

by 14%, Earlsmead by 13%.

59

Many schools in Haringey continue to attain results well above the national

average in English, maths or science. Some of these schools are: Coldfall,
Coleridge, Lea Valley, Rhodes Avenue, St Ignatius, St Paul's RC, Welbourne

and West Green.

17




Page 42

OFSTED inspections Sept 2004 - June 2005

Primary

60

There have been two primary school inspections in this period. (Broadwater
Farm and West Green).

The quality of education was judged as good in and unsatisfactory in 1.
Teaching was good in 1 and unsatisfactory in 1.

Learning was good in 1 and unsatisfactory in 1.

Leadership and management were good in 1 and satisfactory in 1.

Schools causing concern

61

Haringey currently has one school in special measures (out of a total of 79). This
represents 1.3% of the number of schools, compared to 1.5% nationally. There is
one school in the category of serious weakness. Both these schools are receiving
targeted support focussed on ensuring that all issues identified by Ofsted are
addressed and improved.

Attendance

62

63

Attendance levels in Haringey rose in primary schools during the 2004-05
academic year. Primary schools have reduced both authorised and unauthorised
absence leading to an overall improvement in the average level of attendance in
the LEA. Primary school attendance in England improved by 0.06% compared to a
0.22% improvement in Haringey.

These improvements represent approximately 11,300 extra sessions being
attended. This is equivalent to 30 children who may have truanted for a full year
now attending for a full year. These gains are based on much more rigorous
systems for managing attendance that will provide a firm foundation for measuring
further improvement in the coming years.

Primary Attendance

o 94 51% 9457%
95.00% 94.15% 94.19%

- ./ —i
—e

/377 9359/0
92.54%

92.00%

90.00% w w \
2002 2003 2004 2005

—&— Haringey Primary Attendance —l— National Primary Attendance

Exclusions

64

There were no permanent exclusions from primary schools in 2004/05 (2 in
2003/04).

18



Page 43

Strategies for Raising Standards in Key Stages 1 and 2

Targeted support

65

Individual intervention programmes are targeted at the two schools in an Ofsted
category (1 special measures, 1 serious weaknesses) and other schools
identified by School Standards and Inclusion as causing concern. The
interventions include:

Intensive support for literacy and numeracy in all schools achieving less than
60% L4+ in English and/or mathematics at the end of KS2 in 2005 (a total of 20
schools).

Support is in place for targeted schools to improve planning and assessment for
learning to ensure pupils' learning needs are met. This will be mediated and
delivered through schools’ participation in a number of DfES pilots including the
Primary Leadership Programme (PLP), the Intensifying Support Pilot (ISP) and
the English as an Additional Language Pilot (EAL).

LPSA targets are in place in schools in Wood Green Networked Learning
Community (acting as a pilot) to stretch the attainment targets for African
Caribbean pupils by 3%.

Holiday programmes are in place to support borderline pupils (those needing to
improve from level 3 to 4) in targeted schools.

Additional monitoring visits for targeted schools to evaluate improvements.
Targeted support for science education where results are significantly below
those for English and mathematics.

Schools where attendance is identified as a concern receive additional support
through the Education Welfare Service and advice on successful strategies that
could be used. Schools where there are concerns about exclusions also receive
specialist support through the behaviour support team.

The Targeted Pupil Initiative continues with a focus on 50 children in nine
schools, as identified through the ISP.

Support for senior managers

66

Support includes a variety of strategies such as:

The continuation and implementation of the Primary Leadership Programme in a
further cohort of ten primary schools including three special schools (The Vale,
Moselle and William Harvey as "Sustaining Success" schools).

Allocation of experienced Headteacher mentors for all new and acting
Headteachers.

Revised and updated programme of professional development for senior leaders
in primary schools including a focus on the development of effective school self
evaluation.

Focused support from external consultants for Headteachers facing seriously
challenging circumstances as identified through the School Review Group.

Support for teachers

67

A range of support is in place including : the opportunity to participate (where
relevant in the Primary National Strategy pilot projects (PLP, African Caribbean,

19



Page 44

EAL and ISP) to support the achievement of underachieving and/or bilingual
pupils with an additional consultant employed to lead this project.

The continued expansion of the EiC gifted and talented project to all Haringey
primary schools will aid support for high attaining pupils.

There is a continuation of the development and implementation of a primary
science strategy in schools where science results are below those of similar
schools and links with a high performing London borough to share and
disseminate good practice.

A national pupil tracking system is being introduced to monitor achievement
across Key Stages.

The use of intervention, catch-up and booster classes is being promoted in all
primary schools.

High quality literacy and numeracy training for primary teachers is in place.
The use of ICT is being improved to support teaching and learning with a focus
on the use of Interactive Whiteboards as multimedia teaching and learning tools;
Training for teaching assistants is being used to improve classroom support for
underperforming pupils.

Sharing success and good practice seminars and leaflets are in place to
disseminate good practice throughout the LA.

20



Page 45

Section 3

Key Stage 3 (see Annex 3 for more detail)

68

Haringey’s rate of progress (since 2001) at Key Stage 3 has been significantly
better than the national. In English Haringey has improved by 17%, national by
10%, since 2001. The 16% gap that existed in 2001 between Haringey and the
national has been reduced to 9% in 2005. This year Haringey saw its results
improve by 6% (national 3%). Park View Academy and St Thomas More
improved their English results by 20% and 14% respectively.

80
75
70
65
60
55
50
45
40

Trends at KS3 English

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 provisional

‘ —e— Haringey —m— England Average ‘

69

In mathematics Haringey has improved (since 2001) by 14%, national by 9%.
The 18% gap that existed in 2001 between Haringey and the national has been
reduced to 12% in 2005. This year Haringey’s results improved by 4% (national
1%). Some schools in the east of the borough made significant improvements in
the past five years and the overall upward trend is encouraging, although there
was a shortfall in the number of pupils expected to achieve at higher levels. The
key challenge now is to keep up the pace in order to close the gap between
Haringey and the national average. Improving standards in mathematics remains
a key priority.

80
75
70
65
60
55
50
45
40

Trends at KS3 maths
— —u
il
/ 71 ~ “
m—
66 o e
62
58
55
r— 52
40
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 provisional
—@— Haringey = —— England Average

21



Page 46

70 In science Haringey has improved (since 2001) by 10%, national by 4%. The
24% gap that existed in 2001 between Haringey and the national has been
reduced to 18% in 2005. This year Haringey’s results improved by 1% (national
by 4%). Standards in science at Key Stage 3 are too low in too many schools
and consequently too many pupils do not achieve what is expected of them.
Science is a key priority and we will seek ways to make significant improvements
in the next three years by improving the quality of leadership, teaching and
learning in science.

Trends at KS3 science

75

70
-— N — 4-\-/;)

65 68
66 67 66

60

55

50 A ¢
//Sv‘l 51 52
45 / 48

a0 T T T T
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 provisional

40

—e&— Haringey —a— England Average

71 Whilst the improvement trend is encouraging, there remain very substantial gaps
between Haringey’s results and the national. Key Stage 3 standards in all three
core subjects remain a priority for action.

Gender

72 The pattern of achievement between boys and girls is very similar to that found
nationally. In English, girls outperform boys at level 5+ by 15% (national by 13%)
and by 20% at level 6+ (national by 13%). In mathematics, girls and boys have
very similar results at level 5+ 62% and 61% (national 74% and 73%) and at
level 6+ 39% and 40% (national both are 53%). In science girls outperform boys
at level 5+ by 4% (national by 1%) and at level 6+ by 7% (national boys
outperform girls by 2%)

Looked After Children
73 Results for Looked After Children at KS3 are very similar to national results.
English has declined from 29.3% (in 2004) to 26.5%, maths from 27% to 26.5%,

science from 20% to 18%. The number of Looked After Children at KS3 in 2005
is 34. This means that each child is approximately 3% of the cohort.

22



Page 47

Ethnic Minority Pupils

74

75

76

Achievement for almost all pupils from ethnic minority heritages is much
improved and the rate of progress in some cases is ahead of the rate of progress
of White UK pupils. African pupils have improved by 8% since 2004 (by 19%
since 2002), Caribbean pupils by 6% (7% since 2002), Turkish pupils by 12%
(9% since 2002), White UK by 6% (6% since 2002), Kurdish pupils declined by
1%, but have improved by 5% since 2002.

English KS3 Level 5+

100%

80% H
60% -
40% +

20% +

0% -

African African Kurdish Turkish White UK Haringey
Caribbean

\ @ 2002 @ 2003 0 2004 00 2005 \

In mathematics African pupils have improved by 8% since 2004 (by 20% since
2002), Caribbean pupils by 9% (10% since 2002), Turkish pupils by 2% (12%

since 2002), White UK by 2% (10% since 2002), Kurdish pupils declined by 3%
and also by 1% since 2002.

Maths KS3 Level 5+

80%

58%
54%
66%
1l 78%
74%
| 76%

60%

50%
1] 46%
47%
49%

40%

B7%

38%
32%

40% H

20% -

0% -

African African Kurdish Turkish White UK Haringey
Caribbean

@ 2002 B2003 O 2004 O02005 ‘

In science African pupils have declined by 3% since 2004 (improved by 5% since
2002), Caribbean pupils improved by 2% (2% since 2002), Turkish pupils
improved by 6% (by 9% since 2002), White UK by 1% (5% since 2002), Kurdish
pupils declined by 2% (declined by 3% since 2002)

23



Page 48

Science KS3 Level 5+

80%

66%
70%
| 71%

60%

40% H

20% A

0% - ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ :
African African Kurdish Turkish White UK Haringey
Caribbean

‘ @ 2002 52003 02004 O2005

High attaining pupils

77 Progress for high attaining pupils (since 2002) has been faster than the progress
nationally. At Key Stage 3 there has been an overall increase in the percentage
of high attaining pupils (L6+). Since 2004 English increased by 3% to 28%
(national increased by 1% to 35%). In mathematics the figure increased by 2%
to 39% (national increased by 1% to 53%). Science remained at 24% (national
increased by 3% to 37%)

Low attaining pupils

78 A high proportion of students are low achievers but the number is now reducing
fast. In English the (provisional) percentage has reduced (from 2004) from 17%
to 13.5% (nationally it is 9%). Mathematics has reduced from 20% to 18%
(nationally 9%). Science has increased from 21% to 22% (nationally 9%).

Special Educational Needs (SEN)

79  There were 558 pupils at the end of Key Stage 3 who had special educational
needs (27% of cohort). 88 of these pupils had statements of special educational
needs Thirty one of these pupils were attending special schools. Most
statemented pupils follow the national curriculum and where necessary are
assessed using P scales. (P scales are a series of descriptors that operate below
level 1). Many schools are now using P scales but there is currently not enough
information to use them comparatively.

Eligibility for free school meals
80 There were 805 pupils eligible for free school meals, 1217 not eligible. 53% of
eligible pupils and 73% of not eligible obtained English level 5+. The figures for

level 6+ are 17% and 35% respectively. Mathematics and science have similar
differences.

24



Page 49

Value Added KS2 (2002) to KS3 (2005)

81

The attainment of pupils at Key Stage 2 is matched to their attainment at Key
Stage 3, and their progress is compared with nationally expected progress.
Haringey has matched 1779 pupils out of 2092 who took the Key Stage 3 tests in
2005. The reason for pupils not being matched is usually because they have
arrived from abroad and have not been in England for Key Stage 2. This
analysis indicates good value added in English, where 40 more pupils than
expected attained level 6+, and a further 30 more than expected attained level 5.
Maths value added indicates a shortfall of 90 pupils to achieve level 6, science a
shortfall of 70 pupils to achieve level 6 and another 20 pupils to achieve level 5.

Floor targets

82

The national KS3 floor targets are to reduce (by 2008) the number of schools
where fewer than 50% of pupils attain below level 5+ in English, maths and
science. Provisional data indicate that there are 2 schools below the floor target
in English (3 in 2004), 2 schools below target in maths (4 in 2004) and 6 schools
below target in science (4 in 2004)

Number of schools with below 50% level 5+
(out of 9 schools 2001, 10 in 2002, 11 in 2003+)

Science

O 2001 82002 O0 2003 @ 2004 O 2005 ‘

25



Page 50

Section 4

Key Stage 4 (see Annex 4 for more detail)

83

84

Haringey’s rate of progress (since 2001) at Key Stage 4 has been at more than 3
times the national rate. In the main 5+ A* - C indicator Haringey has improved by
19%, compared to the estimated national increase of 6%. The 19% gap between
Haringey and the national has now been reduced to (provisional) 6%. This year
Haringey saw its results improve by 6% (national by 2%). However, there needs
to be an awareness that in 2006 there will be a new 5+ A* - C indicator that will
include English and maths. This may have a significant impact on some schools.

Haringey and National trends at % 5+ A* -C
(2005 national is estimated)

55.7
53.7

50 50

50 /
45 44

N i /

e

35
i/

30

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 provisional

‘—O—Haringey—-—NaTional‘

Progress is continuing to be made in closing the east and west gap in the main
5+ A* - Cindicator. The gap of 30% in 2001 has been narrowed down to 16% in
2005.

Gap at % 5+ A* - C between East and West of Haringey

70%

60%

50%

40%

30% T

20%

10%
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 provisional

—&— West —l— East —#&— National

26




Page 51

Gender

85 In the main 5+ A* - C indicator, girls outperform boys by 12% (the same as in
2004). The national difference in 2005 is 10%.

Looked After Children

86 At GCSE results have remained the same on the 5+ A* - C indicator and
declined slightly on the 5+ A* - G indicator. They have improved slightly in the 1+
A* - G indicator. The number of Looked After Children at KS4 in 2005 is 59 (57 in
2004). The results in all three indicators remain slightly above the national 2004
results.

GCSE results for Looked After Children
(59 children in 2005)

80%

60% 52%56% 54%,,,58/°

40% 37% 39%
40% -

20%

O % T T T

National 1+ A* -G Haringey 1+ A* - National 5+ A* -G Haringey 5+ A* - National 5+ A* - C Haringey 5+ A* -
G 6 C

02003 O 2004 2005

Ethnic minority pupils

87  The continuing improvement at GCSE is reflected in the performance of the
larger ethnic groups in Haringey. There is real evidence that the gap between
ethnic minority groups and White UK pupils is closing. In the 5+ A* - C indicator,
African pupils have improved by 11% since 2004 (15% since 2002), Caribbean
pupils by 10% (20% since 2002), Turkish pupils by 6% (19% since 2002).
Kurdish pupils declined by 5% in 2004, but have improved by 14% since 2002.
White UK pupils improved by 3% (4% since 2002)

29%
32%
42%
32%
27%
34%
40%

22%

13%
Kurdish 19%
21%
21%

Turkish

African
Caribbean
White UK

02002 B2003 002004 002005 ‘

27




Page 52

Special Educational Needs (SEN)

88

There were 609 pupils at the end of Key Stage 4 who had special educational
needs (30% of cohort). 71 of these pupils had statements of special educational
needs. Sixteen of these pupils were attending special schools. Most statemented
pupils follow the national curriculum and where necessary are assessed using P

scales. (P scales are a series of descriptors that operate below level 1). Many

schools are now using P scales but there is currently not enough information to
use them comparatively.

Eligibility for free school meals

89 There were 772 pupils eligible for free school meals, 1301 not eligible. 42% of
eligible pupils and 53% of not eligible pupils obtained 5+ A* - C GCSE grades.
Post 16

Post 16 - A level results

Trend in % A-E passes 2003 2004 2005
Haringey Number of A level exams 822 881 949
taken
Haringey % A-E 95.30% 96% 96%
National % A-E 95.4% | 96.0% | 96.2%

90

91

The Haringey result in the percentage of pupils achieving A to E grades is in line
with national results.

There has been a reduction in the total average point score for Haringey pupils
from 208.7 to 186.5 (national increased from 269.2 to 273.7).

Ofsted Inspections - September 2004 - June 2005 - Secondary

Secondary

92

There have been two secondary school inspections in this period. (Gladesmore
and St Thomas More).

The quality of education was judged as good in 1 and satisfactory in 1.

Teaching was judged as good in 1 and unsatisfactory in 1.

Learning was judged as good in 1 and unsatisfactory in 1.

Leadership and management were judged as being very good in 1 and
satisfactory in 1.

28



Page 53

Schools causing concern

93

Haringey currently has one secondary school in the Ofsted category of serious
weaknesses (out of a total of 11). The school has an action plan in place and
intensive support to ensure all the issues identified by Ofsted are being
addressed.

Attendance

94

The attendance in seven secondary schools improved in 2004/05 and fell in four
schools. Overall secondary attendance has improved by 0.12% since 2004.
This represents approximately 4,000 additional sessions attended. Since 2002
Haringey's attendance has improved by 1.57% (national by 0.9%), representing
approximately 51,000 additional sessions attended.

Secondary attendance

95.00%

91.95% 92.18%
91.28% -

—u
/ 4’
90.00% - 91.25% 91.37%

90.39%
89.80%

91.72%

85.00%

2002 2003 2004 2005

—e&— Haringey Secondary Attendance —li— National Secondary Attendance

Exclusions

95

There were 28 permanent exclusions from secondary schools in the 2004/05
academic year. This is a significant increase on the 20 exclusions in 2003/04.
The number of exclusions represents approximately 0.25% of the secondary
school population. This figure is in line with the national 2004 figure for
secondary school exclusions.

NEET (Notin Employment, Education or Training)

96

The percentage of young people (16-18) who are NEET in Haringey (August
2005) is 14.3%. This is significantly higher than in neighbouring local authorities.
In Barnet it is 6.1%, Enfield 9.4%, Waltham Forest 9.7%

29



Page 54

Strategies for Raising Standards 11-19

97

98

Schools and the LA are committed to continuing to improve the educational
experience of all young people in Haringey. There is a focus on continuing to
raise the number of pupils who attain 5+ A* - C grades and the number who
attain 5+ A* - C, including English and maths. The improving trend at GCSE
means that there are an increasing number of students who will be able to start
post 16 advanced courses. Improving the curriculum pathways 14-19 and
changing the curriculum to better match the needs and interests of students are
some of the ways in which opportunities can be improved. Schools will be
working to improve the take up of advanced courses by Haringey students,
particularly in the east of the borough.

Haringey has been involved in a number of national and local initiatives to
improve the performance of secondary age pupils. The enthusiastic and
committed implementation of these initiatives is continuing the process of
transforming secondary education in the borough. The strong partnership
developed in Haringey between key stakeholders, such as parents, schools,
DfES, London Challenge, has resulted in a marked impact on raising aspirations
and achievement, developing ambition and reducing disaffection in students.

Targeted support

99

Individual intervention programmes are in place for schools identified as causing
concern including:

Within the Key Stage 3 Strategy, schools at risk of not achieving the floor targets
and showing low value added have additional focused support from consultants.
There is a particular focus on improving science through intensive support

A wide range of strategies are in place to support students to improve their
achievements at Key Stage 4, including Excellence in Cities: Aim Higher,
Learning Mentors; and Gifted and Talented programmes.

Study Support: after-school, weekend and holiday classes for targeted students
to complete course work and prepare for exams.

Pilot programmes are in place to support focused ethnic minority groups at risk of
under-achievement, in particular African Caribbean, Turkish and Kurdish
students.

Strategies to improve attendance in secondary schools, through the
complementary work of the Education Welfare Service and school staff

Support for senior managers

100 A wide range of strategies support senior managers such as:

Additional support for senior leaders in intervention schools, including support to
develop school self-evaluation.

A range of leadership programmes for senior and middle-tier leaders delivered
through the London Leadership Centre, National College for School Leadership,
London Challenge and the Specialist Schools Trust.

30



Page 55

Extensive support to develop the Tottenham schools’ Collegiate as they prepare
for the launch of the new sixth form centre.

Additional resources through the LSC/LEA area wide action plan are being used
to develop capacity and innovation in 14-19 education.

Support for teachers

101

102

Support is provided for national and local initiatives:

There are extensive central programmes of training in the national strategies in
English, mathematics, science, ICT and foundation subjects as well as training
in the improvement of behaviour and attendance.

School based support is in place through an agreed programme to coach and
train teachers in effective classroom practice.

Training to develop a cadre of expert teachers in every school to act as lead
professionals and provide a focus for spreading good practice.

Training and support from EMA staff in promoting effective EAL and EMA
teaching and supporting refugees and asylum seekers.

ICT is used in teaching to aid learning interactive whiteboards in at every
classroom of at least one core subject in every secondary school and
Broadband connectivity in every secondary school.

The strategy for raising standards for Haringey's young people 11-19 is set out in
Bright Futures (2005). The overall aim is to:
finally break the link between disadvantage and low achievement in order to
create prosperous, inclusive and sustainable communities for the 21st century;
support secondary schools to achieve the highest standards, to be fully
inclusive, to put the aspirations and achievement of the learner first and to
contribute to community cohesion and race equality;
transform outcomes for vulnerable individuals and groups;
enable secondary schools to have a key role in neighbourhood regeneration
and in the wider agenda that supports the well-being of young people;
assist all our partners with a stake in the future of young people to work
together to provide the best possible opportunities for young people; and
invest in services that support young people.

31



ANNEX 1:

(Please Note:
Statistical profile. This is not

Page 56

KEY STAGE 1 DATA

published until late December)

Data on Statistical Neighbours are provided by Ofsted in the Local Authority

Readin

Table A%.1: Percentage of pupils achieving Level 2+ Reading at the end of Key Stage 1
Key Stage 1 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
Reading

National 84 84 84 85 86
Haringey 75 76 78 78 79
Statistical Neighbours 80 80 80 80

Writing

Table A1.2: Percentage of pupils achieving Level 2+ Writing at the end of Key Stage 1
Key Stage 1 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
Writing

National 86 86 81 82 82
Haringey 76 77 75 74 76
Statistical Neighbours 81 81 76 77

Mathematics

Table A1.3: Percentage of pupils achieving Level 2+ Maths at the end of Key Stage 1
Key Stage 1 Maths 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
National 91 90 90 90 91
Haringey 84 85 87 85 87.5
Statistical Neighbours 88 87 86 85

Table A1.4: Percentage of pupils achieving Level 2B+ at the end of Key Stage 1

Reading
2002 | 2003 | 2004 | 2005
National 69 69 71 73
Haringey 58 62 63 66
Writing
2002 | 2003 | 2004 | 2005
National 60 62 62 61
Haringey 52 56 54 53
Maths
2002 | 2003 | 2004 | 2005
National 76 74 75 74
Haringey 68 67 66 68

32



Page 57

Table A1.5: Percentage of pupils achieving Level 3+ at the end of Key Stage 1

Reading
2002 2003 2004 2005
National 30 28 29 27
Haringey 24 23 23 22
Writing
2002 2003 2004 2005
National 9 16 16 15
Haringey 9 15 14 13
Maths
2002 2003 2004 2005
National 31 29 28 23
Haringey 24 27 23 18

Table A1.6 KS1 results for Looked After Children

KS1 Reading Level | KS1 Writing Level 2+ | KS1 Maths Level 2+
2+
National 2004 54.4 48.3 63.5
Haringey 2004 (18 50 50 61
children)
Haringey 2005 (17 471 41.2 64.7
children)
Table A 1.7  Key Stage 1 results with gender
Reading
level 2+ level 2B+ level 3
Boys | Girls | Boys | Girls | Boys | Girls
National 81 89 67 78 22 32
Haringey 74 85 61 72 19 25
Table A 1.8 Key Stage 1 results with gender
Writing
Level 2+ level 2B+ Level
3
Boys | Girls | Boys | Girls | Boys | Girls
National 77 88 54 70 10 20

Haringey

69 82 46

60 10 16

33




Page 58

Table A 1.9 Key Stage 1 results with gender

Maths
Level 2+ level 2B+ Level 3
Boys | Girls | Boys | Girls | Boys | Girls
National 90 92 73 75 25 20
Haringey 86 89 66 70 20 16

Table A1.10: KS1 results with Time in school

2005 More than 2 2005 Less than 2
years (2164 pupils) | years (643 pupils)
Reading Level 2+ 83 66
Reading Level 2B+ 71 51
Writing Level 2+ 79 63
Writing Level 2B+ 56 40
Maths Level 2+ 81 78
Maths Level 2B+ 71 59
Table A1.11: KS1 results with EAL levels
2004 Number | Reading |Reading 2B+| Reading 3 | Writing 2+| Writing | Writing 3
2+ 2B+
NO EAL 1609 82 72 28 79 59 16
Stage 5 36 100 85 47 91 88 24
Stage 4 81 97 89 44 96 85 27
Stage 3 360 95 85 26 92 68 16
Stage 2 597 69 46 4 63 29 3
Stage 1 124 28 14 2 23 7 2
Total 79 66 22 75 53 13
Table A1.12: KS1 results with EAL levels
2004 Number | Maths 2+ | Maths 2B+ | Maths 3
No EAL 1609 88 72 22
Stage 5 36 100 88 42
Stage 4 81 96 89 32
Stage 3 360 96 84 24
Stage 2 597 85 52 4
Stage 1 124 53 25 2
Total 87 68 18
Table A1.13 : Key Stage 1 results for pupils with special educational needs
SENstatus Grand | Reading | Reading | Writing | Writing |Maths W, | Maths 2+
Total |W,Dor1 2+ W,Dor1 2+ Dor1
No SEN 2053 10% 90% 13% 87% 6% 94%
School Action 517 45% 55% 50% 50% 22% 78%
School Action 123 58% 42% 67% 33% 46% 54%
Plus
Statemented 61 79% 21% 84% 16% 72% 28%
Unknown 53 55% 45% 60% 40% 47% 53%
Grand Total 2807 21% 79% 24% 75% 13% 87%

34




Page 59

Table A1.14: Key Stage1 results for eligible and not eligible for Free school meals

Reading Reading Writing Writing Maths Maths
level 2B+ level 3 level 2B+ level 3 level 2B+ level 3
FSM 1022 pupils 53% 10% 36% 5% 55% 9%
NOT FSM 1733
pupils 75% 30% 63% 18% 76% 23%

35




Page 60

Table A 1.15 KS1 Results with ethnicity

Number Reading Writing
Ethnicity All |Boys|Girls| All |Boys|Girls| All |Boys|Girls| All |Boys|Girls| All Boys| Girls
2+ | 2+ | 2+ | 3+ | 3+ | 3+ | 2+ | 2+ | 2+ | 3+ | 3+ | 3+
Any Other Ethnic 62 | 32 | 30 [[76% |66% | 87% | 10% | 0% |20% ||68% | 50% | 87% | 10% | 6% | 13%
Background
Asian - Any Other Asian 56 | 30 | 26 [88% |83% | 92% | 25% | 27% | 23% || 88% | 80% | 96% | 13% | 10% | 15%
Asian - Bangladeshi 79 | 43 | 36 [ 78% | 74% | 83% | 16% | 12% | 22% (| 73% | 67% | 81% | 14% | 12% | 17%
Asian - Indian 33 | 19 | 14 [82% | 79% | 86% | 21% | 21% | 21% || 79% | 74% | 86% | 18% | 16% | 21%
Asian - Pakistani 33 | 183 | 20 [ 73% |69% | 75% | 18% | 15% | 20% || 76% | 69% | 80% | 18% | 23% | 15%
Black - Other Black 39 | 17 | 22 [[79% | 71% | 86% | 26% | 24% | 27% | 79% | 71% | 86% | 10% | 6% | 14%
Black - Caribbean 347 | 174 | 173 [|82% | 75% | 88% | 21% | 17% | 25% || 79% | 71% | 87% | 11% | 9% | 12%
Black - Ghanaian 89 | 39 | 50 (83% |74% | 90% | 26% | 21% | 30% || 80% | 69% | 88% | 15% | 8% | 20%
Black - Nigerian 94 | 35 | 59 [91% | 89% | 93% | 26% | 20% | 29% || 85% | 80% | 88% | 13% | 11% | 14%
Black - Other Black African || 129 | 67 | 62 |[[87% | 82% | 92% [ 19% | 21% | 16% || 80% | 79% | 81% | 9% | 13% | 5%
Black - Somalian 159 | 86 | 73 ||66% |65% |67% | 2% | 1% | 3% |62% |59% | 64% | 2% | 2% | 1%
Black - Zairian/Congolese | 34 | 22 | 12 |[76% | 73% [ 83% [12% | 9% | 17% || 76% | 68% | 92% | 6% | 5% | 8%
Black African Total 505 | 249 | 256 |80% | 7% | 84% | 15% | 13% | 17% | 75% | 70% | 80% | 8% | 8% | 9%
Chinese 18 9 9 [[89% | 78% | 100 33% | 22% | 44% |[89% | 78% | 100 |28% | 11% | 44%
% %
Mixed - Any Other Mixed 92 | 55 | 37 [87% |82% | 95% | 39% | 38% | 41% (| 83% | 76% | 92% | 24% | 16% | 35%
Mixed - White and Asian 32 | 15 | 17 [91% | 80% | 100 | 41% | 33% |47% | 91% | 80% | 100 | 34% | 20% | 47%
% %
Mixed - White and Black 35 | 18 | 17 [83% | 72% | 94% | 17% | 17% | 18% (| 86% | 83% | 88% | 9% | 6% | 12%
African
Mixed - White and Black 108 | 50 | 58 ||88% |84% | 91% | 28% | 28% | 28% | 84% | 80% | 88% | 16% | 10% | 21%
Caribbean
Other - Kurdish 92 | 52 | 40 [62% |54% | 73% | 2% | 4% | 0% ||52% | 48% | 58% | 0% | 0% | 0%
Other - Latin/South/Central | 21 14 7 |[[76% | 64% | 100 [24% | 21% | 29% || 62% | 57% | 71% | 14% | 14% | 14%
American %
Other - Vietnamese 29 | 16 | 13 [[72% |69% | 77% | 7% | 6% | 8% (|66% | 56% | 77% | 7% | 6% | 8%
Unknown 67 | 39 | 28 [57% |54% | 61% | 13% | 15% | 11% (| 51% | 46% | 57% | 9% | 8% | 11%
White - Albanian 18 | 10 8 [61% | 70% |50% | 6% |10% | 0% | 56% | 60% | 50% | 6% | 10% | 0%
White - British 615 | 321 | 294 87% | 83% | 91% | 37% | 33% | 41% | 84% | 78% | 91% | 20% | 17% | 24%
White - Greek Cypriot 23 | 12 | 11 [[70% | 75% | 64% | 4% | 0% | 9% (| 70% | 67% | 73% | 4% | 0% | 9%
White - Gypsy/Roma 7 4 3 [14% 25% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0% [29% | 50% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0%
White - Irish 38 | 22 | 16 [82% |68% | 100 | 37% | 27% | 50% (| 82% | 73% | 94% | 18% | 5% | 38%
%
White - Kosovan 24 | 10 | 14 [79% | 70% | 86% | 13% | 10% | 14% (| 83% | 80% | 86% | 4% | 0% | 7%
White - Other White 204 | 102 | 102 (|83% | 79% | 87% | 24% | 20% | 28% (| 81% | 77% | 85% | 18% | 14% | 23%
White - Traveller of Irish 15 8 7 |[[83%|13% |57% | 0% | 0% | 0% [[27% | 13% [43% | 0% | 0% | 0%
Heritage
White - Turkish 191 | 102 | 89 ||58% |56% |60% | 6% | 5% | 7% | 53% |47% 60% | 2% | 1% | 3%
White - Turkish Cypriot 24 | 12 | 12 [50% | 42% | 58% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 46% | 33% | 58% | 0% | 0% | 0%
Grand Total 2807 (1448 1359 79% | 74% | 85% | 22% | 19% | 25% || 75% | 69% | 82% | 13% | 10% | 16%

36




Page 61

Number Maths Science
Ethnicity All |Boys|Girls| All |Boys|Girls| All |Boys|Girls| All |Boys|Girls| All Boys| Girls
2+ | 24+ | 2+ | 3+ | 3+ | 3+ [ 2+ | 2+ | 2+ | 3+ | 3+ | 3+
Any Other Ethnic 62 | 32 | 30 (84% | 78% | 90% | 13% | 16% | 10% || 76% | 66% | 87% | 15% | 13% | 17%
Background
Asian - Any Other Asian 56 | 30 | 26 [95% | 93% | 96% | 14% | 17% | 12% || 95% | 93% | 96% | 20% | 27% | 12%
Asian - Bangladeshi 79 | 43 | 36 [[91% | 86% | 97% | 10% | 12% | 8% |[81% | 74% | 89% | 13% | 12% | 14%
Asian - Indian 33 | 19 | 14 [94% | 89% | 100 [ 18% | 21% | 14% || 91% | 84% | 100 | 24% | 26% | 21%
% Y%
Asian - Pakistani 33 | 13 | 20 (82% | 77% | 85% | 15% | 23% | 10% || 82% | 77% | 85% | 15% | 15% | 15%
Black - Other Black 39 | 17 | 22 [90% | 88% | 91% | 15% | 12% | 18% || 85% | 88% | 82% | 15% | 6% | 23%
Black - Caribbean 347 | 174 | 173 [ 88% | 83% | 94% | 15% | 16% | 14% || 86% | 81% | 91% | 18% | 17% | 20%
Black - Ghanaian 89 | 39 | 50 (87% |82% | 90% | 15% | 13% | 16% || 83% | 82% | 84% | 26% | 28% | 24%
Black - Nigerian 94 | 35 | 59 (89% |83% |93% |13% |23% | 7% |[87% | 86% | 88% | 20% | 23% | 19%
Black - Other Black African || 129 | 67 | 62 [89% | 88% | 90% | 10% | 15% | 5% |[81% | 85% | 77% | 16% | 21% | 10%
Black - Somalian 159 | 86 | 73 [|81% | 83% | 79% | 7% | 6% | 8% [|[67% |69% | 66% | 5% | 5% | 5%
Black - Zairian/Congolese 34 | 22 | 12 |71% |68% | 75% | 6% | 9% | 0% |[74% | 68% | 83% | 18% | 18% | 17%
Black African Total 505 | 249 | 256 | 85% | 83% | 87% | 10% | 12% | 8% || 78% | 78% | 78% | 15% | 16% | 14%
Chinese 18 9 9 [94% |89% | 100 [ 28% | 22% | 33% || 94% | 89% | 100 | 22% | 11% | 33%
% %
Mixed - Any Other Mixed 92 | 55 | 37 [983% | 93% | 95% | 27% | 35% | 16% || 90% | 89% | 92% | 23% | 24% | 22%
Mixed - White and Asian 32 | 15 | 17 [91% | 87% | 94% | 44% | 40% | 47% || 91% | 87% | 94% | 34% | 27% | 41%
Mixed - White and Black 35 | 18 | 17 [94% | 94% | 94% | 26% | 28% | 24% || 94% | 94% | 94% | 29% | 28% | 29%
African
Mixed - White and Black 108 | 50 | 58 [88% | 86% | 90% [ 20% | 22% | 19% || 89% | 90% | 88% | 28% | 26% | 29%
Caribbean
Other - Kurdish 92 | 52 | 40 (83% |83% |83% | 3% | 6% | 0% |[62% | 62% | 63% | 5% | 6% | 5%
Other - Latin/South/Central || 21 14 7 [81%|79% | 86% | 24% | 29% | 14% || 76% | 79% | 71% | 19% | 21% | 14%
American
Other - Vietnamese 29 | 16 | 13 [93% | 100 | 85% | 14% | 13% | 15% || 83% | 88% | 77% | 3% | 6% | 0%
%
Unknown 67 | 39 | 28 (63% |64% | 61% |12% | 13% | 11% |[61% | 59% | 64% | 12% | 13% | 11%
White - Albanian 18 | 10 8 ||78% | 90% |63% | 11% | 20% | 0% | 67% | 70% | 63% | 11% | 20% | 0%
White - British 615 | 321 | 294 [[91% | 89% | 93% | 28% | 30% | 26% || 91% | 88% | 95% | 30% | 33% | 28%
White - Greek Cypriot 23 | 12 | 11 [91% | 92% | 91% | 4% | 8% | 0% |[91% | 92% | 91% | 4% | 0% | 9%
White - Gypsy/Roma 7 4 3 ||43% | 50% | 33% | 14% | 25% | 0% | 14% | 25% | 0% | 0% | 0% | 0%
White - Irish 38 | 22 | 16 [97% | 95% | 100 |26% | 18% | 38% || 100 | 100 | 100 | 37% | 41% | 31%
% % % %
White - Kosovan 24 | 10 | 14 (88% | 80% | 93% |21% | 30% | 14% || 75% | 60% | 86% | 8% | 0% | 14%
White - Other White 204 | 102 | 102 [ 95% | 95% | 94% | 25% | 29% | 22% || 91% | 92% | 89% | 20% | 20% | 21%
White - Traveller of Irish 15 8 7 [67% | 50% 86% | 7% | 13% | 0% || 73% | 75% | 71% | 13% | 25% | 0%
Heritage
White - Turkish 191 | 102 | 89 [77% | 81% | 73% | 8% | 8% | 8% [|[69% | 70% | 69% | 4% | 4% | 4%
White - Turkish Cypriot 24 | 12 | 12 |[79% | 75% | 83% | 0% | 0% | 0% |[67% | 67% | 67% | 0% | 0% | 0%
Grand Total 2807|1448 (1359 87% | 86% | 89% | 18% | 20% | 16% (| 83% | 81% | 85% | 19% | 20% | 19%

37




Page 62

Annex 2: Key Stage 2

English

Table A2.1: Percentage of pupils achieving Level 4+ in English at the end of Key Stage 2
ENGLISH 2002 | 2003 | 2004 2005

Level 4+ Provisional

National 75 75 78 79

Haringey 67 67 70 72

Statistical 72 74 75

Neighbours

Mathematics

Table A2.2 Percentage of pupils achieving Level 4+ in Maths at the end of Key Stage 2

MATHS 2002 | 2003 | 2004 2005
Level 4+ Provisional
National 73 73 74 75
Haringey 67 66 67 68
Statistical 71 70 71

Neighbours

Science

Table A2.3: Percentage of pupils achieving Level 4+ in Science at the end of Key Stage 2

SCIENCE Level 4+ 2002 2003 2004 2005

Provisional
National 86 87 86 86
Haringey 78 78 77 77
Statistical Neighbours 84 83 82

Table A2.4: Percentage of pupils achieving level 5+ at the end of Key Stage 2

English

2002 | 2003 | 2004 | 2005 Provisional
National 29 27 27 27
Haringey 24 25 25 24
Maths

2002 | 2003 | 2004 | 2005 Provisional
National 28 29 31 31
Haringey 23 25 26 25
Science

2002 2003 2004 2005

Provisional

National 38 41 42 47
Haringey 31 32 36 38

38



Page 63

Table A2.5 KS2 results for Looked After Children

KS2 English Level KS2 Maths Level 4+ | KS2 Science Level
4+ 4+
National 2004 39.9 37.2 53.0
Haringey 2004 (23 52 43 57
children)
Haringey provisional 57 43 57
2005 (21 children)
Table A2.6 Key Stage 2 English results with gender
Male | Female | Male | Female | Male | Female
Number | Number | English | English | English | English
4+ 4+ 5+ 5+
National 74% 84% 21% 33%
Haringey 1314 1320 68% 76% 19% 29%
Table A2.7 Key Stage 2 Maths results with gender
Male | Female | Male | Female | Male | Female
Number | Number |Maths 4+|Maths 4+|Maths 5+|Maths 5+
National 76% 75% 33% 28%
Haringey 1314 1320 68% 66% 27% 22%
Table A2.8 Key Stage 2 Science results with gender
Male | Female | Male | Female | Male | Female
Number | Number | Science | Science | Science | Science
4+ 4+ 5+ 5+
National 86% 87% 48% 46%
Haringey 1314 1320 78% 76% 38% 37%
Table A2.9: KS2 English with time in school
Time in School Number of pupils 4 5 4+
More than 3 years 2076 49% 27% 76%
2 to 3 years 199 44% 20% 64%
1to 2 years 214 44% 15% 59%
Less than 1 year 102 40% 8% 48%
no data 33 30% 3% 33%
Grand Total 2624 48% 24% 72%

39




Page 64

Table A2.10: KS2 maths with time in school

Time in School Number of pupils 4 5 4+
More than 3 years 2076 43% 28% 1%
2 to 3 years 199 45% 15% 60%
1 to 2 years 214 44% 14% 59%
Less than 1 year 102 32% 8% 40%
no data 33 24% 0% 24%
Grand Total 2624 43% 25% 68%

Table A2.11: KS2 science with time in school

Time in School Number of pupils 4 5 4+
More than 3 years 2076 40% 41% 81%
2to 3 years 199 46% 27% 73%
1 to 2 years 214 37% 29% 65%
Less than 1 year 102 35% 18% 53%
no data 33 27% 9% 36%
Grand Total 2624 40% 38% 77%

Table A2.12: Key Stage 2 results with EAL
EAL Grand Total English |Maths 4+| Science

4+ 4+
Stage 1 23 8% 33% 17%
Stage 2 139 17% 24% 37%
Stage 3 323 49% 50% 63%
Stage 4 395 83% 78% 90%
Stage 5 126 98% 95% 98%
No EAL 1617 78% 70% 80%
Grand Total 2624 72% 68% 77%

Table A2.13: Key Stage 2 results for pupils with s

ecial educational needs

SENstatus Number| English | English Maths Maths Science | Science
Level 2 and| Level 4+ |Level 2 and| Level 4+ |Level 2 and| Level 4+
below below below
No SEN 1826 4% 85% 4% 80% 3% 86%
School Action 468 14% 51% 15% 48% 10% 66%
School Action 227 28% 35% 27% 31% 17% 50%
Plus
Statemented 103 64% 16% 58% 20% 1% 33%
Grand Total 2624 10% 72% 10% 68% 7% 77%

40




Table A2.14: Key Stage2 results for pupils eli

Page 65

gible and not eligible for Free school meals

English
level 4+

English
level 5

Maths
level 4+

Maths
level 5

FSM 1022 pupils

58%

11%

54%

10%

NOT FSM 1643
pupils

78%

32%

74%

33%

41



Page 66

Table A 2.15: KS2 Results with ethnicity

English KS2 All Girls Boys All Girls Boys
Ethnicity All Girls | Boys 4+ 4+ 4+ 5 5 5
Any Other Ethnic 65 42 23 71% 81% 52% 17% 24% 4%
Background

Asian - Any Other Asian 59 28 31 78% 79% 77% 29% 46% 13%
Asian - Bangladeshi 65 29 36 75% 79% 72% 17% 14% 19%
Asian - Indian 49 24 25 80% 88% 72% 18% 21% 16%
Asian - Pakistani 26 15 11 77% 67% 91% 15% 0% 36%
Black - Other Black 55 27 28 84% 93% 75% 13% 11% 14%
Black - Caribbean 421 213 208 70% 77% 63% 16% 21% 10%
Black - Ghanaian 100 54 46 73% 83% 61% 17% 22% 11%
Black - Nigerian 81 41 40 85% 85% 85% 27% 39% 15%
Black - Other Black African 135 66 69 73% 73% 74% 21% 26% 17%
Black - Somalian 107 52 55 56% 62% 51% 10% 15% 5%
Black - Zairian/Congolese 41 20 21 49% 50% 48% 7% 15% 0%
Black African total 464 233 231 69% 73% 65% 18% 24% 11%
Chinese 11 4 7 91% 100% 86% 73% 50% 86%
Mixed - Any Other Mixed 107 56 51 88% 88% 88% 39% 39% 39%
Mixed - White and Asian 22 11 11 86% 100% 73% 45% 82% 9%
Mixed - White and Black 13 6 7 100% | 100% | 100% | 31% 33% 29%
African

Mixed - White and Black 91 44 47 70% 82% 60% 25% 34% 17%
Caribbean

Not Obtained/Refused 58 33 25 47% 42% 52% 12% 15% 8%
Other - Kurdish 70 42 28 43% 45% 39% 10% 12% 7%
Latin/South/Central 17 10 7 53% 40% 71% 12% 10% 14%
American

Other - Vietnamese 22 11 11 77% 82% 73% 23% 27% 18%
White - Albanian 18 9 9 61% 67% 56% 17% 22% 11%
White - British 526 250 276 86% 92% 81% 44% 48% 40%
White - Greek Cypriot 34 13 21 62% 62% 62% 24% 31% 19%
White - Gypsy/Roma 7 4 3 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
White - Irish 41 23 18 85% 83% 89% 32% 39% 22%
White - Kosovan 31 10 21 52% 40% 57% 10% 10% 10%
White - Other White 162 80 82 77% 83% 72% 33% 45% 22%
White - Traveller of Irish 14 9 5 43% 44% 40% 0% 0% 0%
Heritage

White - Turkish 155 78 77 43% 49% 38% 6% 13% 0%
White - Turkish Cypriot 31 16 15 48% 44% 53% 6% 6% 7%
Haringey 2634 1320 1314 72% 76% 68% 24% 29% 19%

42




Page 67

Maths KS2 All Girls Boys All Girls Boys
Ethnicity All Girls Boys 4+ 4+ 4+ 5 5 5
Any Other Ethnic 65 42 23 68% 69% 65% 14% 17% 9%
Background

Asian - Any Other Asian 59 28 31 73% 71% 74% 31% 32% 29%
Asian - Bangladeshi 65 29 36 75% 72% 78% 29% 17% 39%
Asian - Indian 49 24 25 78% 79% 76% 29% 25% 32%
Asian - Pakistani 26 15 11 65% 67% 64% 27% 20% 36%
Black - Other Black 55 27 28 51% 44% 57% 20% 22% 18%
Black - Caribbean 421 213 208 61% 63% 59% 11% 9% 13%
Black - Ghanaian 100 54 46 67% 69% 65% 15% 11% 20%
Black - Nigerian 81 41 40 83% 78% 88% 31% 27% 35%
Black - Other Black African| 135 66 69 65% 58% 72% 18% 18% 17%
Black - Somalian 107 52 55 52% 52% 53% 7% 12% 4%
Black - Zairian/Congolese 41 20 21 39% 40% 38% 5% 0% 10%
Black African total 464 233 231 63% 61% 66% 16% 15% 17%
Chinese 11 4 7 91% 100% 86% 82% 75% 86%
Mixed - Any Other Mixed 107 56 51 80% 79% 82% 36% 27% 47%
Mixed - White and Asian 22 11 11 91% 100% 82% 50% 73% 27%
Mixed - White and Black 13 6 7 85% 83% 86% 38% 33% 43%
African

Mixed - White and Black 91 44 47 58% 64% 53% 26% 27% 26%
Caribbean

Not Obtained/Refused 58 33 25 40% 36% 44% 16% 15% 16%
Other - Kurdish 70 42 28 49% 43% 57% 10% 10% 11%
Latin/South/Central 17 10 7 59% 50% 71% 6% 10% 0%
American

Other - Vietnamese 22 11 11 82% 91% 73% 36% 45% 27%
White - Albanian 18 9 9 67% 67% 67% 22% 33% 11%
White - British 526 250 276 83% 84% 82% 43% 40% 46%
White - Greek Cypriot 34 13 21 53% 38% 62% 29% 15% 38%
White - Gypsy/Roma 7 4 3 14% 0% 33% 0% 0% 0%
White - Irish 41 23 18 80% 78% 83% 34% 22% 50%
White - Kosovan 31 10 21 58% 50% 62% 13% 0% 19%
White - Other White 162 80 82 73% 73% 73% 39% 40% 38%
White - Traveller of Irish 14 9 5 21% 22% 20% 0% 0% 0%
Heritage

White - Turkish 155 78 77 50% 47% 53% 8% 5% 10%
White - Turkish Cypriot 31 16 15 55% 56% 53% 6% 6% 7%
Haringey 2634 1320 1314 68% 66% 68% 25% 22% 27%

43




Page 68

Science KS2 All Girls Boys All Girls Boys
Ethnicity All Girls Boys 4+ 4+ 4+ 5 5 5
Any Other Ethnic 65 42 23 75% 79% 70% 31% 38% 17%
Background

Asian - Any Other Asian 59 28 31 83% 82% 84% 44% 57% 32%
Asian - Bangladeshi 65 29 36 80% 83% 78% 42% 38% 44%
Asian - Indian 49 24 25 80% 79% 80% 39% 38% 40%
Asian - Pakistani 26 15 11 81% 80% 82% 42% 27% 64%
Black - Other Black 55 27 28 78% 78% 79% 25% 37% 14%
Black - Caribbean 421 213 208 76% 77% 76% 27% 26% 27%
Black - Ghanaian 100 54 46 76% 78% 74% 25% 24% 26%
Black - Nigerian 81 41 40 90% 88% 93% 42% 46% 38%
Black - Other Black African| 135 66 69 75% 70% 80% 29% 26% 32%
Black - Somalian 107 52 55 67% 69% 65% 23% 29% 18%
Black - Zairian/Congolese 41 20 21 54% 55% 52% 12% 15% 10%
Black African total 464 233 231 74% 73% 75% 28% 29% 26%
Chinese 11 4 7 100% | 100% | 100% 82% 75% 86%
Mixed - Any Other Mixed 107 56 51 89% 88% 90% 52% 46% 59%
Mixed - White and Asian 22 11 11 86% 91% 82% 68% 82% 55%
Mixed - White and Black 13 6 7 92% 100% 86% 62% 67% 57%
African

Mixed - White and Black 91 44 47 78% 80% 77% 36% 43% 30%
Caribbean

Not Obtained/Refused 58 33 25 48% 42% 56% 22% 18% 28%
Other - Kurdish 70 42 28 56% 52% 61% 14% 17% 11%
Other - Latin/South/Central 17 10 7 71% 60% 86% 24% 20% 29%
American

Other - Vietnamese 22 11 11 7% 82% 73% 41% 55% 27%
White - Albanian 18 9 9 72% 78% 67% 22% 33% 11%
White - British 526 250 276 89% 90% 89% 59% 57% 61%
White - Greek Cypriot 34 13 21 74% 69% 76% 38% 23% 48%
White - Gypsy/Roma 7 4 3 14% 0% 33% 0% 0% 0%
White - Irish 41 23 18 85% 78% 94% 56% 52% 61%
White - Kosovan 31 10 21 65% 40% 76% 23% 10% 29%
White - Other White 162 80 82 81% 80% 81% 52% 56% 47%
White - Traveller of Irish 14 9 5 36% 11% 80% 7% 11% 0%
Heritage

White - Turkish 155 78 77 54% 58% 51% 17% 15% 18%
White - Turkish Cypriot 31 16 15 71% 63% 80% 16% 13% 20%
Haringey 2634 1320 1314 77% 76% 78% 38% 37% 38%

44




Page 69

Rates of improvement for the larger ethnic minority groups at the end of Key Stage 2

Table A2.16: English Level 4+

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
African 64% 62% 65% 65% 69%
African Caribbean 69% 63% 64% 66% 70%
Kurdish 29% 32% 31% 43% 43%
Turkish 45% 43% 40% 1% 43%
White UK 81% 79% 81% 82% 86%
All 69% 67% 67% 70% 72%

Table A 2.17: Maths Level 4+

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
African 55% 64% 63% 60% 63%
African Caribbean 58% 60% 58% 59% 61%
Kurdish 45% 43% 47% 48% 49%
Turkish 55% 51% 46% 42% 50%
White UK 78% 79% 80% 80% 83%
All 65% 67% 66% 67% 68%

Table A2.18 Science Level 4+

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
African 69% 74% 74% 70% 74%
African Caribbean 80% 78% 73% 73% 76%
Kurdish 64% 52% 54% 52% 56%
Turkish 65% 56% 57% 48% 54%
White UK 91% 87% 90% 88% 89%
All 80% 78% 78% 77% 77%

Table A2.19 English level 5+

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
African 19% 13% 15% 17% 18%
African Caribbean 15% 18% 19% 17% 16%
Kurdish 1% 3% 4% 4% 10%
Turkish 5% 6% 7% 6% 6%
White UK 42% 44% 45% 39% 44%
All 26% 24% 25% 25% 24%




Table A2.20 Maths level 5+

Page 70

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
African 12% 17% 14% 16% 16%
African Caribbean 11% 14% 13% 15% 11%
Kurdish 5% 9% 10% 8% 10%
Turkish 8% 13% 10% 9% 8%
White UK 36% 38% 46% 44% 43%
All 21% 23% 25% 26% 25%
Table A2.21 Science level 5+

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
African 16% 20% 21% 23% 28%
African Caribbean 19% 24% 25% 24% 27%
Kurdish 7% 9% 12% 14% 14%
Turkish 11% 17% 11% 14% 17%
White UK 48% 49% 53% 57% 59%
All 28% 31% 32% 36% 38%

46



Page 71

Table A2.22 Progress from Key Stage 1 to Key Stage 2 (Autumn Package and QCA

2004)
Reading Grand Number of Number of Number of Number of
Total pupils pupils expected pupils pupils expected
achieving level |to achieve level| achieving level |to achieve level
4+ Haringey | 4+ Nationally | 5+ Haringey | 5+ Nationally
3 478 475 477 388 386
2A 347 333 340 170 160
2B 420 380 390 155 120
2C 363 295 282 54 47
1 319 156 144 16 13
W 93 20 14 0 1
A 7
D 8
No KS1 Data 591
Grand Total 2626 1659 1647 783 726
Writing Grand Number of Number of Number of Number of
Total pupils pupils expected pupils pupils expected
achieving level |to achieve level| achieving level |to achieve level
4+ Haringey | 4+ Nationally | 5+ Haringey | 5+ Nationally
3 182 174 178 109 105
2A 308 281 287 100 108
2B 573 481 449 108 84
2C 572 307 271 32 21
1 257 69 48 5 2
W 128 7 8 0 0
A 7
D 8
No KS1 Data 591
Grand Total 2626 1319 1240 354 320

47



Page 72

English Grand Number of Number of Number of Number of
Total pupils pupils expected pupils pupils expected
achieving level |to achieve level| achieving level |to achieve level
4+ Haringey | 4+ Nationally | 5+ Haringey | 5+ Nationally
More than 18 421 418 421 291 286
16 to less than 18 327 318 317 136 108
14 to less than 16 519 463 457 108 67
12 to less than 14 316 227 205 18 13
9 to less than 12 297 128 101 3 3
7 to less than 9 55 9 8 1 0
Less than 7 88 9 6 0 0
No KS1 Data 591
Grand Total 2626 1563 1510 557 477
Maths Grand Number of Number of Number of Number of
Total pupils pupils expected pupils pupils expected
achieving level |to achieve level| achieving level |to achieve level
4+ Haringey | 4+ Nationally | 5+ Haringey | 5+ Nationally
3 433 426 429 315 322
2A 427 399 397 169 155
2B 504 390 387 74 65
2C 401 196 187 14 12
1 200 45 34 2 1
W 52 2 3 0 0
A 9
D 8
No KS1 Data 591
Grand Total 2626 1458 1437 574 555
Science Grand Number of Number of Number of Number of
Total pupils pupils expected pupils pupils expected
achieving level |to achieve level| achieving level |to achieve level
4+ Haringey | 4+ Nationally | 5+ Haringey | 5+ Nationally
More than 18 421 417 421 344 354
16 to less than 18 327 315 320 207 186
14 to less than 16 519 469 483 203 171
12 to less than 14 315 239 255 68 50
9 to less than 12 296 178 186 23 27
7 to less than 9 55 16 25 3 3
Less than 7 87 28 24 5 3
No KS1 Data 591
Grand Total 2624 1634 1691 848 791

48




ANNEX 3:

English

KEY STAGE 3 DATA

Page 73

Table: A3.1: Percentage of pupils achieving Level 5+ in English at the end of Key Stage

3

ENGLISH Level 5+ 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
provisional

NATIONAL 64 67 69 71 74

Haringey 48 56 52 59 65

Statistical Neighbours 56 60 61 N/A

Mathematics

Table: A3.2: Percentage of pupils achieving Level 5+ in Maths at the end of Key Stage
3
MATHS Level 5+ 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
provisional
NATIONAL 66 67 71 73 74
Haringey 48 52 55 58 62
Statistical Neighbours 56 59 63 62

Science

Table: A3.3: Percentage of pupils achieving Level 5+ in Science at the end of Key Stage

3

SCIENCE Level 5+ 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
provisional

NATIONAL 66 67 68 66 70

Haringey 42 48 51 51 52

Statistical Neighbours 53 56 58 53

Information and Communications Technology (ICT)

Table A3.4: Percentage of pupils achieving Level 5+ in ICT at the end of Key Stage 3
ICT Level 5+ 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

provisional
NATIONAL 65 66 67 67 69
Haringey 42 53 57 54 63

49



Page 74

Table A3.5: Percentage of pupils achieving Level 6+ at the end of Key Stage 3

% Level | English | English | English English 2005
6+ 2002 2003 2004 provisional
National 33 35 34 35
Haringey 23 18 25 28
% Level | Maths Maths Maths Maths 2005
6+ 2002 2003 2004 provisional
National 45 49 52 53
Haringey 29 33 37 39
% Level | Science | Science | Science Science 2005
6+ 2002 2003 2004 provisional
National 33 40 34 37
Haringey 19 26 24 24

Table A3.6 Key Stage 3 results for Looked After Children

% KS3 English Level | % KS3 Maths Level % KS3 Science
5+ 5+ Level 5+
National 2004 22.5 25.8 20.8
Haringey 2004 29.3 27 20
Haringey provisional 26.5 26.5 18
2005 (34 children)
Table A3.7:  Key Stage 3 results with gender
2004 English Level | English Level | English Level | English Level
5+ Male 5+ Female 6+ Male 6+ Female
NATIONAL 67 80 28 41
Haringey 57 72 18 38
Table A3.8:  Key Stage 3 results with gender
2004 Maths Level 5+ | Maths Level 5+ | Maths Level 6+ | Maths Level 6+
Male Female Male Female
National 73 74 53 53
Haringey 61 62 40 39
Table A3.9:  Key Stage 3 results with gender
2004 Science Level | Science Level | Science Level | Science Level
5+ Male 5+ Female 6+ Male 6+ Female
NATIONAL 69 70 38 36
Haringey, 2174 50 54 21 28

50




Page 75

Table A3.10: Key Stage 3 results with time in school

KS3 Cohort % English % Maths % Science
Level 5+ Level 5+ Level 5+
Between 2 and 3 1810 68 65 55
years
Between 1 and 2 114 50 43 39
years
Less than 1 year 73 48 44 32
Unknown 87 43 36 32
All pupils 2084 65 62 52
Table A3.11: Key Stage 3 results for pupils with special educational needs
SEN status Grand English | English Maths Maths Science | Science
Total Level 3 and| Level 5+ |Level 3 and| Level 5+ |Level 3 and| Level 5+
below below below
No SEN 1526 6% 76% 9% 73% 14% 63%
School Action 365 24% 39% 31% 34% 37% 22%
School Action 105 22% 37% 34% 34% 37% 25%
Plus
Statemented 88 60% 6% 68% 10% 63% 13%
Grand Total 2084 12% 65% 17% 62% 21% 52%

Table A3.12: Key Stage3 results for pupils eli

English English Maths Maths
level 5+ level 6+ level 5+ level 6
FSM 805 pupils 53% 17% 50% 29%
NOT FSM 1217 73% 35% 70% 48%
pupils

gible and not eligible for Free school meals

51




Page 76

Table A3.13: KS3 provisional results - English

KS3 English | KS3 English | KS3 English | KS3 English | KS3 English
01 02 03 04 05
Provisional
Alexandra - 73 68 70 72
Fortismere 76 87 82 84 86
Gladesmore 38 59 59 60 60
Greig City Academy - - 47 55 60
Highgate Wood 59 70 53 72 77
Hornsey 68 73 65 84 86
John 66 58 62 69 50
Loughborough
Northumberland 27 47 37 25 35
Park
Park View 29 45 32 43 63
St Thomas More 50.5 60 45 58 72
White Hart Lane 22 17 28 41 41
Haringey 48 56 52 59 65
England Average 64 67 69 71 74
Table A3.14: KS3 provisional results - Maths
KS3 Maths | KS3 Maths | KS3 Maths | KS3 Maths | KS3 Maths
01 02 03 04 05
Provisional
Alexandra - 74 74 75 74
Fortismere 75 79 83 84 85
Gladesmore 45 47 53 57 60
Greig City Academy - - 34 39 48
Highgate Wood 67 63 70 66 72
Hornsey 54 67 66 71 70
John 67 44 48 43 57
Loughborough
Northumberland Pk 30 37 48 41 50
Park View 36 46 38 52 59
St Thomas More 44.5 42 45 54 57
White Hart Lane 28 31 32 40 37
Haringey 48 52 55 58 62
England Average 66 67 71 73 74

52




Page 77

Table A3.15: KS3 provisional results - Science

KS3 Science | KS3 Science | KS3 Science | KS3 Science | KS3 Science
o1 02 03 04 05

Provisional
Alexandra - 63 69 63 69
Fortismere 76 80 83 78 80
Gladesmore 37 41 47 50 43
Greig City Academy - - 36 32 43
Highgate Wood 61 58 60 57 61
Hornsey 52 66 68 69 72
John Loughborough 66 55 60 50 55
Northumberland Pk 23 36 33 33 41
Park View 27 35 32 41 40
St Thomas More 38 40 49 51 39
White Hart Lane 27 30 27 35 33
Haringey 42 48 51 51 52
England Average 66 67 68 66 70

53




Page 78

Table A 3.16: KS3 Results with ethnicity

English KS3

All Girls | Boys | All Girls Boys
Ethnicity All Girls | Boys 5+ 5+ 5+ 6+ 6+ 6+
Any Other 67 25 42 54% | 60% 50% | 25% 36% 19%
Any Other - Kurdish 75 36 39 32% | 33% 31% 3% 3% 3%
Any Other - South/Central
American 17 4 13 47% | 25% 54% | 12% 0% 15%
Any Other - Vietnamese 19 9 10 53% | 78% 30% | 11% 22% 0%
Other Asian 42 18 24 69% | 78% 63% | 19% 33% 8%
Bangladeshi 48 29 19 79% | 86% 68% | 42% 55% 21%
Indian 51 31 20 1% | 77% 60% | 39% 48% 25%
Pakistani 21 9 12 71% | 100% | 50% | 43% 56% 33%
Other Black 49 25 24 73% | 76% 1% | 22% 28% 17%
African Caribbean 280 141 139 | 63% | 72% 54% | 23% 32% 13%
Ghanaian 47 25 22 83% | 88% 77% | 15% 28% 0%
Nigerian 45 17 28 73% | 88% 64% | 22% 47% 7%
Other Black African 139 80 59 68% | 70% 64% | 27% 34% 19%
Somali 79 42 37 49% | 71% 24% | 14% 21% 5%
Zairian/Congolese 22 11 11 73% | 82% 64% | 36% 36% 36%
Black African total 332 175 157 | 67% | 75% 57% | 22% 31% 12%
Chinese 4 1 3 50% | 100% | 33% 0% 0% 0%
Mixed - Any Other Mixed 65 35 30 83% | 86% 80% | 42% 51% 30%
Mixed - White and Asian 13 4 9 69% | 75% 67% | 46% 75% 33%
Mixed - White and Black
African 39 12 27 64% | 75% 59% | 23% 42% 15%
Mixed - White and Black
Caribbean 96 52 44 65% | 79% 48% | 33% 46% 18%
Not obtained 108 43 65 57% | 65% 52% | 23% 30% 18%
White - Albanian 5 1 4 40% 0% 50% 0% 0% 0%
White - British 438 204 234 | 77% | 78% 75% | 41% 54% 30%
White - Greek Cypriot 25 12 13 64% | 83% 46% | 28% 33% 23%
White - Gypsy/Roma 8 3 5 13% 0% 20% 0% 0% 0%
White - Irish 19 11 8 68% | 64% 75% | 32% 45% 13%
White - Kosovan 19 6 13 32% | 67% 15% 5% 0% 8%
White - Other 108 51 57 68% | 80% 56% | 42% 59% 26%
White - Traveller of Irish
Heritage 4 1 3 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
White - Turkish 97 46 51 44% | 48% 41% 8% 9% 8%
White - Turkish Cypriot 45 23 22 49% | 65% 32% | 11% 17% 5%
Grand Total 2094 | 1007 | 1087 | 65% | 72% 57% | 28% 38% 18%

54



Page 79

All Girls | Boys | All Girls | Boys
Maths KS3 All Girls | Boys 5+ 5+ 5+ 6+ 6+ 6+
Any Other 67 25 42 52% 40% 60% | 36% | 24% 43%
Any Other - Kurdish 75 36 39 37% 36% 38% | 17% | 14% 21%
Any Other - South/Central
American 17 4 13 47% 50% 46% | 12% 0% 15%
Any Other - Vietnamese 19 9 10 68% 78% 60% | 42% | 33% 50%
Other Asian 42 18 24 67% 61% 71% | 50% | 50% 50%
Bangladeshi 48 29 19 73% 62% 89% | 44% | 38% 53%
Indian 51 31 20 80% 87% 70% | 59% | 71% 40%
Pakistani 21 9 12 71% 89% 58% | 43% | 44% 42%
Other Black 49 25 24 53% 60% 46% | 37% | 44% 29%
African Caribbean 280 141 139 54% 55% 53% | 28% | 27% 29%
Ghanaian 47 25 22 66% 64% 68% | 28% | 32% 23%
Nigerian 45 17 28 64% 76% 57% | 44% | 65% 32%
Other Black African 139 80 59 58% 51% 66% | 32% | 30% 34%
Somali 79 42 37 49% 55% 43% | 22% | 24% 19%
Zairian/Congolese 22 11 11 64% 73% 55% | 28% | 27% 18%
Black African total 332 175 157 58% 58% 59% | 30% | 32% 27%
Chinese 4 1 3 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100%
Mixed - Any Other Mixed 65 35 30 72% 71% 73% | 52% | 46% 60%
Mixed - White and Asian 13 4 9 62% 75% 56% | 46% | 50% 44%
Mixed - White and Black
African 39 12 27 56% 58% 56% | 31% | 33% 30%
Mixed - White and Black
Caribbean 96 52 44 68% 69% 66% | 39% | 33% 45%
Not obtained 108 43 65 48% 53% 45% | 28% | 26% 29%
White - Albanian 5 1 4 60% 0% 75% | 60% 0% 75%
White - British 438 204 234 76% 75% 78% | 60% | 61% 58%
White - Greek Cypriot 25 12 13 60% 58% 62% | 36% | 33% 38%
White - Gypsy/Roma 8 3 5 13% 0% 20% | 13% 0% 20%
White - Irish 19 11 8 63% 55% 75% | 47% | 45% 50%
White - Kosovan 19 6 13 37% 33% 38% | 16% | 17% 15%
White - Other 108 51 57 69% 78% 60% | 50% | 55% 46%
White - Traveller of Irish
Heritage 4 1 3 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
White - Turkish 97 46 51 49% 41% 57% | 28% | 15% 39%
White - Turkish Cypriot 45 23 22 47% 52% 41% | 24% | 22% 27%
Grand Total 2094 | 1007 | 1087 62% 62% 61% | 39% | 39% 40%

55




Page 80

All Girls | Boys | All | Girls | Boys

Science KS3 All Girls | Boys | 5+ 5+ 5+ 6+ 6+ 6+
Any Other 67 25 42 48% | 40% 52% | 21% | 20% 21%
Any Other - Kurdish 75 36 39 24% | 22% 26% 5% 6% 5%
Any Other - South/Central
American 17 4 13 41% | 25% 46% 6% 0% 8%
Any Other - Vietnamese 19 9 10 53% | 56% 50% | 11% | 22% 0%
Other Asian 42 18 24 55% | 50% 58% | 19% | 17% 21%
Bangladeshi 48 29 19 56% | 55% 58% | 19% | 17% 21%
Indian 51 31 20 67% | 74% 55% | 25% | 39% 5%
Pakistani 21 9 12 67% | 89% 50% | 33% | 33% 33%
Other Black 49 25 24 43% | 48% 38% | 20% | 24% 17%
African Caribbean 280 141 139 | 44% | 48% 40% | 17% | 21% 14%
Ghanaian 47 25 22 43% | 48% 36% | 11% | 12% 9%
Nigerian 45 17 28 53% | 71% 43% | 18% | 35% 7%
Other Black African 139 80 59 44% | 43% 46% | 16% | 15% 17%
Somali 79 42 37 37% | 45% 27% | 13% | 14% 11%
Zairian/Congolese 22 11 11 41% | 36% 45% | 23% | 18% 27%
Black African total 332 175 157 | 43% | 46% 39% [15% | 17% 13%
Chinese 4 1 3 75% | 100% | 67% | 25% | 0% 33%
Mixed - Any Other Mixed 65 35 30 1% | 1% 70% | 38% | 37% 40%
Mixed - White and Asian 13 4 9 62% | 75% 56% | 46% | 75% 33%
Mixed - White and Black
African 39 12 27 36% | 50% 30% | 13% | 17% 11%
Mixed - White and Black
Caribbean 96 52 44 63% | 67% 57% | 27% | 31% 23%
Not obtained 108 43 65 44% | 47% 43% [ 19% | 19% 20%
White - Albanian 5 1 4 40% 0% 50% 0% 0% 0%
White - British 438 204 234 | 1% | 72% 71% | 44% | 50% 38%
White - Greek Cypriot 25 12 13 48% | 50% 46% | 20% | 17% 23%
White - Gypsy/Roma 8 3 5 13% 0% 20% [ 13% | 0% 20%
White - Irish 19 11 8 47% | 45% 50% | 16% | 27% 0%
White - Kosovan 19 6 13 16% | 17% 15% 5% | 17% 0%
White - Other 108 51 57 62% | 69% 56% | 32% | 47% 19%
White - Traveller of Irish
Heritage 4 1 3 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
White - Turkish 97 46 51 34% | 26% 41% 9% 7% 12%
White - Turkish Cypriot 45 23 22 33% | 39% 27% | 18% | 17% 18%
Grand Total 2094 1007 | 1087 | 52% | 54% 50% | 24% | 28% 21%

56




Page 81

Ethnic Minority Achievement Trends

Table A3.17: Comparison of performance at Level 5+ at Key Stage 3 for the larger
minority ethnic groups between 2002 and 2005
English Level 5+

2002 2003 2004 2005
African 48% 49% 59% 67%
African 56% 50% 57% 63%
Caribbean
Kurdish 27% 17% 33% 32%
Turkish 35% 28% 32% 44%
White UK 71% 68% 71% 77%
All 56% 52% 59% 65%

Maths Level 5+

2002 2003 2004 2005
African 38% 44% 50% 58%
African 44% 46% 45% 54%
Caribbean
Kurdish 38% 32% 40% 37%
Turkish 37% 44% 47% 49%
White UK 66% 73% 74% 76%
All 52% 55% 58% 62%

Science Level 5+

2002 2003 2004 2005
African 38% 44% 46% 43%
African 42% 44% 42% 44%
Caribbean
Kurdish 27% 12% 26% 24%
Turkish 25% 29% 28% 34%
White UK 66% 70% 70% 71%
All 48% 51% 51% 52%




Page 82

Table A3.18: Comparison of performance at Level 6+ at Key Stage 3 for the larger
minority ethnic groups between 2002 and 2004

English Level 6+

2002 | 2003 | 2004 | 2005

African 14% 12% 22% 22%
African Caribbean | 20% 11% 16% 23%
Kurdish 6% 1% 5% 3%
Turkish 7% 4% 6% 8%
White UK 37% 36% 43% 41%
All 23% 18% 25% 28%

Maths Level 6+

2002 | 2003 | 2004 | 2005

African 18% 25% | 28% 30%
African Caribbean | 19% 23% | 25% 28%
Kurdish 15% 9% 20% 17%
Turkish 17% 21% 17% 28%
White UK 48% 53% | 55% 60%
All 29% 33% | 37% 39%

Science Level 6+

2002 | 2003 | 2004 | 2005
African 9% 19% 18% 15%
African Caribbean | 15% 17% 15% 17%
Kurdish 6% 4% 8% 5%
Turkish 10% 8% 8% 9%
White UK 34% 48% 43% 44%
All 19% 26% 24% 24%




Page 83

Table A3.19: Value Added KS2 to KS3

Number
Number expected
achieved LEA National 2004
Grand
2002 KS2 English Total 5+ 6+ 5+ 6+
5 354 344 276 351 282
4 742 649 222 626 194
3 452 198 23 144 6
2 18 3 0 1 0
N 88 8 0 4 1
B 87 6 1 3 0
A 13
D 25
No KS2 data 313
Grand Total 2092 1208 522 1128 483
Number
Number expected
achieved LEA National 2004
Grand
2002 KS2 Maths Total 5+ 6+ 5+ 6+
6 3 3 3 3 3
5 329 320 305 328 322
4 791 679 411 725 483
3 436 138 24 160 24
2 30 1 0 1 0
N 83 0 0 1 1
B 71 1 0 1 0
A 16
D 20
No KS2 data 313
Grand Total 2092 1142 743 1219 833
Number
Number expected
achieved LEA National 2004
Grand
2002 KS2 Science Total 5+ 6+ 5+ 6+
6 2 1 0 2 2
5 494 466 334 474 367
4 843 467 127 553 164
3 299 31 0 22 1
2 23 1 0 0 0
N 34 1 0 3 2
B 45 1 0 1 0
A 19
D 20
No KS2 data 313
Grand Total 2092 968 461 1056 536

59



ANNEX 4

Page 84

KEY STAGE 4 AND POST 16 DATA

Table A4.1: Percentage of pupils attaining 5+ A*-C grades at the end of Key Stage 4

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
Provisional
National 50.0 51.2 52.9 53.7 55.7
Haringey 30.9 35.6 39 43.7 50
Statistical 41.5 44 4 46.6 48.6
Neighbours

Table A4.2: Percentage of pupils attaining 5+ A*-G grades (including English and maths)
at the end of Key Stage 4

2002 2003 2004 2005
Provisional
National 86.8 86.3 86.4 86.7
Haringey 75 80 80 83

Table A4.3: Percentage of pupils attaining 1+ A*-G grades at the end of Key Stage 4

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
Provisional
National 96 96 96 96 96
Haringey 92 91 90 93 96
Statistical 96 96 96 96
Neighbours
Table A4.4: Average point score at the end of Key Stage 4
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
Provisional
National 39.3 39.8 40.7 340.4 347.9
Haringey 30.6 31.9 33.0 34.8 36.9
(New point (New point score
score 294.4) 308.4)
Statistical 35.6 36.8 38.5 330.1
Neighbour

60



Page 85

Table A4.5: Key Stage 4 results for Looked After Children

5+ A*-C 5+ A*-G 1+ A*-G
National 2004 9.4 39.4 56.0
Haringey 2004 12.3 44 54.4
Haringey provisional 12 41 58
2005 (59 children)

Table A4.6: Key Stage 4 results for pupils with special educational needs

SENstatus | Number 5+ A*-C 1+ A*-G 5+ A*-G
No SEN 1485 59% 96% 90%
School 430 24% 93% 79%
Action
School 108 10% 81% 64%

Action Plus
Statemented 71 1.4% 70.4% 52.1%
Grand Total 2078 50% 96% 86%
Table A4.7: Key Stage 4 results for eligible and not eligible for Free school meals
FSM 772 pupils NOT FSM 1301 pupils
5+ A*-C 42% 53%

Table A4.8: GCSE performance by g

ender

Number of Number of |(5+ A*to C Male |5+ A* to C Female
Male Female
National 51% 61%
Haringey 1051 1012 43% 55%

Table A4.9: Comparison of performance at GCSE for minority ethnic groups %5+ A* - C

2002 2003 2004 2005
African 31% 36.4% 35% 46%
African Caribbean 22% 29.3% 32% 42%
Kurdish 13% 19% 32% 27%
Turkish 21% 21% 34% 40%
White UK 59% 56% 60% 63%
Haringey 35.6% 39% 43.7% 50%

61




Page 86

Table A4.10: % 5+ A* - C with ethnicity

Ethnicity All Girls Boys All 5+ A* - |Girls 5+ A*|Boys 5+ A*
C -C -C
Any Other Ethnic Background 66 34 32 48% 50% 47%
Asian - Any Other Asian 37 13 24 54% 85% 38%
Asian - Bangladeshi 55 31 24 58% 77% 33%
Asian - Indian 55 28 27 64% 79% 48%
Asian - Pakistani 29 16 13 48% 38% 62%
Black - Other Black 52 22 30 40% 50% 33%
Black - Caribbean 343 173 170 42% 51% 32%
Black - Ghanaian 54 30 24 39% 37% 42%
Black - Nigerian 55 24 31 60% 71% 52%
Black - Other Black African 129 64 65 48% 47% 49%
Black - Somalian 59 28 31 34% 29% 39%
Black - Zairian/Congolese 12 7 5 67% 86% 40%
Black African total 309 153 156 47% 47% 46%
Chinese 10 6 4 60% 67% 50%
Mixed - Any Other Mixed 28 12 16 54% 83% 31%
Mixed - White and Asian 13 6 7 77% 67% 86%
Mixed - White and Black African 41 18 23 61% 72% 52%
Mixed - White and Black Caribbean 59 32 27 58% 72% 41%
Not Obtained/Refused 81 36 45 32% 39% 27%
Other - Kurdish 102 54 48 27% 37% 17%
Other - Latin/South/Central American 20 6 14 30% 50% 21%
Other - Vietnamese 23 12 11 57% 67% 45%
White - Albanian 7 2 5 29% 50% 20%
White - British 398 193 205 63% 64% 61%
White - Greek Cypriot 43 26 17 42% 50% 29%
White - Gypsy/Roma 4 3 1 0% 0% 0%
White - Irish 24 8 16 46% 38% 50%
White - Kosovan 16 6 10 25% 17% 30%
White - Other White 94 44 50 45% 57% 34%
White - Turkish 104 57 47 40% 40% 40%
White - Turkish Cypriot 50 21 29 46% 48% 45%
Haringey 2063 1012 1051 50% 55% 43%

62




Table A4.11: 2005 GCSE subjects

Page 87

Full GCSE (Year 11
pupils) 2002 % A* - 2005 2005 % A* -
2002 C (based on | number (end | C (based on
number entries) of KS4) entries)

Mathematics 1701 37% 1849 40%
English 1641 48% 1812 54%
English Literature 1539 51% 1718 53%
Sci: Double Awd 1288 40% 1264 48%
History 581 52% 511 62%
French 712 48% 500 53%
Drama & Theat.Stds 443 70% 490 62%
Art & Design 504 62% 463 60%
Religious Studies 200 35% 439 47%
Sci: Single Award 254 10% 378 12%
Geography 479 42% 349 42%
Media/Film/TV Stds 180 52% 347 54%
Sport/P.E. Studies 295 47% 306 48%
Music 198 60% 267 63%
D&T Resist. Matrls 344 26% 232 42%
D&T Graphic Prods 509 37% 231 41%
Sociology 153 46% 227 57%
Spanish 154 58% 203 58%
Bus. Studs:Single 135 22% 194 44%
D&T Food Technolgy 289 37% 186 47%
Turkish 220 86% 166 90%
German 218 41% 135 61%
Inform Comm Tech 113 50% 129 53%
Bus.Stds&Economics 69 35% 101 18%

63



Table A4.12:

GCSE provisional 2005

Page 88

GCSE Trend 5+ A*-C

School % achieving % achieving | % achieving 5+ | % achieving 5+ | Provisional %
5+ A*-C 2001 | 5+ A*-C 2002 | A*-C 2003 A* - C 2004 achieving 5+
A* - C 2005
Alexandra - - - 49 55
Fortismere 69 67 71 77 79
Gladesmore 16 30 37 41 47
Greig City - 25 35 26 52
Academy
Highgate Wood 41 43 46 51 51
Hornsey 44 52 49 54 49
John 24 24 39 36 54
Loughborough
Northumberland 18 19 20 27 50
Park
Park View 15 16 23 39 47
Academy
St Thomas 31 33 40 36 38
More
White Hart Lane 10 24 27 36 28
Haringey 31 36 39 44 50
England 50 51.5 52.6 53.7 56

Average

64




Post 16 Advanced provisional

Page 89

results

Table A4.13: Trend in % A-E passes
Trend in % A-E passes 2003 2004 2005
Haringey Number of A level exams taken 822 881 949
Haringey % A-E 95.30% 96% 96%
National % A-E 95.4% 96.0% 96.2%
Table A4.14: Trend in total average point score
2003 Average 2004 Average 2005 Average
point score per point score per point score per
student student student
England 258.6 269.2 273.7
Average
Haringey 179.5 208.7 186.5
Table A4.15: Trend in average point score per exam entry
2003 Average 2004 Average 2005 Average
point score per point score per point score per
examination entry | examination entry | examination entry
England 77 .4 78.7 79.6
Average
Haringey 68.8 74.0 71.9

Data on NEET (Not in employment, education or training)

Table A4.16: NEET

Haringey Aug-04 | Aug-05
Cohort 16-18 year olds 4493 4056
Actual NEET % 13.9% | 14.3%
Target % NEET 8.6% 8.1%

Source: Connexions North London

65



Page 90

ANNEX 5: Attendance and exclusions

Table A5.1: Average attendance, authorised and unauthorised absence in Haringey
Primary s (Figures in brackets are national)

Primary 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
Attendance 92.5 (93.9) 91.9(94.2) | 92.66 (94.2) | 93.37 (94.5) | 93.59(94.57)
Authorised 5.8 (5.6) 6.4 (5.4) 6.1 (5.4) 5.50 (5.1) 5.20(5.0)
Unauthorised 1.7 (0.5) 1.7 (0.4) 1.24 (0.4) 1.13 (0.4) 1.21(0.43)
absence

Table A5.2: Average attendance, authorised and unauthorised absence in Haringey

Secondary s (Figures in brackets are national)

Secondary 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

Attendance 90.1 (90.9) 89.8 (91.0) | 90.32 (91.7) 91.25 91.37
(91.93) (92.18)

Authorised 8.0 (8.0) 8.0 (7.6) 7.4(7.2) 6.87 (6.92) 6.75 (6.57)

Unauthorised 1.9 (1.1) 2.2 (1.4) 2.2(1.1) 1.89 (1.13) 1.88 (1.25)

absence

Exclusions

There were 28 permanent exclusions from secondary schools in 2004/05 (20 in 2004). There
were no permanent exclusions from primary schools (2 in 2004)

Table A5.3 Exclusions by year group

Year Total
Group

7 3

8 6

9 10

10

11 1

Grand Total 28
Table A5.4 Exclusions by ethnicity
Ethnicity Total Number in % excluded (out
PLASC 2005 of cohort)

Black African 2 1931 0.10
Black Caribbean 9 1690 0.53
Greek Cypriot 1 183 0.55
Iranian 1 Not available Not available
Kurdish 3 452 0.66
Mixed Race - White and Black 2 427 0.47
Caribbean
Other Black 2 257 0.78
Other White 1 685 0.15
Turkish 1 713 0.14
White British 6 2577 0.23
Grand Total 28 12729 0.22

66



Page 91

67



Page 92

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 93 Agenda ltem 9

Appendix 1
Organisations Consulted on Demoted Tenancies and Identity Photographs

African Caribbean Leadership Council
African Francophone Association

Age Concern

Albanian Drop In Service

Alhijra Community Centre

Angolan Community Association

Asian Action Group

Association of Haringey Muslim Community
Bangladesh Womens Association in Haringey
CARA Haringey

Cypriot Centre

Cypriot Elderly & Disabled Group
Disabilities Alliance

Ethiopian Community Centre

Greek Cypriot Women's Assocoation
Haringey Anti-Social Behaviour Liaison Group
Haringey Chinese Centre

Haringey Citizens Advice Bureau

Haringey Consortium of Disabled People
Haringey Irish Cultural & Community Centre
Haringey Pensioners Action Group
Haringey Phoenix Group

Haringey Race Equality Council

Haringey Somali Community Centre
Haringey Women's Aid

Haringey Women's Forum

Hornsey Vale Community Centre

Irish in Britain Represetation Group

Joining Up Northumberland Park Youth Drop In
Kurdish Advice Centre

Kurdish Community Centre

LB Haringey Environmental Services

LB Haringey Equality and Diversity Team
LB Haringey Neighbourhood Management Services
LB Haringey Supporting People Team

LB Haringey Travellers Community Team
LGBTG BME- Wise Thoughts

Mencap

Mental Health Trust

Middlesex Association for the Blind

Mind In Haringey

Preset

The Council of Asian People

Tottenham Hard of Hearing

Tottenham Law Centre

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\1\6\6\A10000066 1\Executive20051122ltem9ChangestoTenancyAgreementAppendix10.doc 1 Of 2



Page 94

Turkish Cypriot Womens Project
Victim Support Haringey
Wheelchair User Group
Winkfield Deaf Service

Young Offending Service
Haringey Youth Service

ZACCA Zairean & Congolese Community Assocoation

Haringey Anti-Social Behaviour Strategy Group including:

Anti-Social Behaviour Team Manager (Housing)
Assistant Director Enforcement Services
Children Services

Circle 33 Housing

Corporate Legal Services

Haringey Primary Care Trust

HAVCO

Housing Needs

Housing Services

LBH Safer Communities

LBH Communities Safety Team

LBH Communities Safety Team

LBH Community Safety Team Police Projects Officer
LBH Equality and Diversity

LBH Equality and Diversity

LBH Head of Youth Service

LBH Social Services

LBH Street Wardens

London & Quadrant Housing Association
London Fire Brigade Service

Mental Health Trust

Metropolitan Police Services
Metropolitan Police Services
Neighbourhood Management

Peabody Trust Housing Association
Presentation Housing Association

Social Services

Victim Support

Youth Offending Service

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\1\6\6\A10000066 1\Executive20051122ltem9ChangestoTenancyAgreementAppendix10.doc

2 0of 2



Page 95

Agenda item:

The Executive 22 November 2005

Report title: Changes to Tenancy Agreement

Forward Plan reference number:

Report of:  The Director of Housing

Ward(s) affected: All Report for: Key Decision

1.
1.1

Purpose

This report summarises the results of consultation on demoted tenancies and
identity photographs and outlines further stages in the review of the Council’s
tenancy agreement.

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Introduction by Executive Member

In recent years we have been undertaking a major good housekeeping review of
all aspects of the housing service, under the broad slogan of "Rights &
Responsibilities".

The service has introduced already a range of changes on both counts (ie on the
one hand implementing tougher measures against those who default without a
good reason on their rents and service charges and tougher Anti-Social
Behaviour related action, and on the other hand enshrining within our tenants
charter increased rights to proper consultation, access to better support
mechanisms (eg through the expanded partnership with the CAB and various
Supporting People projects), stronger and more effective complaints and appeals
procedures and more choice based systems in a range of areas, to mention a few
examples.

The effort throughout has been on getting the balance right and ensuring that
service users are being consulted, are supportive of the proposed refinements
and understand the rationale of the changes at every stage. The overriding
concern is to safeguard and whenever possible strengthen tenants and
leaseholders rights and choices, whilst minimising as far as possible heavy
handed and arbitrary restrictions.

The measures outlined in this report are part of this ongoing search for
refinements in our relationship with our service users, and as the report
demonstrates they have been refined through research, careful evaluation and
extensive consultation.

They have to be considered not in isolation but in the context of all the other
measures that have been introduced and are being considered for the future and

1




Page 96

they are designed to improve the balance between the responsibilities of a small
number of anti-social tenants and the rights of all tenants (e.g. to enjoy a relatively
clean and safe environment in their estates) and those on our waiting lists (i.e.
ensuring that scarce council properties are allocated according to need and clear
criteria, rather than fraudulent methods).

3.
3.1

Recommendations

That Members:
Note the results of consultation.
Note further stages in the review of the tenancy agreement.
Approve the introduction of demoted tenancies.
Approve an amendment to the tenancy agreement requiring identity
photographs of tenants.

Report Authorised by:

Director of Housing

Contact officer: Arin AKin,

Service Development Project Manager

Telephone: 020 8489 4612

Executive Summary

Consultation on demoted tenancies and identity photographs was undertaken
from June to October 2005. This report summarises the results and highlights
further stages in the review of the Council’s tenancy agreement.

Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if
applicable)

Identity photographs will help address fraud and unauthorised sub-letting.

The use of demoted tenancies is expected to reduce incidents of anti-social
behaviour and help prevent rent arrears. If the introduction of demoted tenancies
is approved, arrangements will be put in place for reviews (see section 10.2) in
accordance with the Demoted Tenancies (Review Of Decisions) (England)
Regulations 2004.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

Background documents:

Housing Act 1985 section 82A (as amended by Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003)
Housing Act 1985 sections 103 and 105

Report to Executive of 19 April 2005: Proposed Changes to Conditions of
Tenancy




Page 97

7. Background

7.1

8.1.1

8.1.2

8.2

8.2.1

In April 2005, as part of a review of the Council’s tenancy agreement, the
Executive approved proposals to consult on demoted tenancies and identity
photographs. Consultation was undertaken between June and October. This
report summarises the results of the consultation and highlights further stages
in the review.

Description

Results of consultation

Area Housing Forums were consulted in June and July 2005. The forums
supported proposals for demoted tenancies and identity photographs.

A consultation pack was sent to all secure tenants in September 2005. This
comprised information (appended to this report) on demoted tenancies and
identity photographs, with a questionnaire. Over 400 responses were received.

Of tenants who responded to the question on demoted tenancies, 80%
supported the proposal, 15% were undecided and only 5% were against it.
87% of respondents favoured a requirement for housing applicants to be
photographed, but fewer (74%) supported applying this to existing tenants.

Comments included the following:

e Several tenants said that demotion does not go far enough. They
suggested faster and more preventative measures.

e The North Tottenham Area Housing Forum specifically requested that the
Council Executive again consider the use of Introductory Tenancies.

e A number of tenants felt that it would not be cost effective or appropriate to
photograph existing tenants

Agencies were consulted through a range of means. Presentations were given
at the Anti-Social Behaviour Partnership Board and the Haringey Anti-Social
Behaviour Liaison Group. In addition, agencies and community groups (list
appended to this report) were consulted via letters. Feedback from
organisations included:

e The Council must ensure robust investigations, so that tenants are not
unfairly demoted, for example due to malicious reports.

e Safeguards should be put in place to ensure that vulnerable people are not
demoted inappropriately.

Identity photographs
There is evidence that in some London boroughs, individuals and gangs have

committed organised fraud when applying for council housing. Identity
photographs of applicants have been found to deter fraudulent applications.



Page 98

8.2.2 The proposed change to the tenancy condition (section 3 above) would allow
the Council to photograph all tenants. It is however envisaged that at present,
the Council will continue to photograph only housing applicants. The reasons
for this are listed below.

8.3

8.3.1

= Since 2002, the Council has carried out very effective periodic checks for
unauthorised occupants in its properties. In the year to March 2005, these
checks identified 67 such households. A recent feasibility study
recommended that even without photographs, occupancy checks are
sufficient to identify existing unauthorised occupants.

= The

Further

study considered 2 options for photographing existing tenants:

Photographs taken in Council offices

The study found that 7 years would be required to photograph all
tenants at Council offices. This estimate assumes that a second
Council office is equipped with photographic facilities. It allows for
tenant lateness and non-attendance and technology downtime (a
particular photographic format is required for the OHMS housing
database) as well as time to check the identity of attendees and
explain both the scheme and data protection issues. The study
concluded that due to the time required, this option is not feasible

Mobile technology with photographs taken in tenants' homes
This would require the development of mobile technology with the
ability to interface with OHMS. The cost of this option (including staff
time) was found to be in excess of £325,000.

stages in the review of the tenancy agreement

In addition to identity photographs, the following amendments to the tenancy
agreement are proposed:

A specific clause requiring tenants to place refuse only in chutes,
bins and bulk refuse facilities.

Amendments to strengthen the Council’s right to access to carry out
repairs and maintenance (such as gas servicing).

These amendments arise from consultation with the Tenancy and Estate
Management Panel and the Resident Repairs Panel respectively. They do
not require consultation under section 105 of the Housing Act 1985.

8.3.2 In order to amend the tenancy agreement, the prescribed procedure for
variation under section of the 103 Housing Act 1985 must be followed. This

8.3.3

requires

that a preliminary notice of intention to vary is served on all tenants.

The notice must set out the proposed variations and their effects, and invite
comments.

The preliminary notice will be followed by a notice of variation, specifying the
date on which the changes to the tenancy agreement will take effect.



Page 99

9. Consultation

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

Council tenants and other stakeholders were consulted on demoted tenancies
and identity photographs

Target Groups

e Council tenants
e Partner organisations, advice agencies and community groups

Consultation Period

e Area Housing Forums: June and July 2005

e Consultation of all tenants under Section 105 of the Housing Act 1985:
September and October 2005

e Agencies: September and October 2005

Methods

Consultation methods were as follows:

e Presentations and discussions at Area Housing Forums

e In accordance with Section 105 of the Housing Act 1985, information was
sent to all tenants on identity photographs and demoted tenancies. Contact
details were given and a questionnaire was provided, including space for
additional comments.

e Agencies and community groups were consulted via letters and meetings.

Hard to Reach Groups

A wide range of community groups and agencies (list appended) were
contacted, including those representing vulnerable and/or non-English
speaking tenants.

Consultation material and other information for tenants was offered in
Haringey’s 6 main community languages, as well as in Braille, audio tape and
large print. Responses to the resident’s questionnaire were monitored by
ethnicity, disability, age and gender.

65% of respondents identified their ethnic background as White, 20% as Black,
1% as Asian and 5% as other ethnic groups. Nine per cent did not respond to
the question on ethnic background. 48% were disabled, 39% non-disabled and
13% did not respond to this question. 50% of respondents were male, 44%
female and 6% gave no response.

Table 1: Age of Respondents

Age group Percentage
18-25 1%
26-44 14%
45-64 33%
65-80 35%
Over 80 11%

No response to the question on age 6%
Total 100%




9.6

10.
10.1

10.2

10.3

11.

12.

Page 100

Table 1 shows the age groups of respondents. Most respondents came from
the 65-80 and 45-64 age groups, accounting for 35% and 33% of
questionnaires respectively. However a significant number of responses (14%
and 11% respectively) came from tenants aged 26-44 and those over 80.

Feedback
A bulletin summarising the outcomes of this consultation will be sent to tenants
and other stakeholders.

Comments of the Head of Legal Services

The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this
report.

Variations to the terms of the Tenancy Agreement must strictly follow the
prescribed procedure under s103 Housing Act 1985 .

A demoted tenant has the right to request a review of the Council's decision to
seek an order for possession against him or her. This is an internal review
undertaken by the Council and it is a statutory requirement that the Council put
in place arrangements to carry out such reviews. The arrangements must
comply with the Demoted Tenancies (Review of Decisions) (England)
Regulations 2004."

Equalities Implications

¢ |f the changes are approved, safeguards will be included in the Housing
Department’s procedures to ensure that vulnerable people, including those
with mental heath problems and learning difficulties, are protected under
these policies.

e QOutcomes of the policies will be monitored by ethnic background, age,
gender and disability.

e Also see 9.5 above.

Use of Appendices

Appendix 1: List of organisations consulted on demoted tenancies and identity
photographs

Appendix 2: Consultation pack used for tenant consultation under section 105
of the Housing Act 1985



Question 7

Are you? Male Female

Question 8

How old are you?
18 to 25 26 to 44 45 to 64 65 to 80

Question 9

How would you describe your ethnic background?
White
White: British White: Irish White: Greek-Cypriot
White: Kurdish White: Turkish

Any other White background (Please specify)

Over 80

White: Turkish Cypriot

Asian or Asian British
Indian Pakistani Bangladeshi East African

Any other Asian background (Please specify)

Mixed

Mixed: White and Black Caribbean Mixed: White and Black African

Mixed: White and Asian
Any other Mixed background (Please specify)

Black or Black British

Black or Black British: Caribbean Black or Black British: African

Any other Black background (Please specify)

Chinese

Any other Ethnic background
(Please specify)

Question 10
Do you have a disability? Yes No

Thank you. Please return to the freepost address listed on the bottom of page 2.

4



Page 102

The Council is considering changes thatg/vill affect your tenancy agreement.

These are:

* Demoted tenancies (for tenants proved to have committed anti-social behaviour)
X Photographs

This document explains these issues and asks for your views.

If you want this information in another language, please tick the box and fill in your name,
address and telephone number. Tear off these pages, and send them to the Freepost address
address below.

OFERTE PERKTHIMI

< Keéshilli po konsideron ndryshime gé do té ndikojné né kontratén tuaj té girasé.
'S Kétojané:
ie| e Kontratat e ulura né pozité (pér giraxhinj té déshmuar t€ kené pasur
< sjellje anti-shoqgérore)
e Fotografité
Ky dokument sqaron kéto ¢céshtje dhe kérkon mendimet tuaja.
Nése e doni kété informacion né Shqip, ju lutem shénjoni kutiné dhe
plotésoni emrin tuaj, adresén dhe numrin e telefonit. Griseni kété nga fagja dhe
dérgojeni né adresén e méposhtme me Postim Falas.
T, IO @ g S s S T weed Sisiie erelibarEy pfe el zre
Cq;} AN | 9zl
* SRS SeiltaEy (@ srelam @y TE-REif FE @z 3 o9fde
CERT)
* (IO
oA A S (@ ST G2 92 (oIS Bi, Oz A 5% ©F T @3k wiemig 7w, e
€ (BT w53 o1 | @2 Aroiefs fRre W, @3k Bea (rewid Tl R FIeels At e
CiENIstE DFRE A e |
OFFRE DE TRADUCTION
< LaMunicipalité envisage des changements qui toucheront votre contrat de
S location, dont:
L= e Des locations rétrogradées (pour les locataires qu’on a prouvés

responsables de comportement anti-social)
e Des photographies
Ce document explique ces points et vous demande vos opinions.
Si vous souhaitez obtenir ces informations en francais, veuillez cocher la case, et
noter votre nom, adresse et numéro de téléphone. Veuillez détacher cette page
et 'envoyer a 'adresse au port payé ci-dessous.



Kurdish

Somali

Turkish

Page 103

PESNIYARA WERGERANDINE
Belediye hinek guhertinan difikire ku wé bandaré li peymana kirédariya we bike.
Evin:
e Fotografén kirédaran.
e Kémkirina Asta Kirédariyé (ji bo kirédarén ku ispat baye ku sélén
nesosyal kirine)

Ev pelge van mijaran izeh dike 0 nérinén we dipirse.

Hek hun vé agahiyé bi Kurdi dixwazin, ji kerema xwe qutiké isaret bikin G nav,
navnisan 0 hejmara telefona xwe binivisin. Wé ji vi rpeli bigetinin, G bisinin bo
navnisana jérin a posta bépere.

SIIN QORAAL TARJUMID
Kownsalku waxuu ka fakeraayaa inuu sameeyo isbadalo kuwaasoo saamayn
kara nadaamka heshiiska guri kireysashadiina. Kuwan waxay yihiin:

¢ Hoos u dhigid guryo kireysteyaal (guryo kireysteyaal ay ku cadaatay inay

ku kaceen anshax xumo bulsho)

e Sawiro ka gaadis kireysteyaal
Qoraalkani arimahan ayuu tafaasiil ka bixinaayaa waxaana codsanaynaa inaad
nagu biirisaan fikradihiina.
Haddii aad rabto in macluumaadkan lagugu tarjumo [SOMALI], fadlan sax mari
sanduukha kuna soo buuxi magaca, ciwaan iyo lambarka telefoonkaaga. Jeex
boggan, kuna soo dir ciwaanka BOOSTA LACAG LA’AANTA ah ee hoose.

CEVIRi HiZMETi TEKLIFi

Onemli Bilgi:
Belediye kiracilik s6zlesmenizi etkileyecek degisiklikler yapmayi
tasarlamaktadir. Bu degisiklikler:
. indirgenmig; Kiracilik (Anti-Sosyal davranigta bulundugu kanitlanan
kiracilar ICIN)
¢ Kiracilarin fotograflari

Bu belgede yukaridaki konular agiklanmaktadir ve sizin gorusleriniz
istenmektedir.

Eger bu bilgileri Turkge olarak edinmek istiyorsaniz, latfen kutuyu isaretleyin,
adinizi, adresinizi ve telefon numaranizi yazin. Bu sayfayi kopartin ve
asagidaki Freepost adresine postalayin.

Please tell us if you would like a copy of this document in another language that is not listed above, or in any of
the following formats. Tick the box that you need and write your name, address and telephone number. Tear off
this page, and send it to the Freepost address below

Large print Braille
E-mail Another language (please say which language)
Audio tape

Name

Address

Tel

Please return to: Freepost RLXS-XZGT-UGR}, Haringey Council, Translation and Interpretation

Services, 8th Floor, River Park House, 225 High Road, London N22 8HQ

X



Demoted
tenancies and
photographs

* #*

EHARINGEY COUNCILES www.haringey.gov.uk






Page 106

In the year from April 2004 to March 2005, the Council received 1485
complaints regarding anti-social behaviour. Demoted tenancies (for tenants
proved to have committed serious anti-social behaviour) would help
tackle this problem.

Photographs help detect and discourage fraud and prevent people who are
not eligible from living in council homes.

We would like to hear your views. If you would like to comment on these
issues, please read this leaflet and fill in the questionnaire below. Send it to

the following address, by Thursday 20 October 2005.

Freepost RLSH-LUYZ-AYUY, Tenancy Changes , London Borough
Haringey, 13-27 Station Road, Wood Green, London N22 6UW

There is evidence that in some London
boroughs, individuals and gangs have
committed organised fraud when
applying for council housing. As a
result, some individuals got tenancies for
more than one council home or to

a home that they were not entitled to.
There is also evidence that some
tenants move away permanently, while
renting their homes to other people.
All these situations prevent people in
the greatest need from getting council
homes and transfers.

The Council wants to create new
tenancy conditions that will require
tenants and people who apply for
council housing to be photographed.

Photographs will help staff to check
identity. This will help prevent fraud and
stop people who are not eligible from
living in council homes.

The Council is considering the
introduction of demoted tenancies.
These are a less secure form of tenancy.
If a tenant commits significant, proven
anti-social behaviour, local authorities can
apply to the county court to demote
their tenancy. For a year; the tenant will
then have a demoted tenancy rather
than a secure tenancy.

During the |2-month demotion period,
if the tenant breaks the terms of their
tenancy agreement, it will be easier for
the Council to get a court order to
evict them. A demoted tenancy is a
serious warning to the tenant that if
their anti-social behaviour continues, we
can take swift legal action to end their
tenancy. They also temporarily lose some
of their tenancy rights (see next page).

After 12 months, as long as we have not
started proceedings to evict them, the
tenant will automatically become a
secure tenant again.



Page 107

The Council will put safeguards in
place to protect vulnerable people,
such as people with learning
difficulties or mental health
problems.

If the Council decides to
demote a tenancy:

By law, the Council must give the
tenant written notice. This must say
we want to get a demotion order
and the date when court
proceedings may start. The notice
must give the reasons why we have
decided to apply for an order.

If the demoted tenant
continues to break their
tenancy agreement, causing
the Council to start action

to evict them:

The tenant has the right to ask for
their case to be looked at again. This
will be done by a manager who was
not involved in the demotion
proceedings. It will be considered
fairly, in line with central government
regulations.

During the |2-month demotion
period, tenants can not buy their
homes. However, when the
demotion is over and they are a
secure tenant again, their Right to
Buy is fully restored. All of their years
as a tenant (including the year when
they were demoted) count towards
their discount, so the tenant does
not lose out.

During the |2-month demotion
period, tenants do not have the right
to exchange their homes or to take
in lodgers. When the year is over,
both of these rights are restored.

If you would like to know more
about demoted tenancies ring us on
020 8489 3221 or visit the website:
http://www.together.gov.uk/
category.asplc=79

or

http://england.shelter.org.uk/
advice/advice-3139.cfm

Thank you for reading this leaflet, we
value your input. If you would like to
comment on these issues, please fill in
the questionnaire opposite. Send it to
the Freepost address below (you do not
need a stamp).

Your questionnaire must get to us by
Thursday 20 October 2005.

Freepost RLSH-LUYZ-AYUY
Tenancy Changes

London Borough Haringey
|3-27/ Station Road

Wood Green

London N22 6UW



Questionnaire

Your name and address (optional).

Name

Address

Tel

You do not have to give your name and address if you prefer not to.

On all questions please tick one box only.

Question |
Do you think photographing people who apply for council housing
(see section A of leaflet) is:

A good idea? A bad idea? Don't know
Question 2
Do you think photographing existing tenants (see section A of leaflet) is:

A good idea? A bad idea? Don't know
Question 3
Do you think demoted tenancies (see section B of leaflet) are:

A good idea? A bad idea? Don't know
Question 4
Are you!

a) A secure tenant? b) On the Council's Waiting List?

) A leaseholder? d) An organisation?
Question 5

Any other comments about the proposals in this leaflet. If necessary, continue on a
separate sheet.

Question 6 (organisations only)
If you ticked D to question 4, please give the following details.

Name

Organisation

Tel

R



Page 109 Agenda ltem 10

B HARINGEY COUNCILE

Agenda item:

Executive Meeting On 22 November 2005

Report Title: Unitary Development Plan - Annual Monitoring Report

Forward Plan reference number: 2005/115

Report of: Anne Fisher, Director of Environmental Services

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non Key Decision

1. Purpose

1.1 To seek Members approval for the Annual Monitoring Report for submission to the
Government Office for London as required by the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004 and the Town and Country Planning (Local Development)
(England) Regulations 2004.

2. Introduction by Executive Member

2.1 The Report outlines the first Annual Monitoring Plan (AMP) that presents available
statistical data relating to the Planning Policies in our Unitary Development Plan
(UDP). This is a new statutory requirement under the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act, 2004. It is subject to a Best Value Performance Indicator and will
attract a Planning Development Grant if submitted to the Secretary of State by 31°
December 2005. The statistical indicators are grouped under the following themes:
Housing; Employment and Economic Activity; Retail and Town Centres; the
Environment; and Planning Obligations. These are summarised in Appendix A of the
Report. The full AMR has been placed in the Members Room. The AMR shows that
we are performing well against the Best Value indicators; the Planning Service
having met its 2004/05 targets. It also, as specifically required, highlights housing
development which is now set against the new reduced target for new housing that
will apply from 1 April 2006. Although the AMP is not subject to consultation, | feel
that the statistical information it contains should be widely publicised given the
positive performance achieved by the Planning Service. There are no immediate
financial implications but the Planning Development Grant could be lost if the AMR
is not submitted by the 31 December deadline.




Page 110

Recommendation

To approve the Annual Monitoring Report for submission to the Government Office
for London.

Report Authorised by: Anne Fisher AVVV\L g 1 . </ ]

Contact Officer: Malcolm Souch, Planning Policy Team Leader (extension 5590)

4.2

Executive Summary

Local planning authorities are required to produce Annual Monitoring Reports (AMR)
under Section 35 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and
Regulation 48 of Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England)
Regulations 2004. The AMR covers the period April 2004 to March 2005 and must
be submitted to the Secretary of State by 31 December 2005. The publication of the
AMR is also subject to a Best Value Performance Indicator (BV 200c). The
Government is also intending to allocate Planning Delivery Grant to authorities that
submit an AMR by the end of December 2005.

The Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) is used for information purposes to assess the
performance and effectiveness of planning policies. It presents available statistical
data relating to the planning policies in Haringey's adopted and emerging Unitary
Development Plan. It contains a monitoring framework that identifies targets and
indicators, which will be used to assess the performance and effectiveness of Unitary
Development Plan objectives and key policies. The document also identifies any
problems of data collection and analysis.

Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development

The production of an Annual Monitoring Reports (AMR) is a new requirement for
local planning authorities under the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
and the Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations
2004.

5.2 The Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) is used for information purposes to assess the

performance and effectiveness of planning policies. The AMR does not recommend
any policy changes.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
The following documents were used in the preparation of this report;-

» Unitary Development Plan — Annual Monitoring Report 2005
» Haringey Unitary Development Plan, adopted March 1998
» Haringey Unitary Development Plan First Deposit Consultation Draft Sept. 2003




Page 111

Haringey Unitary Development Plan Revised Deposit Consultation Draft Sept. 2004
London Plan Annual Monitoring Report 1 (Mayor of London, January 2005)

Local Development Framework Monitoring: A Good Practice Guide (ODPM

March 2005)

Local Development Framework Core Output Indicators Update 1/2005 (ODPM
October 2005)

7.2

7.3

Background

The Haringey Unitary Development Plan (UDP) was adopted in March 1998. The
UDP deals with development and use of land in Haringey, and contains information
on the Council's policies and proposals. The UDP Review has been developed
under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and the Town and Country
Planning (Development Plan)(England) Regulations 1999. It has been subject to
two statutory public consultation stages and a public inquiry, which closed on 13
September 2005. Following the receipt of the inquiry Inspector’s report and further
changes known as modifications, the Council intends to adopt the new UDP in April
2006.

The Government advises local authorities to monitor both adopted and emerging
UDP policies. Prior to the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, local authorities
were advised to publish the results of plan monitoring on a regular basis. Therefore,
Policy IMR4 of Haringey’s Revised Deposit Consultation Draft UDP states that the
Council will monitor the UDP by assessing progress towards targets, such as the
housing figure, will monitor the effectiveness of policies in the plan and will produce
an Annual Monitoring Report.

On 22 March, the Council submitted its Local Development Scheme (LDS) to the
Government Office for London. The LDS is a three-year project plan, which sets out
a programme for replacing the UDP policies with Local Development Documents.

In future years, the AMR will monitor progress on the LDS.

8.2

Description — Format of the Annual Monitoring Report

The Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) presents available statistical data relating to
planning policies in Haringey's adopted and emerging Unitary Development Plan. It
also presents some contextual information on the Borough's population, housing
and economy, primarily from the 2001 Census. It includes a monitoring schedule
that identifies targets and indicators. This schedule will be used to assess the
performance and effectiveness of Unitary Development Plan objectives and key
policies. It will develop over time as monitoring systems become more
sophisticated.

The AMR sets out information on the key planning policy issues in Haringey. These
are grouped together under the following policy themes:-

e Housing
¢ Employment and economic activity
¢ Retail and Town Centres




Page 112

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

¢ Environment and Transport
e Planning obligations

An executive summary is provided on the key findings and is attached as Appendix
A to this report. A copy of the full Annual Monitoring Report has been placed in the
Members Room.

The AMR covers the monitoring period April 2004 — March 2005. Where possible,
data is provided for the monitoring period, but in other cases the most recent data
is provided. In the case of housing information, data is only available for the
calendar year 2004.

The Government has published a good practice guide to Local Development
Framework Monitoring. The Council has some discretion over the content of the
AMR and the choice of targets and indicators. However, the AMR is required to
include information on housing policy and performance, particularly in terms of net
additional dwellings. A housing trajectory has been included in the AMR to show
past supply of housing and estimated progress towards housing targets. The
trajectory will be updated annually and will be used to influence the delivery of
major sites, reflect site phasing requirements or check progress of windfall sites.

Government advice suggests that authorities should avoid developing large
numbers of indicators, particularly during the initial stages of developing their
monitoring frameworks. Initially, a small number of indicators have been selected
which reflects the current availability of data. These indicators are consistent with
national and regional planning policy objectives, national core output indicators and
UDP policies and objectives.

Although the Council's emerging UDP has addressed sustainability issues, a formal
sustainability appraisal is not required. For future AMRs, the Council will develop
‘significant effects indicators’ which will link to the sustainability appraisal objectives
and indicators identified as part of the Council's Local Development Framework.

In future years, the AMR will review progress on the preparation of the Council’s
Local Development Framework as indicated in the timetable and milestones set out
in the Local Development Scheme.

This is the first Annual Monitoring Report. As such it provides the framework for
future monitoring reports. The document summarises the current monitoring
arrangements and identifies information gaps and problems of data collection and
analysis. The AMR is heavily dependent on data collected on planning applications
and appeals.

The Government is proposing to introduce a standard planning application form (1
APP), which will provide authorities with a wider source of data on development
proposals. It intends to introduce the form on a transitional basis in March 2006
with it coming into full effect by March 2007. This will be complemented by phase 2
of the PARSOL Land Use Monitoring Project which will develop a national scheme
for the collection and transfer of planning monitoring data.




Page 113

8.10 The Greater London Authority is currently working to implement the new London

8.11

Development Database (LDD). The system is designed to record the progress of
planning permissions in the Greater London area. In January 2005, the Mayor of
London published the first London Plan Annual Monitoring Plan. The AMR has a
number of information gaps, which in most cases are being addressed by the
London Development Database.

The Mayor of London has recently published for consultation a draft North London
Sub Regional Development Framework. The final document will identify policy
areas that may need to be considered in the first review of the London Plan. It will
also identify growth requirements for North London. The Mayor proposes to
convene annual sub-regional monitoring meetings for all partners in the sub-region
to assess progress on the growth requirements.

9.2

Consultation

There is no requirement to consult on the Annual Monitoring Report. For future
AMRs, the Council will consult with other authorities and bodies to co-ordinate the
capture and analysis of data.

The Council is encouraged to bring any monitoring problems to the attention of the
Government Office. The Council has consulted the Government Office for London
in the preparation of the AMR.

10.
10.1

10.2

10.3

Summary and Conclusion

The Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) presents available statistical data relating to
planning policies in Haringey's adopted and emerging Unitary Development Plan. It
is the first AMR and provides a monitoring framework to assess the performance
and effectiveness of planning policies, which will develop over time as monitoring
systems become more sophisticated.

The publication of the AMR is a statutory requirement under the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act. It is subject to a Best Value Performance Indicator and
the award of Planning Delivery Grant and accords with Policy IMR4 of Haringey's
emerging Unitary Development Plan.

From 2005/06, the AMR will monitor progress on the Local Development Scheme
and will monitor i{ndicators identified as part of a sustainability appraisal process.

1.
11.1

Recommendation

To approve the Annual Monitoring Report for submission to the Government Office
for London.

12.
12.1

Comments of the Director of Finance

The recommendation of this report does not give rise to any immediate financial
implications. However, the AMR should be submitted before the deadline of end of
December 2005, as it is a factor in the allocation of planning delivery grant to
authorities. ‘




Page 114

13.
13.1

Comments of the Head of Legal Services

The Head of Legal Services has been consulted and comments that the Inspector's
report on the Inquiry into Objections to the UDP is awaited.

14.
14.1

Equalities Implications

The AMR provides an analysis of planning decisions. No specific issues relating to
equalities were identified. In future the Council’s planning policies will be subject to
Equality Impact Assessment.

15.
15.1

Use of Appendices
Appendix A: Executive Summary from the Annual Monitoring Report 2005




Page 115

Appendix A

Unitary Developmeht Plan
Annual Monitoring Report 2005

Executive Summary

The Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) presents available statistical data relating to
planning policies in the Haringey's adopted and emerging Unitary Development Plan. It
also presents some background information on the Borough'’s population, housing and
economy and information on the Council's development control performance as
monitored by the Government's Best Value (BV) performance indicators.

The report covers the period 1 April 2004 - 31 March 2005.

For further information please contact:
the Planning Policy Team: 020 8489 5269
or email: udp@haringey.gov.uk

Population

o Haringey has a population of 224,300 (mid 2004 estimate) living in an area of 30
square kilometres. Haringey accounts for 3% of the total London population.

o Haringey’s population has grown by 8.4% since 1991 and is projected to grow by a
further 21.3% by 2021

o 43% of the population are from black and minority ethnic groups, the 6th highest
proportion in London, and almost half of all pupils in Haringey schools speak
English as an additional language

« Haringey has a relatively transient population. At the time of the 2001 Census, there
were 36,000 migrants in the borough, the 9th highest proportion in London.

Development Control

e In 2004/05, a total of 2,197 planning applications were determined by the Council.
Of these:-

- 78% of major applications were determined within 13 weeks compared to a
Government target of 60% (BV 109a)

- 79% of minor applications were determined within 8 weeks compared to a
Government target of 65% (BV 109b)

- 86% of other applications were determined within 8 weeks compared to a
Government target of 80% (BV 109c).

e There were 90 appeals against the Council’s decision to refuse planning
applications, of which 37% were allowed, compared to a Council target of 35% (BV
204)



Page 116

The following types of application were determined in 2004/05:

- 64% were full applications (1,405 applications)

- 3% were for Conservation Area or Listed Building Consent (57 applications)
- 4% were for Advertisement consent (100 applications)

- 4% were for reserved matters to an outline permission (83 applications)

- 25% were other types of applications (552 applications)

Housing

In 2004, 100% of completions took place on previously developed land, which
exceeded the Council target of 95% and the Government target of 60%. (BV 106)

In 2004, 834 dwellings were completed in the Borough, comprising:

- 80% new build (671 dwellings)
- 12% conversions (99 dwellings)
- 8% changes of use (64 dwellings)

Between 2002-2004, 1,766 dwellings were completed in the borough, which was
61% of the London Plan target of 2,910 dwellings for this period. At March 2005,
there was a further 5,100 dwellings in the development pipeline.

It is estimated that between 2007-2017 Haringey has capacity for an additional
6,800 dwellings, or 680 dwellings per year.

In March 2005, Haringey had an estimated 2,940 empty private sector properties,
which was the 13 highest proportion in London. In 2003/04, 875 empty private
sector properties were brought back into use.

In 2003, residential developments were completed at an average density of 81
dwellings per hectare, above the average for outer London and in accordance with
PPG3.

In 2004, 320 affordable housing units were completed, which represents 38% of all
housing completions.

In January 2005, a Gypsy Caravan Count identified two gypsy and traveller sites in
the borough, both of which were authorised Council sites. The count identified 10
caravans on these sites. No unauthorised encampments were identified, compared
to 10 unauthorised caravans in January 2003.

Employment and economic activity

e In March 2005, 7.5% of Haringey’s residents were unemployed, which was higher

than the London rate (4.5%) and more double the national unemployment rate.

In 2004/05, 6 major applications for non-residential use were granted. 28,285 sq.m.
of employment floorspace was developed in the Borough.

In 2003, Haringey was home to approximately 8,200 businesses, together
employing some 60,300 people. 95% of the businesses are small, employing fewer
than 24 people.



Page 117

In 2003, Haringey had a net growth in businesses of 0.2% compared with 0.8% in
London

Retail and Town Centres

In 2003, the Borough ‘lost’ a significant amount of retail expenditure to centres
outside of the borough, as the borough had an overall 38% market share for
convenience (food) shopping and an overall 27% market share for comparison (non
food) shopping.

It is predicted that the borough will require an additional 40,430 sq.m. of comparison
goods floorspace and an additional 5,250 sq.m. of convenience goods floorspace
by 2016

In 2002/2003, vacancy rates in Haringey’s six main town centres varied from 2% to
8%, compared to a national vacancy rate of 11%

The proportion of non A1 (retail) use varies between 31% in Wood Green
Metropolitan Centre and 46% in Green Lanes District Centre

Environment and Transport

27% of the land area of Haringey is green spaces and areas of water.
95% of Haringey residents have access to recycling services

Haringey has 1.7 hectares of open space per 1,000 of the population. For the
monitoring year 2004/2005 there has been no net loss of designated open spaces

The Open Space Study (2003) identified areas of the borough deficient in public
open space.

In 2004/05, 9 planning applications were accompanied by a travel plan

Planning Obligations

During 2004, the Council secured planning obligations and signed legal agreements
on 19 planning permissions. From these

-~ A total of £2,286,490 was negotiated

— 367 affordable housing units were negotiated

During 2004 a total of £187,557 was received

There were four instances where planning obligation monies was spent, totalling
£40,717

The main report provides more information on different categories of contributions
secured and spent by ward.



Page 118

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 119 Agenda ltem 11

Agenda ltem

The Executive on 22 November 2005

Report title: Finsbury Park CPZ Extension- Report of Statutory Consultation

Forward Plan reference number: 2005/105

Report of: Anne Fisher, Director of Environmental Services

Ward(s) affected: STROUD GREEN Report for: Key decision

1.0 Purpose

1.1 To summarise feedback from the Statutory Consultation process carried out in
July 2005.
1.2 To seek approval to authorise the making of the Traffic Management Orders

(TMO) necessary to introduce a Finsbury Park Controlled Parking Zone Extension
in specified roads, as shown in Appendix | of this report.

1.3 To seek approval to authorise modifications to the existing CPZ for the relocation
of business and pay & display bays along the roads specified in Appendix VI of
this report.

2.0 Introduction by the executive member

Following a report to the Executive in June 2005, additional consultation and a 21
day period of Statutory Consultation was carried out in July/August 2005 seeking
residents views on extending the Finsbury Park controlled parking zone. This
report summarises the feedback received and sets out the rationale for extending
the Finsbury Park CPZ. The report also provides recommendations to proceed to
statutory consultation for modifications to business and pay & display parking
bays in the existing Finsbury Park CPZ.




Page 120

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

Recommendations
It is recommended that the Executive:

Note the feedback of the further consultation and statutory consultation process
and in particular the objections received.

Agree to the extension of the Finsbury Park CPZ for the hours Monday to
Saturday 8:30am to 6:30pm, Match day and event Day Controls Monday to
Saturday 8:30am to 8:30pm, Sunday 12 noon to 4:30pm, as specified in Appendix
| of this report.

Authorise council officers to make the Traffic Management Order (TMO) and take
all the steps necessary for the introduction of a CPZ in the proposed extension
area.

Authorise council officers to proceed to Statutory Consultation for modifications of
the existing Finsbury Park CPZ for the relocation of business and pay and display
parking bays in the roads specified in Appendix VI of this report.

Inform residents of the Council’s decision and works programme in a letter to all
properties in the consultation area.

Report authorised by: Anne Fisher, Director of Environmental Services

Contact officer: Tony Kennedy, Group Manager, Traffic & Road Safety

Telephone: 0208 489 1765

4.0

4.1

4.2

Executive summary

Further to the report to the Executive in June 2005, this report sets out the
feedback from further and Statutory Consultation on the extension to the Finsbury
Park CPZ. The report demonstrates that the statutory requirements for making
TMO’s for CPZ's have been satisfied. As a result, it recommends approval to
formalise the necessary TMQ’s for the extension of the Finsbury Park CPZ, in the
roads specified in Appendix I.

Approval is also sought to enter into further Statutory Consultation for
modifications to the existing scheme. This is to provide business and pay &
display bays at locations, identified in the satisfaction survey, where demand
exists and where impact on resident parking is minimal.

5.0

Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development:

There is no change in policy




Page 121

6.0 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

6.1 The following background papers have been used in the preparation of this report:
o Executive report of 14 September 2004 - Satisfaction Survey Feedback.
. Executive report of 14 June 2005 — Formal Consultation
o Additional consultation July 2005 — returned questionnaires
o Comments received within the Statutory Consultation period

6.2 For access to background papers or any further information please contact
Beth Girma on 0208 489 1763.

7.0 Background

71 The Finsbury Park CPZ was reviewed in June/July 2004, by a satisfaction
survey in the CPZ and in roads on the periphery of the zone. The feedback
indicated support for inclusion from some roads on the periphery. It also
highlighted the need to review the distribution of business and pay and
display bays to provide for the businesses on Stroud Green Road.

7.2 A report to the Executive in September 2004 gave approval to proceed with
formal consultation for a possible extension of the existing zone. The
Council conducted formal consultation in March/April 2005 for the possible
extension of the Finsbury Park CPZ in Scarborough Road, Carlisle Road,
Upper Tollington Park, Carlton Road, Cornwall Road, Lancaster Road,
Connaught Road, Oakfield Road, Dagmar Road, Beatrice Road and
Stapleton Hall Road.

7.3 The results were presented to the Executive in June 2005 and approval
given to proceed to statutory consultation for a CPZ extension on
Scarborough Road, Carlisle Road, Upper Tollington Park, Carlton Road and
Cornwall Road. It was agreed to do further consultation with the
residents/businesses of Lancaster Road, Connaught Road, Oakfield Road,
Dagmar Road and Beatrice Road to ask if, in light of the agreed extension,
they now wished to be included, despite their initial lack of support.

7.4 It was also agreed that all the roads listed in 7.4 and 7.5 are consulted on
preferred hours of operation for the extension, as responses received
during formal consultation were unclear.

8.0 Additional consultation

8.1 Additional consultation documents (800 in total) were hand delivered to all
residents in the consultation area between the 13 and 15 July 2005. This
consisted of a letter, questionnaire and a freepost envelope (see Appendix
Il for the consultation leaflet). It asked all respondents for preferred hours of
operation. Those in the roads listed in 7.5 were asked whether or not they
would like to be included in the CPZ. The closing date was 27 July 2005
and 199 questionnaires met this deadline. This was a 25% response rate.

-3-




8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

10.0
10.1

Page 122

Of the roads opposed to parking controls at the formal consultation stage
Lancaster Road (63%) and Beatrice Road (77%) had majorities in support
of inclusion in the zone. In Connaught Road (74%) and Oakfield Road
(70%) the majority opposed inclusion. In Dagmar Road 50% of respondents
were opposed, 20% in favour and 30% undecided. Only 7 responses were
received from Dagmar Road.

As Connaught Road, Oakfield Road and Dagmar Road are in the heart of
the proposed extension they will if excluded, bear the brunt of serious
parking displacement and pressures. For these reasons, and as there is
support in the area as a whole for the scheme, it is proposed that these
roads are part of the extended zone. They were therefore included in the
statutory process.

Regarding hours of operation, 46% of respondents would prefer the zone to
operate all day i.e. 8.30am to 6.30pm; 33% of respondents opted for a
scheme that would operate for a 2-hour period during the day; the
remaining 21% did not respond to this question.

For a full breakdown of the results and summarised comments, please refer
to Appendix .

Statutory consultation

Statutory Consultation is the legal part of the process and takes the form of
a Public Notice, published in The London Gazette, the local press and on
site. This sets out the Council's intention to implement parking controls in a
specified area. The Notice has a 21-day Statutory Consultation period,
which allows all members of the public an opportunity to support or object
the proposals

A Notice of Intention was published in the London Gazette, Hornsey,
Tottenham, Muswell Hill Journals and the Islington Gazette and on site on
the 18 August 2005.

In addition to the normal Statutory Consultation procedure, leaflets
providing information regarding the statutory procedure were hand delivered
to all residents. See Appendix IV for a copy of the leaflet.

As part of Statutory Consultation the views of the following bodies were
sought Transport for London, Police (local), Fire Brigade, London
Ambulance Service, Freight Transport Association, Road Haulage
Association, RAC, Metropolitan Police (traffic), Haringey Cycling Campaign
and Haringey Accord.

Letters received during statutory consultation

The Council received eleven written representations during the statutory
period objecting to the proposed extension. Five were from residents of
Stapleton Hall Road; five from residents within the boundary of the
proposed zone; and one was received from a resident outside of the
proposed zone. See Appendix V for the summarised comments.



10.2

12.0
12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

13.0
13.1
13.2

13.3

13.4

Page 123

Representations from Stapleton Hall Road residents were from nos. 64-84.
They were included in the original consultation in March/April 2005 and
expressed support. However, at that time, the majority of roads north of the
railway line did not support the extension. It was therefore decided to
exclude this area, including Stapleton Hall Road, from the statutory
process. A meeting held with council officers, local councillors and residents
of nos. 64-84 Stapleton Hall Road showed continuing high levels of support
for inclusion. It is therefore proposed that further consultation in this area be
carried out in June/July 2006, as part of the 6 month review.

View from statutory bodies and other interested parties

The views of the following bodies were sought: AA, London Transport,
Police (local), Fire Brigade, London Ambulance Service, Freight Transport
Association, Road Haulage Association, RAC, Metropolitan Police (traffic),
Haringey Cycling Campaign and Haringey Accord. No letters of objection
have been received from the above bodies.

Summary and conclusions

Taking into account the feedback from the formal and additional
consultation, 58.7% of respondents from the proposed extended area are in
support of the extension.

Feedback from the additional and statutory consultation has shown that a
majority of roads in the area support parking controls to alleviate non-
resident parking issues. Three roads do not have a majority of residents in
support. Most residents support all day parking controls to mirror the
existing hours of operation of the Finsbury Park Zone.

As there is a high level of support for inclusion in the zone by residents of
Stapleton Hall Road, it is proposed to review the inclusion of roads north of
the railway line six months after this current extension is operational.

There is also a need to relocate business and pay & display bays to better
serve Stroud Green Road. Appendix VI sets out locations where bays can
be relocated without having a negative impact on residents.

Recommendations
It is recommended that the Executive:

Note the feedback of the further consultation and statutory consultation
process and in particular the objections received.

Agree to the extension of the Finsbury Park CPZ for the hours Monday to
Saturday 8:30am to 6:30pm, Match day and event Day Controls Monday to
Saturday 8:30am to 8:30pm, Sunday 12 noon to 4:30pm, as specified in
Appendix | of this report.

Authorise council officers to make the Traffic Management Order (TMO)
and take all the steps necessary for the introduction of a CPZ in the
proposed extension area.



13.5

13.6

14.0
14.1

14.2

14.3

15.0
15.1

15.2

15.3

Page 124

Authorise Council Officers to proceed to Statutory Consultation for
modifications of the existing Finsbury Park CPZ for the relocation of
business and pay and display parking bays in the roads specified in
Appendix VI of this report.

Inform residents of the Council’s decision and works programme in a letter
to all properties in the consultation area.

Comments of the Director of Finance

The Environmental Services capital budget for 2005/06 contains a provision
of £50k for the introduction of this scheme and some modifications to the
existing scheme. The implementation costs must not exceed the budget
provision.

A financial appraisal of the proposed extension has been undertaken and
indicates a payback period of 0.83years as summarised below:

£
Set up and implementation costs 50,000
Annual running costs 6,000
Annual income 66,500
Net income 60,500
Payback of Set Up Costs (Years) 0.83

The part year impact of running costs and income is included in the parking
account for 2005/06 and the full year effect will be reflected in next year’s
budget.

Comments of the Head of Legal Services:

Before reaching a decision to make the necessary Traffic Management
Order to implement a CPZ scheme, the Council must follow the statutory
consultation procedures pursuant to the Road Traffic Regulation Act
(“RTRA”)1984 and the Local Authorities Traffic Orders (Procedure)(England
and Wales) Regulations 1996. All objections received must be properly
considered in the light of administrative law principles, Human Rights law
and the relevant statutory powers.

The Council’s powers to make Traffic Management Orders arise mainly
under sections 6, 45, 46, 122 and 124 and schedules 1 and 9 of the RTRA
1984.

When determining what paying parking places are to be designated on the
highway, section 45(3) requires the Council to consider both the interests of
traffic and those of the owners and occupiers of adjoining properties. In
particular, the Council must have regard to: (a) the need for maintaining the
free movement of traffic, (b) the need for maintaining reasonable access to
premises, and (c) the extent to which off-street parking is available in the
neighbourhood or if the provision of such parking is likely to be encouraged
by designating paying parking places on the highway.



15.4

16.0
16.1

16.2

17.0

Page 125

By virtue of section 122, the Council must exercise its powers under the
RTRA 1984 so as to secure the expeditious, convenient and safe
movement of vehicular and other traffic including pedestrians, and the
provision of suitable and adequate parking facilities on and off the highway.
These powers must be exercised so far as practicable having regard to the
following matters:-

(a) the desirability of securing and maintaining reasonable access to
premises.

(b) the effect on the amenities of any locality affected including the
regulation and restriction of heavy commercial traffic so as to preserve
or improve amenity.

(c) the national air quality strategy.

(d)facilitating the passage of public service vehicles and securing the
safety and convenience of their passengers.

(e) any other matters appearing to the Council to be relevant.

Equalities implications

The Statutory Consultation is seeking the views of all residents/businesses
of an area and the leaflet offers translation facilities in community
languages.

Controlled parking is an effective form of deterring commuters from entering
an area. It also promotes the use of public transport, walking and cycling
and benefits the people who do not have access to a car.

Use of Appendices / Tables / Photographs

Appendix | — Proposed Finsbury Park CPZ Extension

Appendix Il — Additional Consultation Documents

Appendix Il — Analysis of Results

Appendix IV — Statutory Consultation Leaflet

Appendix V — Statutory Consultation Summary of representations
Appendix VI — Existing Finsbury Park CPZ Parking bay modifications



Page 126

Appendix |

PROPOSED FINSBURY PARK CPZ
EXTENSION AREA



NCASTER RO

av0d NOINAGNS

[REVT DESCRIPTION [CHECKED | DATE

] HARINGEY COUNCILE

NOTES,

A
m
<

Residents & Visitors
Parking Bays
Yellow Lines

Disabled Parking Bays

Dual Use— Business &
Residents Bays

Driveway or crossing

Existing CPZ boundary

SRR

Proposed CPZ Extension
boundary

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES
HIGHWAY AND TRAFFIC ENGINEERING

FINSBURY PARK AREA
PROPOSED CPZ

EXTENSION
[designed drown checked
BMG BMG
scale dafe
NTS ‘ 11,/05/05
[drg.ne.
TRS/

/2| abed



Page 128

APPENDIX I

ADDITIONAL CONSULTATION
DOCUMENTS

-10 -



Page 129

EHARINGEY COUNCILE

Environmental Services Your Ref. : Our Ref. V02008
River Park House

1st floor (South)

225 High Road

Wood Green

London N22 8HQ

Minicom:

Haringey Council This matter is being dealt with
Direct Line: 0208 489 1765 Fax: 0208 489 1251 by Tony Kennedy

Date: 12 July 2005
For a large print copy, contact 0208 489 1225

Resident/Occupier,

Scarborough Road, Carlisle Road, 91-123
& 64-94 Upper Tollington Park, Carlton
Road, Cornwall Road, Lancaster Road,
Connaught Road, 2-48 7 1-35 Oakfield
Road, Dagmar Road and Beatrice Road.

Dear Resident/Occupier,
Finsbury Park CPZ Extension

As you may be aware, the Council consulted on proposals for a possible extension of the
Finsbury Park CPZ in March 2005. The feedback indicated support in a number of roads for
an extension of the CPZ and this was reported to the Council’'s Executive at its meeting of
14 June 2005.

It was agreed by the Executive that the Council would proceed to Statutory Consultation for
an extension of the Finsbury Park CPZ in the following roads: Scarborough Road, Carlisle
Road, Upper Tollington Park (between Parkland Walk and Endymion Road), Carlton
Road and Cornwall Road.

It was further agreed that Lancaster Road, Connaught Road, Oakfield Road, Dagmar
Road and Beatrice Road would also be included in the statutory process. Although
respondents from these roads did not show initial support for inclusion in the CPZ, they will
be afforded the opportunity to confirm, if, in light of the above roads i.e, Scarborough Road
etc being integrated in the Finsbury Park CPZ, they now wished to be included. The
feedback received from these roads, by completing and returning the attached
questionnaire by 27 July will determine if they are to be included.

The consultation responses regarding the hours of operation of the CPZ extension were
unclear. Therefore the Council is also affording all residents/businesses of roads included in
the statutory process the opportunity to confirm if they would favour a 2-hour zone i.e,
10am-noon or an all day scheme i.e, 8.30am-6.30pm. The operational days will mirror the
existing scheme. Please complete and return the attached questionnaire by 27 July to
confirm your preference regarding the hours of operation of the extended zone.

Director: Anne Fisher
Asst. Director: Beverley Taylor
Head of Highways: Alex Constantinid



Page 130

Statutory Consultation is the legal part of the process and takes the form of a Public Notice,
which is published in the local press setting out the Council's intention to implement parking
controls in a specified area. The Notice has a 21-day Statutory Consultation period that will
commence on the 4 August.

We will also be posting the Notice at various visible locations within the area. The Notice
explains whom to write to when making comments. This allows all interested parties an
opportunity to make representation regarding the Councils intentions.

If you have any questions, please contact the Traffic and Road Safety Group on 0208 489
1763 or via email at Bethlehem.Girma@haringey.gov.uk.

Yours faithfully

Clir Hillman
Executive Member for Environment

Director: Anne Fisher
Asst. Director: Beverley Taylor
Head of Highways: Alex Constantinid



Page 131

QUESTIONNAIRE

FINSBURY PARK CONTROLLED PARKING ZONE

EXTENSION

Name:(OPtioNal). ... ... e
Address:eSSeNtial).. ... ..o e
Postcode:(eSSential)........ ..o e
Please indicate your preference by ticking one of the boxes below

For the Residents/Occupiers
Lancaster Road, Connaught Road, 2-48 7 1-35 Oakfield Road, Dagmar Road and Beatrice Road

Q1) Would you like your road to be included in the Controlled Parking Zone?

YES |:| NO |:|

For Resident/Occupiers of,

Scarborough Road, Carlisle Road, 91-123 & 64-94 Upper Tollington Park, Carlton Road,
Cornwall Road, Lancaster Road, Connaught Road, 2-48 7 1-35 Oakfield Road, Dagmar Road
and Beatrice Road

Q2) What is your prefer operating hours of the Zone?

Two Hours a day (10am - 12noon) |:| All day (8.30 - 6.30pm) |:|

Are there any comments that you would like to make?

N.B. Due to the provision of Local Government (Access to information) Act 1985,
You cannot be assured of confidentiality, as any letter received will be available for public
inspection.

PLEASE RETURN IN THE PRE-PAID ENVELOPE PROVIDED BY:
27 July 2005

Director: Anne Fisher
Asst. Director: Beverley Taylor
Head of Highways: Alex Constantinid




Page 132

APPENDIX 1II

Analysis of Results

- 14 -



Finsbury Park CPZ Extension

Q1) Would you like your road to be included in
the Controlled Parking Zone?

Q2) What is your prefer operating hours of the

Total Distributed 800
Total Returned 199
Returns by Road
Carlisle Road 5
Carlton Road 6
Cornwall Road 19
Scarborough Road (18

Upper Tollington
Park

21

TOTAL 69
Returns by Road

Beatrice Road 22
Connaught Road |27
Dagmar Road 10
Lancaster Road 51
Oakfield Road 20

TOTAL

130

YES [NO |NO RESPONSE
2 0 3

4 0 2

4 3 12

5 0 0

3 2 16

18 |5 33

YES |[NO |NO RESPONSE
17 |5 0

7 20 |0

2 5 3

32 |16 |3

6 14 |0

64 |60 |6

Zone?

All day|2 hrs(10am -|Blank
(8.30am- 12noon)

6.30pm)

4 1 0

5 1 0

7 9 3

12 5 1

12 9 0

40 25 4

All day|2 hrs(10am -|Blank
(8.30am- 12noon)

6.30pm)

12 5 5

6 8 13

2 5 3

20 15 16

7 4 0

47 37 37

- 15 -

cc| abed



Page 134

Comments by street - Additional Questionnaires

Beatrice Road

- | would like to see the garage allocated bays, as they seem to park everywhere

- we do not need all day controls

- As this scheme has in effect been forced upon us, the least you can do is improve the
current system for obtaining permits...

- we need 24hour CPZ as it is very hard to park at night

Carlisle Road

- many cars park in our street after 12pm

- | would be happy if it included match days, special events & concerts.

Carlton Road

- 10am to noon will mean that there will be no parking when we get home, which is the
major problem.

- If we are left out of the extension, Carlton Road will become very congested and
parking will be impossible.

Connaught Road

- | am concerned about the knock-on effect if all roads in this area become part of the
CPZ. | hope we can reconsider this once the scheme is in place.

- Don't you make enough money out of us!!

- | would prefer not to have a CPZ in my street. | do not support the scheme.

- CPZ will not solve the parking problem, as it will create less parking space. | do not
favour paying for permits and not being guaranteed a space.

- | am not in favour of CPZ - it will make parking problems worse by reducing parking
spaces. Paying for a permit does not guarantee you a space.

- All day zone will prevent unlawful use of this road for car maintenance business.

- Connaught Road only requires CPZ on match days. It is easy to park on most other
occasions.

- I would like the road to remain as it is, as there is no charge

- | welcome double yellow lines to improve junctions

- We seem to pay so many parking charges!!

- stop trade parking in the street

- | have not supported the CPZ in the past, and | still do not support it. If you are
concerned about parking availability you should concentrate on removing dumped
vehicles.

Cornwall Road

- I do not want the CPZ at all

- | retract my original support. | do not want my road in the CPZ. Original document did
not indicate that a significant fee would be incurred, this was misleading and has led me
to change my mind.

- I do not want the CPZ

- do not want the restrictions on Saturday and Sunday if possible

Dagmar Road

- FP CPZ is an inconvenience to residents etc in the area. There is no way it helps the
people living here.

- There is no parking problem. CPZ only pushes parking problems to another area.

- CPZ will mean that residents will have to fork out more money for parking.

Lancaster Road

- There is no parking problem, no CPZ.

- Double yellow lines on both sides of Lancaster Road should be one side only, which
would allow further parking.

- Only yellow lines on one side of Lancaster Road from Stapleton Hall Road to 91
Lancaster.

- 16 -



Page 135

| feel that additional controls should be in place on match days.

Parking is now very difficult. It is imperative that the CPZ is extended, if not in the area,
then at least into Lancaster Road.

We only support the 2-hour zone, we do not support an all day CPZ.

If our road is excluded from a widening of the scheme, then parking will become a
disaster.

| only agree to CPZ if traffic calming measures (humps etc) are included for our road,
as it is very dangerous.

| do not want a CPZ, but if you are going to do it, | would prefer 10-12noon.

implement immediately

it makes sense as it is currently impossible to park due to commuter parking

Carlton road should be for residents only. People from Lancaster and Oakfield always
park here

If Lancaster must be included | would prefer the full day restrictions.

No CPZ

Yes, it should be until 8pm.

| am a blue badge holder that heavily relies on carers - namely family - who stay for
long periods at a time. This will not benefit them.

parking will be impossible if this road is not included

parking in Lancaster road is a nightmare, | am in favour of the CPZ

We do not want the CPZ.

| object to paying an annual fee to park my car outside my own home. If the CPZ for
Lancaster was to be free, | would support it.

there is also a major problem with speeding on Lancaster Road

| am a pensioner with no car, but if driver friends visit me | will have to pay.

we are a 2 car family and believe we should have 2 votes

Our main parking problems start after 6.30pm. There are times when we can not even
gain access in or out due to the cul-de-sac being packed with cars.

Oakfield Road

Sc

There is no parking problem.

CPZ is not necessary, as there is no parking problem.

If the CPZ goes ahead we do not want charges for the right to park on our road. We
also don’t want to pay for visitors. | m not in favour of the scheme on Oakfield Road.
arborough Road

CPZ time needs to be all day as our road suffers from casual shoppers to Finsbury
Park, as well as commuters. Existing zone is all day, so it would seem absurd if they did
not marry up.

Guest permits should be free and available at short notice. Perhaps email permits!!

A 2 hour or 1 hour in the afternoon would be preferable to stop the commuter parking,
but still allow me to receive visitors.

Will all residents be able to purchase permits. | live at 103 (outside zone) but if | can't
buy permits then it will be impossible to park.

We support the CPZ. Parking here is a nightmare. Its used as a car park for commuters
and for match day goers

| am disabled and require care, your restrictions prevent this both financially and by
limiting the number of visitors.

Parking problems are caused by commuters. 2hr zone will still allow for visitors

we still think the whole CPZ should be removed from this area

Access to my flat is from Lancaster Road, thus | park there too. | fully support the
extension of the zone. As a minimum, all junctions should be protected with yellow
lines.

-17 -



Page 136

APPENDIX IV

Statutory Consultation Leaflet

- 18 -



Page 137

HARINGEY COUNCILES

Environmental Services Your Ref. : Our Ref. V02008
River Park House

1st floor (South)

225 High Road

Wood Green

London N22 8HQ

Minicom:

Haringey Council This matter is being dealt
Direct Line: 0208 489 1765 Fax: 0208 489 1251 with by Tony Kennedy

Date: 15 August 2005
Dear Resident/Occupier,
STATUTORY CONSULTATION
Re: Finsbury Park Controlled Parking Zone Extension

Haringey Council conducted consultation in July 2005 to seek your views on the operational
hours of the proposed extension and, to confirm if residents of Lancaster Road, Connaught
Road, Oakfield Road, Dagmar Road and Beatrice Road, wished to be included in the
extended CPZ, in light of other neighbouring roads being included and due to the likely
displacement if they were excluded.

The feedback concluded that the operational hours of the proposed controlled parking zone
will be Monday to Saturday between 8:30am and 6:30pm. The proposed hours and days of
operation are identical to the restrictions in the existing zone and will include Match and
Event Day restrictions.

The feedback received from residents in Lancaster Road and Beatrice Road indicated
support for inclusion in the proposed zone. Residents of Connaught Road, Oakfield Road
and Dagmar Road against. Geographically these roads that have not supported inclusion
are positioned in the heart of the proposed CPZ and in our opinion would bear the brunt of
serious parking displacement, it has therefore been decided that exclusion from the
proposals would not be sensible and hence will be included in the next stage of consultation
known as statutory process. Residents of these roads will have a further opportunity to
make representation during the statutory process.

Statutory Consultation is the legal part of the process and takes the form of a Public Notice,
which is published in the local press setting out the Council's intention to implement parking
controls in a specified area. The Notice has a 21-day Statutory Consultation period that will
commence on the 18 August 2005. This allows all interested parties an opportunity to
support or object to the proposals.

The public Notice will be posted at various visible locations within the area and will also be
published in the following journals: - Islington Gazette, Camden Gazette, Hornsey Journal,
Tottenham Journal, Muswell Hill Journal The London Gazette, and The London Gazette.

Director: Anne Fisher
Asst. Director: Beverley Taylor
Head of Highways: Alex Constantinides



Page 138

If you have any questions or required any additional information, please contact the Traffic
and Road Safety Group on 0208 489 1763 or via email at
Bethlehem.Girma@haringey.gov.uk.

If you want to object to the proposed scheme or make other representation you should send
a statement in writing to the Traffic and Road Safety Group, River Park House, 1* Floor
(South), 225 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8HQ by 14 September 2005

Yours faithfully

Clir Hillman
Executive Member for Environment

Director: Anne Fisher
Asst. Director: Beverley Taylor
Head of Highways: Alex Constantinides



Page 139

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

What is a Controlled Parking Zone
(CP2)?

A Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) is an
area where all on-street parking is
controlled either by vyellow lines or
designated parking bays.

CPZ’s give priority to residents and local
businesses, and their visitors, who must
display permits or vouchers to show their
entitlement to park.

Outside the hours of operation parking
remains unrestricted, unless otherwise
stated by additional time-plate signs.

Double yellow lines prohibit parking at any
time regardless of the CPZ.

CPZ’s are usually located in town centres
and areas surrounding underground and
rail stations where parking most affects
the local residents.

CPZ’s ease congestion caused by illegal
and obstructive parking by introducing
waiting restrictions where parking is
undesired.

Some roads further away from the source
of the problem are included in the zone to
prevent displaced motorists from moving
into these roads.

A permit for one CPZ does not allow the
holder to park in any other CPZ.

How do CPZ’s work?

Controlled Parking Zones (CPZ’s) work by
ensuring that vehicles park in designated
bays at certain times of the day. Any
vehicles that are parked illegally are liable
to receive a Penalty Charge Notice.

CPZ’s operate at different times of the day
depending on the parking demands of the
area and each zone is designed to deal
with the type of problem in the area.

Director: Anne Fisher
Asst. Director: Beverley Taylor
Head of Highways: Alex Constantinides

Different types of bays are provided for
specific groups of motorists. In this
instance, there will be four types of bays
provided:

- Residential - for residents of the roads in
the area and there visitors. A valid
parking permit must be displayed.

- Business - for businesses that require a
vehicle for business use. A valid parking
permit must be displayed.

- Dual Use Bays - for business and
residents. A valid parking permit must be
displayed.

- Dual Use Pay & Display Bays -
combined resident only and pay and
display parking. A valid parking permit
must be displayed.

During the hours of operation of the CPZ,
all vehicles must be parked in the
appropriate bays. At other times the
parking bays do not apply and parking is
unrestricted except where yellow lines
operate for longer periods.

Types of Parking Permits

Parking permits are only needed within
the hours of operation of the CPZ and
must be visibly displayed on the vehicle.

Applications may be sent and received by
post.

Permits may also be obtained on the day
over the counter at the Parking Shop, 247
High Road, Wood Greed N22 8NZ.

Application forms for all types of permits
may be obtained by phoning the parking
helpline on 0208 489 1234 Monday to
Friday 8am to 6pm. Forms can also be
downloaded from the website -
www.haringey.gov.uk.

Visitor permits in the form of scratch cards
may be purchased in advance. These are
purchased through the Haringey Parking
Team.



Page 140

The Council sends further information to
residents before any scheme is put in
place.

Residential Permits - residents who live
in the zone are entitled to apply for a
resident permit. Residents who display a
valid permit can park in resident’s bays
and some shared-use bays.

Short-stay visitor Permits - people
visiting the area (friends, relatives, etc.)
have a number of options.

They can:

e Park in a shared-use bay and
purchase a pay and display ticket from
a machine.

e Obtain a visitor's permit from the
resident they are visiting and display it
in their windscreen. (Visitors’ permits
will need to be purchased in advance
by residents).

Weekend  Visitor  Permits (only
applicable if the scheme operates on
weekends) - people wishing to visit
residents within the zone for a weekend
may use a weekend permit. (These
permits will need to be purchased in
advance by residents).

Long-stay visitor Permits - people
visiting residents for longer periods
(including trades people) may use long
term visitor permits. These allow parking
for 2 weeks. Residents who hire a car for
a short period can also purchase these
permits. (These permits will need to be
purchased in advance by residents).

Business Permits - a number of parking
bays will be provided for businesses within
the area to provide regular parking for
vehicles used in the course of business.

Trade Permits - builders and other trades
people, who work for local residents and
businesses, are entitled to apply for a
Trade Permit. This will allow them to park
in a resident’s, pay & display & business
parking bays.

Individuals will have to satisfy the Council
of the need for such a facility in order to
Director: Anne Fisher

Asst. Director: Beverley Taylor
Head of Highways: Alex Constantinides

avoid commuter parking. Those who
qualify will be issued with a Trade permit.

Cost of permits

There is a charge for all of the mentioned
parking permits. This is to cover the costs
of operating and enforcing the scheme.
Any surplus money is “ring-fenced” for
reinvestment in the Public Highway.

Current Permit Charges

Concessionary rates do apply to residents
aged 60 years and above or residents
who are registered disabled. Proof of age
or disability is required. Please contact the
parking service for further information.

Residents Parking Permit - £25 for a 12 month

permit, less than 50p a week

Short-stay Visitor Permit — 2-hour maximum

stay.

- £3.60 per 12 set (60 in any 3 month
period)

-  £6.00 per 20 set (60 in any 3 month
period)

Weekend Visitor Permit - £5 each (12 in a 12
month period)

Long-stay visitor Permit - £8 each, for a 2
week period. (2 in a 12 month period)

Business Permit - £225
12 months (Business bays only)

Further Features of a CPZ

Parking for Businesses, Services and
Community Users

One of the major objectives of Controlled
Parking Zones is to give a degree of
priority to the parking needs of residents.
It is clear that businesses, services and
community users also have legitimate
parking requirements that need to be
catered for. In existing controlled parking
zones the Council operates a business
Parking Permit Scheme that enables
businesses to purchase permits which
allows them to park in business bays or
shared used permit holder bays. The
criteria for eligibility for Business Permits




Page 141

(which currently cost £225.00 per annum)

is strict and may be defined as follows: -

- Require regular and unavoidable use
of a vehicle to run their business
Transport bulky and / or high value
goods on a regular and unavoidable
basis
Work unsociable hours (when public
transport is not readily available).

Permits are not available just for travelling
to work by car (unless these journeys
have to be made at unsociable hours).
Nevertheless, they are not only available
for ~commercial businesses:  other
employers - e.g. local schools and health
providers - may also apply. The same
criteria must be satisfied.

Loading and Unloading - A vehicle may
load and unload for a maximum period of
20 minutes in any part of the zone when
delivering or collecting goods, unless
loading / unloading restrictions are in
place. Loading / unloading must be
continuous and must involve heavy / bulky
goods (not normally shopping).

An exception to this is for moving house,
when vehicles may wait longer than 20
minutes whilst being loaded / unloaded,
provided they are not causing an
obstruction.

Moovit scheme - A delivery Vehicle
taking part in the Moovit scheme will not
get ticketed if they are delivering.

Moovit is a device fitted on delivery
vehicles, which incorporates a transmitter
and an exterior membrane button.

The driver carries a small convenient
audio receiver with him/her when he/she
leaves the vehicle. Should a parking
attendant need to recall the driver, then he
or she need simply push the button on the
vehicle.

Suspension of Parking Places

In certain circumstances the Police or the
Council may suspend parking bays, for
example to allow for building operations,
domestic removals, weddings, funerals or
special events etc.

Director: Anne Fisher
Asst. Director: Beverley Taylor
Head of Highways: Alex Constantinides

Vehicle Crossovers (Driveways) and
recommended pedestrian road
crossing points.

Parking bays will not be placed in front of
a foot-way crossover where vehicle
access has been provided for a property,
or at recommended pedestrian crossing
points. A yellow line will be provided at
these points to enable the Council and the
Police to carry out enforcement during the
operational hours of the CPZ.

Enforcement of Regulations

Any driver who parks a vehicle in
contravention of parking restrictions will
be issued with a Penalty Charge Notice
(parking ticket).

Haringey Council is responsible for
enforcing  parking restrictions  and
uniformed parking attendants would
regularly patrol the area to ensure that
adequate enforcement takes place.

Signs and Environmental Issues

Signs will be placed on existing lamp
columns or on boundary walls of
properties where possible, subject to
statutory consultation. This is to reduce
the amount of street furniture. Only where
it is absolutely necessary will sign posts
be erected for signs.

Special Parking Groups

Disabled Badge Holders (blue / orange
badge holders - Any vehicle displaying a
Disabled Badge will be able to park:

in any residents’ bay within the zone;
on yellow lines without loading
restrictions for a maximum of 3 hours
provided they are not causing an
obstruction;
in any Disabled Bay, for a maximum of
three hours.
Doctors - the existing designated doctors
parking bays provided for exclusive use by
doctors will remain and no additional
charges will be made.

Motorcycles - these can park in any of
the parking bays, free of charges, apart
from designated disabled or doctor
parking bay.



Page 142

APPENDIX V

Statutory Consultation Summarised
Comments

-4 -



Page 143

Comments by street - Statutory Consultation

Beatrice Road

- No justification has been provided for the extension of a CPZ to this area and | am
concerned with CPZ permits which affects people like my self who are over sixty five
years of age retired and living on pensions unable to afford the permits of friends,
relatives health visitors and trades people will be become increasingly isolated and all
permits for those over sixty should be fee.

Cornwall Road
- | object to the proposed extension is seems from reading letter of 12" July that although
this scheme was not supported you are still trying to impose it through the back door.
Connaught Road
- | object to the proposed CPZ, | see no need for parking restrictions to be imposed.
Lancaster Road
- | am against the CPZ because | see this as another form of taxation.
Oakfield Road

- | strongly object to the proposed extension of the scheme into Oakfield Road. | objected
at the initial consultation, as did a majority of my fellow residents of oakfield Road, not to
mention Connaught and Dagmar Roads. | do not accept you reasons for ignoring the
wishes of the majority of residents.

Ferme Park Road

- The results of a consultation carried out in April 05 shows that the majority of residents
in the proposed zone are opposed to an extension of the CPZ of the seventeen roads
consulted, only six were in favour; one result was tied and the remaining ten were
against. It is unfair that those roads Connaught road, Dagmar road and oakfield road
that have consistently rejected are now being forced to accept it against their will;

Stapleton Hall Road

- | would like to voice my concern that the decision has been taken to include Lancaster
Road, Connaught, Dagmar, Beatrice Road and Oakfield Road. If this roads are included
in the zone Stapleton Hall Road between 70 and 84 is going to be a few yards not only
from the end of the existing CPZ but also the end of the new one in Lancaster Road.
Considering that we are already affected by displacement parking and have the
additional problem of the shops this going to make the situation even more intolerable.

- | am a resident of Stapleton Hall Road and | would like to voice my objections to the fact
that Stapleton Hall Road has not been included in the proposal.

-  We understand from the report published following the consultation that an
overwhelming majority of those affected in Stapleton Hall Road were in favour. Despite
this level of support, it was decided not to recommend the extension of CPZ to our part
of Stapleton Hall Road. The stated logic for Lancaster Road, Connaught Road, Oakfield
Road, Dagmar Road, and Beatrice Road being included in the statutory process was
that, although these roads did not initial support for the scheme, they should be afforded
the opportunity to be included in light of the proposed extension and possible
displacement parking that may arise. The residents of Stapleton Hall Road who were
initially considered for inclusion in the extension must be afforded the same opportunity.

- 1 do not agree to the extensions to Lancaster Road, Connaught Road, Oakfield Road,
Dagmar Road and Beatrice Road, this will now impact on our part of Stapleton Hall
Road, in light of the proposed extension at the very least we should be afforded the
opportunity to be included in the CPZ.

- We are residents of Stapleton Hall Road parking in our street was relatively
straightforward but changed dramatically for the worse when the Finsbury Park CPZ was
introduced. We also suffer significant problems parking on days when arsenal is playing

-25-



Page 144

APPENDIX VI
Existing Finsbury Park CPZ
Parking bay reviews

- 26 -



Page 145

Finsbury Park CPZ, Review

Woodstock Road

e Change the existing shared used (Residents and P&D) Parking bays in the south
eastern side of Woodstock Road, into Shared use (Residents and Business) parking
bays.

e Change some of the existing residents Parking bays into Shared use (Residents and
Business) parking bays.

Ennis Road

e Change some of the existing Residents Bay in the north western side into Business and
Shared used (Residents and Business) parking bays.

Perth Road

e Change the existing residents parking bays located in the north western side into Shared
use (Residents and Business) parking bays.

Upper Tollington Park

e Change the existing Residents parking bays located in the north western side into
Shared use (Residents and Business) parking bays.

Marquis Road

e Change the existing Business parking bays located on both sides of the road into Pay
and Display parking bays only.

Oxford Road
e Change some of the existing Residents Parking bays into Business Parking bays.
Florence Road

e Change some of the existing Residents bays located in Florence Road, into Shared
used bays (Business and Residents).

-7 -



Page 146

Restriction

Restriction

Restriction

Finsbury Park

CPZ Area

KEY

Parking Bays

Yellow. Lines

PN Residents & Visitors

o
2 4 £

b= o 2 b

o o - o o

e 4 %

8 £ /B >

®8 ¥ Uag g 0
o s 2 o a 2
e @y o @ =
°5 PO -

@ g & mE g o

28 2ow P8 pd o

“Tes gty 5 B
5>8% & Ban =% B
g5 @ 334 335 8

Afm 5 @ Aa¢ @ od §

-28 -



Page 147

-29 -



Page 148

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 149 Agenda ltem 12

Agenda item:

The Executive 22 November 2005

Report Title: DEFRA Consultation — Response to Proposals to Change the Levy Default

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable):

Report of: Director of Environmental Services

Wards(s) affected: All Wards Report for:

1. Purpose

1.1 To inform Members of DEFRA consultation taking place on proposed changes to
the Statutory Joint Waste Disposal Authorities levy apportionment basis and the
Council’s response to the consultation paper.

2. Introduction by Executive Member

In the early Autumn of 2005, the Government carried out a brief consultation on
changing the default charging arrangements for Joint Waste Disposal Authorities
(JWDAs). Haringey is a member of a JWDA. Haringey is a member of the North
London Waste Authority (NLWA). The current default charging arrangement system is
unfair as it is based on an apportionment in proportion to each borough’s Council Tax
base. This is unsatisfactory as there is no direct relationship between the amount of
waste produced by each borough and the levy that each borough pays. Neither does
the present arrangement reflect the principle that ‘the producer pays’.

Haringey has worked hard to increase recycling and reduce household waste. The
new charging arrangements proposed by the Government would not only be fairer,
but would encourage other councils to reduce waste, invest more in recycling and
promote the reuse of materials. Although the Government’s proposals would be
largely cost neutral for Haringey, their intention to introduce the new levy
arrangements for the financial year 2006/07 may result in a degree of uncertainty for
constituent boroughs, who are members of JWDAs, until very late in the budget
setting cycle, therefore the Council, whilst supporting the proposed changes, is also
calling for transitional relief for those boroughs who would be adversely affected by
these changes in the next financial year.




Page 150

3. Recommendations
3.1 That Members note:

() the proposed changes to the North London Waste Authority (NLWA) levy
apportionment basis and it's estimated impact for the Council

(i) and confirm the Council’s response to the consultation paper which had to
be submitted to DEFRA by 28 October 2005.

Report Authorised by: Anne Fisher, Director of Environmental Services
(ext 4523)

Contact Officer: Stephen McDonnell , Head of Waste Management (ext 5661)

4. Executive Summary

4.1 The NLWA is largely funded by a levy that at present is paid by the constituent
borough councils in proportion to their Council Tax bases. This way of apportioning
the levy is the 'default' arrangement that applies if no other means of apportionment
is unanimously agreed by the boroughs. A Government consultation paper
proposes to change the law so that, from next year onwards, the default
arrangement would require the levy to be made up of two parts. One part would
meet the Authority's disposal costs of the household waste that it receives from the
boroughs, and this part would be paid by the boroughs in proportion to their
tonnages of household waste in the most recent completed financial year. The
other part would meet all the Authority's other costs, including the transport and
disposal costs of civic amenity waste, and would be paid by the boroughs in
proportion to their Council Tax bases. Responses are sought by 28 October 2005.

4.2 This report describes the proposals and their likely effects for the NLWA levy on the
Council and the other constituent borough councils and proposes a response to the
consultation paper.

5 Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if applicable)

5.1 Proposed Government changes to the way Joint Waste Disposal Authority’s levy is
apportioned.

6 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

6.1 DEFRA consultation paper on changes to the joint waste disposal authorities
funding levy, 26" August 2005

6.2 NLWA'’s report DEFRA consultation on levy apportionment, 19 October 2005.




Page 151

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

8.1

Background

Existing levy arrangements

The NLWA is mostly funded by a levy paid by the seven constituent borough
councils including Haringey. By law, which applies also to the other five Joint
Waste Disposal Authorities (JWDAs), the levy is apportioned between the
boroughs in such proportions as the boroughs may unanimously agree. If there is
no unanimous agreement, the law specifies that a default basis of apportionment in
proportion to each borough’s Council Tax base shall apply.

The NLWA levy has always been apportioned on the default basis because there
has never been unanimous agreement on any alternative method. By definition,
any change in the apportionment method would be financially disadvantageous for
at least one of the boroughs. This makes the necessary unanimous agreement
hard to achieve - particularly when, as in North London’s case, the financial effects
for the boroughs would be significant.

The need for change

However, in the last decade or so attention has increasingly been given to the case
for payment to be made in proportion to the tonnages that boroughs deliver to the
Authority. The main element in each Waste Disposal Authority’s expenditure is the
amount of waste that comes from the constituent boroughs for disposal. However,
when the levy is apportioned on the default Council Tax base, there is no direct
relationship between the expenditure incurred in disposing of the waste from each
borough and the levy each borough pays.

In consequence, there has been a view in most constituent councils that the default
Council Tax base is unsatisfactory, and that there is a case for a change in the law
so that boroughs would pay on some form of tonnage basis. The higher a
borough’s tonnage the more it would pay, and vice versa. This would accord with
the “producer pays” principle, would give boroughs more direct control over their
own costs, and would be an encouragement to efficiency savings, and promoting
waste minimisation, reuse and recycling.

The need for change has been greatly magnified by the substantial increases in
waste management costs that now are beginning to be generated by increasing
environmental standards being imposed on waste disposal contractors, the Landfill
Tax and, in the future, compliance with the Landfill Directive.

DEFRA’S CONSULTATION

The consultation paper was issued to all Joint Waste Disposal Authorities and all
their constituent borough councils at the end of August along with draft statutory
regulations.



8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

Page 152

In addition, DEFRA is also consulting on this matter with the Local Government
Association, the Greater London Authority, the Association of London Government,
and some other relevant professional/representative bodies.

DEFRA officials have already held a consultation meeting with representatives of
the NLWA and constituent boroughs at Haringey Civic Centre on 20" September.
DEFRA officials similarly have attended consultation meetings in the other five
Joint Waste Disposal Authorities areas.

Responses are sought by no later than Friday 28 October 2005, which is only nine
weeks after the consultation began. The paper notes that this allows less time than
the Government's usually recommended twelve weeks because of the need for the
new arrangements to be in place before the end of December in time for the setting
of budgets for next financial year. The Executive Member for Environment and
Conservation therefor submitted a draft response. The Council’s response is
attached at Appendix 1.

The consultation paper summarises the background and the case for change,
which is similar to that set out above. It also sets out DEFRA's proposals and their
rationale. A major constraint is that, because DEFRA intends to change the funding
mechanism in time for next financial year, the changes are limited to those that can
be implemented through secondary legislation alone.

In essence, the proposals are that the Joint Waste Disposal Authorities would
continue to be mainly funded by levying upon their constituent borough councils
and, by their unanimous agreement, the constituent borough councils would be
able to decide for themselves how to apportion the levy. However, in the absence
of their unanimous agreement, the present default arrangements of a levy that is
wholly apportioned on Council Tax base would be replaced with a levy that is made
up of two parts, each of which is apportioned differently. The principal areas of
budget cost are set out below:

8.6.1 Collected household waste levy

One part (which is referred to as the "collected household waste levy")
would be to meet the budgeted costs of dealing with the household
waste collected by the boroughs and delivered to North London Waste
Authority for treatment or disposal. The boroughs would pay this part of
the levy in proportion to their relative tonnages of household waste
delivered in the most recent complete financial year for which data is
available. In other words, the household waste tonnages delivered in
2004-05 would be used to apportion this part of the levy for 2006-07.

8.6.2  Other expenditure levy
The other part (which is referred to as the "other expenditure levy")
would cover the remaining budgeted costs and administration, and
would be apportioned between the boroughs on their relative Council
Tax bases, as at present.

8.6.3  Civic Amenity/Re-use & Recycling Centre Waste



8.6.4

8.6.5

8.6.6

Page 153

It is envisaged that the proposed repeal of Section 1 of the refuse
Disposal Amenity Act 1978 will result in: -

1. The categorisation of waste delivered to CA/RRCs falling in line with
the recognised national interpretation as set out in the Environment
Protection Act 1990 together with the resulting Controlled Waste
Regulations 1992.

2. The provision of CA/RRCs to revert to the waste disposal authority
as prescribed in Section 51 of the Environment Protection Act
1990.

Whilst, the Council agrees with the reclassification of the waste
delivered to CA/RRCs, it is concerned that London Boroughs in
JWDA areas should still be able to exercise its local democratic
right to continue to operate its own CA/RRCs’ sites. Haringey
Council has invested significant amount of capital and ongoing
revenue in the development of its RRCs in recent years. This
investment has enabled the Council to recycle household waste at
these sites providing a vital strategic role in Haringey being able to
meet the recycling targets set by Government. However, the council
does agree with Defra’s suggestion, that in order to ensure that
these sites remain open to all residents within the NLWA area, the
costs for transport and disposal of waste from CA/RRCs’ sites
should continue to be funded via a council tax base within NLWA'’s
‘other expenditure levy’.

Non-household wastes

Separate payment to the Joint Waste Disposal Authorities by their
constituent borough councils for the disposal of collected commercial
waste under Section 52(9) of the Environmental Protection Act 1990
would continue.

Recycling Credits

Payment of recycling credits by the Joint Waste Disposal Authorities to
their constituent boroughs would cease, since the tonnage based
household waste levy inherently would provide the equivalent financial
incentive for the boroughs to undertake recycling. The incentive for
boroughs would simply be the reduced levy contribution that would
follow from recycling waste and not sending it to the SUWDA.

Transitional relief

The consultation paper offers no transitional arrangements.
Discussions with DEFRA before and during the consultation meeting
on 20™ September have raised the possibility of statutory transitional
relief arrangements being provided to assist constituent borough
councils that would be substantially adversely affected by the changed



9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

Page 154

funding mechanism. DEFRA officials are currently not able to confirm if
the Government will be able to support transitional relief financially.

THE DEFRA PROPOSALS IN PRACTICE

Total amount to be levied

If DEFRA's proposals are implemented in time for the setting of next year's budget
and levy, the main part of the 2006-07 budget and levy process would be the same
as it is now. In other words, as before, the NLWA would agree its budget, including
its non-household waste charges, and then decide the total amount to be levied. It
is not entirely clear, however, how NLWA should treat any balances. Currently
these are taken into account when deciding the total amount to be levied. It
appears, however, that in the future these may be apportioned either between the
two parts of the levy, or they may be apportioned wholly to either the collected
household waste levy or the other expenditure levy. From a practical point of view
it would appear best to apportion balances in proportion to the budgeted costs for
each element of the levy, i.e. the amount that needs to be financed before applying
balances.

Fixing the size of the levy’s two parts

Having agreed the sum to be levied, and assuming no unanimous agreement by
the constituent borough councils to do something different, the NLWA would divide
the total amount to be levied into two parts. The division would be into firstly the net
amount budgeted for collected waste, and secondly for other expenditure.

Apportionment of the two levy parts between the constituent boroughs

After determining the total amounts of each part of the levy, the previous year's
household waste tonnages notified by the constituent borough councils would be
used to apportion the household waste levy according to the draft statutory
instrument. The Council Tax bases notified by the constituent boroughs would be
used to apportion the other expenditure levy.

Non-household waste tonnages and charges

DEFRA's proposals would result in all the boroughs' delivered waste being paid for
on one form of tonnage basis or another. Household waste would be paid for by a
levy apportioned on a previous year's household waste tonnage. Non-household
waste would be paid for on the tonnes delivered in the year in question, but some
agreed method would still be needed to determine boroughs' non-household waste
tonnages.

The NLWA had been working to develop a new, agreed way of assessing the
amount of non-household waste contained within the mixed municipal waste
stream from each constituent council. This work, however, was subsumed into
developing a voluntary tonnage-based levy system. Now that a statutory tonnage-
based levy is being proposed, it appears prudent to again postpone detailed
discussion on the merits of any change in this area until the effects of the new
statutory default levy arrangements are clear.



10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

12.

12.1

Page 155

FINANCIAL EFFECTS OF PROPOSALS ON NLWA BOROUGHS

To provide an indication of the effects of DEFRA's proposals, the NLWA has
worked out some exemplification’s using the Authority’s approved budget for
2005/06 and the medium term forecasts for 2006/07 and 2007/08 as reported to
the NLWA at its budget and levy meeting on 9 February 2005. In each case the
figures have been adjusted to reflect the up-to-date recycling data that has been
provided by boroughs to assist with this comparison, the effect of which is to
reduce the Authority’s recycling credit budget and therefore its levy requirements
under the current levy arrangements. No allowance is made for possible revenue
balances in 2006/07. The exemplification’s are set out at Appendix 2.

For each year, the spreadsheets show the estimated levy payments that would be
made by each borough on a council tax basis together with an estimate of the
income that each borough would receive based upon each borough’s latest
estimate of their recycling activity. The net effect is to illustrate the net payment
made by each borough to the NLWA. This is set out in table 1.

The information contained in table 1 provides a base for comparing the estimated
financial effect on constituent boroughs of Defra’s proposals in table 2.

The exemplification’s indicate that the financial impact for Haringey is likely to be
broadly neutral for the year the changes are proposed, a gain of £25k compared to
the current system. In the main only Hackney and Waltham Forest are likely to be
disadvantaged in the year of a change in the levy apportionment arrangements.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Members note the proposed changes to the NLWA levy apportionment basis
and it’s estimated impact for the Council.

That Members confirm the Council’s response to the consultation paper which had
to be submitted to DEFRA by 28 October 2005.

COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE

To provide an indication of the financial effects of the Defra proposals, the NLWA
have undertaken some exemplification’s using the Authority’s approved budget for
2005/06 and medium term forecasts for 2006/07 and 2007/08, which are attached
at Appendix 2. These show that the predicted financial effect for Haringey is very
broadly neutral. Had the changes happened this financial year the net effect for
Haringey would be an additional cost of £80k. For the proposed year of change
2006/07 Haringey would gain by £25k compared to it's share under the old system
and for 2007/08, there is an additional cost of £119k. Factors for the annual
variances include predicted rates of recycling by boroughs relative to each other
and changes in the overall NLWA budgets for the next two financial years.



12.2

13.
13.1

14.

Page 156

The Council’s budget setting process for 2006/07 already includes a provision for
the impact of these changes, which will be kept under review as the
exemplification's are firmed up in the coming months. However, Defra’s proposals
may result in uncertainty for the constituent borough councils as to the structure
and therefore potential amount of the final levy for next year until a very late point
in their budget-setting processes.

COMMENTS OF THE LEGAL ADVISER

The Legal Adviser has been consulted in the drafting of this report.

Use of Appendices / Tables / Photographs

Appendix 1 — Council’s response to the consultation paper.

Appendix 2 — Financial effect on constituent boroughs of the Defra proposals.



Page 157

APPENDIX 1

Local Authority Funding and Governance Team
Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
Zone 7/E14
Ashdown House
123 Victoria Street
London
SW1E 6DE
28 October 2005

Dear Sir or Madam

HARINGEY COUNCIL CONSULTATION REPSONSE ON ALTERING THE STATUTORY JOINT
WASTE DISPOSAL AUTHORITY FUNDING MECHANISM

Haringey Council is pleased that the Government has come forward with a consultation on changing the
default apportionment of Joint Waste Disposal Authorities funding basis from a Council Tax basis to a
tonnage basis.

The Council supports this on the basis that the current Council Tax base is unsatisfactory and bears no
direct relationship between the expenditure incurred in disposing waste from each borough and the levy
that each borough pays. Furthermore the proposals would accord with the “producer pays” principle,
would give boroughs more control over their own costs and would encourage efficiency, recycling and
waste minimisation generally.

The Council is pleased too that your officials were able to come to North London to set out the
Government’s views and to listen to the NLWA and Borough views first hand. This aspect of the
consultation is very much supported by the Council and we would prefer this approach again on any
future Government consultation processes.

The Council supports the view expressed by NLWA that any new regime provides a certain,
unambiguous funding base for this essential public service. In this regard the new default arrangements
must be very clearly expressed, so that there is no scope for interpretation or challenge to any decision-
making processes and their implementation. The continuing freedom to implement any alternative cost
apportionment system that gains unanimous local approval should remain the avenue to correct any new
imbalances that emerge over time.

The Council also sets out in Appendix A answers to your direct questions. Appendix B is other
comments, observations or requests that relate to the proposed change.

Yours sincerely,

CllIr Peter Hillman
Executive Member for Environment and Conservation



Page 158

Appendix A

DEFRA Questions

Q.1

A

Q.2

A2.1

A22

A23

Q.3

A3.1

A3.2

Do you consider, in principle, that introducing a tonnage-based levy to be the best way of
introducing a link between the size of the levy on the waste collection authorities and the
amount of waste they deliver to JWDAs for disposal? If not, please give reasons

Yes. The principle of a tonnage-based levy is supported by the Council.

Do you agree that the other elements of the JWDAs costs, aside from disposal costs,
such as administration costs and the costs of running the JWDA civic amenity sites
should be excluded from the new funding mechanism and instead continue to be funded
through a levy based on the current council tax base? If not, please state how these costs
should be funded.

The Council is of the view that wherever possible all costs should be funded through the
tonnage-basis, except for the costs of the transport & disposal of wastes from Civic Amenity
Sites / Re-use and Recycling Centres (CA/RRC’s) operated by councils to satisfy our duty under
S.1 of the Refuse Disposal (Amenity) Act 1978 (RDA). This will ensure that there is no financial
incentive on Councils to impose “residents only” restrictions on their sites, for fear of paying for
waste from other areas.

It is envisaged that the proposed repeal of Section 1 of the Refuse Disposal Amenity Act 1978
will result in: -

The categorisation of waste delivered to CA/RRCs falling in line with the recognised national
interpretation as set out in the Environment Protection Act 1990 together with the resulting
Controlled Waste Regulations 1992.

The provision of CA/RRCs to revert to the waste disposal authority as prescribed in Section 51
of the Environment Protection Act 1990.

Whilst, the Council agrees with the reclassification of the waste delivered to CA/RRCs, it is
concerned that London Boroughs in JWDA areas should still be able to exercise its local
democratic right to continue to operate its own CA/RRCs’ sites. Haringey Council has invested
significant amounts of capital and ongoing revenue in the development of its RRCs in recent
years. This investment has enabled the Council to recycle household waste at these sites
providing a vital strategic role in Haringey being able to meet the recycling targets set by
Government.

The Council is disappointed that the Government has decided not to harmonise non-household
waste charging provisions and has thereby missed an opportunity to have a flat rate for
household and non-household waste. As a consequence of this, the debate about the different
systems used by WDAs to assess the amounts of non-household waste in the mixed municipal
waste stream, and the impact this has on the reliability of household waste BVPIs, will remain
unresolved.

Do you agree that the Secretary of State should remove the duty for all JWDAs to pay
recycling credits to their collection authorities? If not, please give reasons.

Yes, as the avoided cost of disposal under a tonnage based levy will fall to the boroughs and a
direct relationship will be forged between recycling and waste disposal costs.

By definition, this must also apply to recycling and composting services that the NLWA contracts
for when the Authority is calculating each Borough's proportions of future levies.

10



Q.4

A4

Q.5

Ab5

Q.6

A6

Page 159

If the levy default were changed to a tonnage basis, do you agree that the levy should be
based on historical data of waste volumes delivered to the JWDA from previous years? If
not, please give reasons.

Yes (assuming DEFRA means waste tonnages rather than waste volumes as above), because
there must be a firm foundation for the levy that must be capable of resisting challenge. The use
of the most recent audited data would offer certainty around the figures being used. The use of
more recent un-audited/estimated figures would benefit authorities whose recycling rates are
increasing quicker but the figures are capable of being challenged. Also at some point these
figures would have to be compared with final audited figures and adjustments made if different.

If a tonnage-based levy was introduced, do you agree that the method of calculation
should be left to individual JWDAs? If not, please give alternative.

No. A clear statutory default position is essential so that it can be reliably applied without risk of
challenge and so that an essential public service can be reliably provided. This should be
achieved by the statutory instrument unambiguously stating the areas of expenditure that should
be allocated to the tonnage-based “pot”, and saying that all other expenditure should go to the
Council Tax “pot”. If, for technical reasons, this is not wholly possible, it must be clear that any
decision that has to be made about the allocation of any area of expenditure to the tonnage-
based “pot” or the Council-Tax based “pot” must clearly be a majority decision of the SUIWDA
alone.

It must also be clear and unambiguous if it is the Government’s intention that appropriate
resolutions would have to be passed separately by all seven constituent borough councils for an
alternative to the default to be applied, rather than being able to rely on a unanimous vote at the
relevant meeting of the SUWDA.

Noting the potential for some JWDAs and their constituent authorities in moving to a
tonnage-based levy in April 2006, do you consider there to be any action that Government
should take centrally to assist with the transition. If so, please give details.

Yes. The Government has previously recognised the need for better financial planning in local
government (and beyond) by introducing three-year spending reviews. Given this consultation’s
short timescale and the immediacy and magnitude of change, the Government needs to give
direct transitional relief to those Boroughs which will suddenly have to find significant additional
funds.

11



Page 160

Appendix B

DEFRA Annex B - Draft Statutory Instrument

7. Clause 3§ ) — the timetable for notifying the constituent borough councils of the size of the levy
by 10™ March is the same as in the 1985 Order, but this was recognised as |mpractlcal and
amended by the Levying Bodies (General) Regulatlons 1992 (LBGR 1992) to 15" February.
The draft SI must be amended to the 15" February as being the latest date for notifying
constituent boroughs of the size of the levy otherwise boroughs could have major problems
in meetmg their statutory deadlines for setting their budget and Council Tax. A date earlier
than 15" February would also be very helpful to the boroughs.

12



Page 161

HARINGEY COUNCILH

Agenda item:

The Executive 22 November 2005

Report Title: DEFRA Consultation — Response to Proposals to Change the Levy Default

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable):

Report of: Director of Environmental Services

Wards(s) affected: All Wards Report for:

1. Purpose

1.1 To inform Members of DEFRA consultation taking place on proposed changes to
the Statutory Joint Waste Disposal Authorities levy apportionment basis and the
Council’s response to the consultation paper.

2. Introduction by Executive Member *

In the early Autumn of 2005, the Government carried out a brief consultation on
changing the default charging arrangements for Joint Waste Disposal Authorities
(JWDAs). Haringey is a member of a JWDA. Haringey is a member of the North
London Waste Authority (NLWA). The current default charging arrangement system is
unfair as it is based on an apportionment in proportion to each borough’s Council Tax
base. This is unsatisfactory as there is no direct relationship between the amount of
waste produced by each borough and the levy that each borough pays. Neither does
the present arrangement reflect the principle that ‘the producer pays’.

Haringey has worked hard to increase recycling and reduce household waste. The
new charging arrangements proposed by the Government would not only be fairer,
but would encourage other councils to reduce waste, invest more in recycling and
promote the reuse of materials. Although the Government's proposals would be
largely cost neutral for Haringey, their intention to introduce the new levy
arrangements for the financial year 2006/07 may result in a degree of uncertainty for
constituent boroughs, who are members of JWDAs, until very late in the budget
setting cycle, therefore the Council, whilst supporting the proposed changes, is also
calling for transitional relief for those boroughs who would be adversely affected by
these changes in the next financial year.

EB22 11.05v1uc



Page 162

3. Recommendations
3.1  That Members note:

(i) the proposed changes to the North London Waste Authority (NLWA) levy
apportionment basis and it's estimated impact for the Council

(i)  and confirm the Council's response to the consultation paper which had to
be submitted to DEFRA by 28 October 2005.

Report Authorised by: Anne Fisher, Director of Environmental Services

(ext 4523) q M

Contact Officer: Stephen McDonnell , Head of Waste Management (ext 5661)

4. Executive Summary

4.1 The NLWA is largely funded by a levy that at present is paid by the constituent
borough councils in proportion to their Council Tax bases. This way of apportioning
the levy is the 'default’ arrangement that appilies if no other means of apportionment
is unanimously agreed by the boroughs. A Government consultation paper
proposes to change the law so that, from next year onwards, the defauit
arrangement would require the levy to be made up of two parts. One part would
meet the Authority's disposal costs of the household waste that it receives from the
boroughs, and this part would be paid by the boroughs in proportion to their
tonnages of household waste in the most recent completed financial year. The
other part would meet all the Authority's other costs, including the transport and
disposal costs of civic amenity waste, and would be paid by the boroughs in
proportion to their Council Tax bases. Responses are sought by 28 October 2005.

4.2 This report describes the proposals and their likely effects for the NLWA levy on the
Council and the other constituent borough councils and proposes a response to the
consultation paper.

5 Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if applicable)

5.1 Proposed Government changes to the way Joint Waste Disposal Authority’s levy is
apportioned.

6 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

6.1 DEFRA consultation paper on changes to the joint waste disposal authorities
funding levy, 26™ August 2005

6.2 NLWA's report DEFRA consultation on levy apportionment, 19 October 2005.

EB22.11.05v1uc 2




Page 163

7.1

7.2

7.3

74

7.5

Background

Existing levy arrangements

The NLWA is mostly funded by a levy paid by the seven constituent borough
councils including Haringey. By law, which applies also to the other five Joint
Waste Disposal Authorities (JWDAs), the levy is apportioned between the
boroughs in such proportions as the boroughs may unanimously agree. If there is
no unanimous agreement, the law specifies that a defauit basis of apportionment in
proportion to each borough’s Council Tax base shall apply.

The NLWA levy has always been apportioned on the default basis because there
has never been unanimous agreement on any alternative method. By definition,
any change in the apportionment method would be financially disadvantageous for
at least one of the boroughs. This makes the necessary unanimous agreement
hard to achieve - particularly when, as in North London’s case, the financial effects
for the boroughs would be significant.

The need for change

However, in the last decade or so attention has increasingly been given to the case
for payment to be made in proportion to the tonnages that boroughs deliver to the
Authority. The main element in each Waste Disposal Authority’s expenditure is the
amount of waste that comes from the constituent boroughs for disposal. However,
when the levy is apportioned on the default Council Tax base, there is no direct
relationship between the expenditure incurred in disposing of the waste from each
borough and the levy each borough pays.

In consequence, there has been a view in most constituent councils that the default
Council Tax base is unsatisfactory, and that there is a case for a change in the law
so that boroughs would pay on some form of tonnage basis. The higher a
borough’s tonnage the more it would pay, and vice versa. This would accord with
the “producer pays” principle, would give boroughs more direct control over their
own costs, and would be an encouragement to efficiency savings, and promoting
waste minimisation, reuse and recycling.

The need for change has been greatly magnified by the substantial increases in
waste management costs that now are beginning to be generated by increasing
environmental standards being imposed on waste disposal contractors, the Landfill
Tax and, in the future, compliance with the Landfill Directive.

DEFRA’S CONSULTATION

The consultation paper was issued to all Joint Waste Disposal Authorities and all
their constituent borough councils at the end of August along with draft statutory
regulations.

EB22.11.05v1uc 3



8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

Page 164

In addition, DEFRA is also consulting on this matter with the Local Government
Association, the Greater London Authority, the Association of London Government,
and some other relevant professional/representative bodies.

DEFRA officials have already held a consultation meeting with representatives of
the NLWA and constituent boroughs at Haringey Civic Centre on 20" September.
DEFRA officials similarly have attended consultation meetings in the other five
Joint Waste Disposal Authorities areas.

Responses are sought by no later than Friday 28 October 2005, which is only nine
weeks after the consultation began. The paper notes that this allows less time than
the Government's usually recommended twelve weeks because of the need for the
new arrangements to be in place before the end of December in time for the setting
of budgets for next financial year. The Executive Member for Environment and
Conservation therefor submitted a draft response. The Council’s response is
attached at Appendix 1.

The consultation paper summarises the background and the case for change,
which is similar to that set out above. It also sets out DEFRA's proposals and their
rationale. A major constraint is that, because DEFRA intends to change the funding
mechanism in time for next financial year, the changes are limited to those that can
be implemented through secondary legislation alone.

In essence, the proposals are that the Joint Waste Disposal Authorities would
continue to be mainly funded by levying upon their constituent borough councils
and, by their unanimous agreement, the constituent borough councils would be
able to decide for themselves how to apportion the levy. However, in the absence
of their unanimous agreement, the present default arrangements of a levy that is
wholly apportioned on Council Tax base would be replaced with a levy that is made
up of two parts, each of which is apportioned differently. The principal areas of
budget cost are set out below:

8.6.1  Collected household waste levy

One part (which is referred to as the "collected household waste levy")
would be to meet the budgeted costs of dealing with the household
waste collected by the boroughs and delivered to North London Waste
Authority for treatment or disposal. The boroughs would pay this part of
the levy in proportion to their relative tonnages of household waste
delivered in the most recent complete financial year for which data is
available. In other words, the household waste tonnages delivered in
2004-05 would be used to apportion this part of the levy for 2006-07.

8.6.2 Other expenditure levy
The other part (which is referred to as the "other expenditure levy")
would cover the remaining budgeted costs and administration, and
would be apportioned between the boroughs on their relative Council
Tax bases, as at present.

8.6.3 Civic Amenity/Re-use & Recycling Centre Waste

22 1105 T 4



8.6.4

8.6.5

8.6.6

EB22.11.05v1uc

Page 165

It is envisaged that the proposed repeal of Section 1 of the refuse
Disposal Amenity Act 1978 will resuit in: -

1. The categorisation of waste delivered to CA/RRCs falling in line with

the recognised national interpretation as set out in the Environment
Protection Act 1990 together with the resulting Controlled Waste
Regulations 1992.

2. The provision of CA/RRCs to revert to the waste disposal authority
as prescribed in Section 51 of the Envuronment Protection Act
1990. .

Whilst, the Council agrees with the reclassification of the waste
delivered to CA/RRCs, it is concerned that London Boroughs in
JWDA areas should still be able to exercise its local democratic
right to continue to operate its own CA/RRCs' sites. Haringey
Council has invested significant amount of capital and ongoing
revenue in the development of its RRCs in recent years. This
investment has enabled the Council to recycle household waste at
these sites providing a vital strategic role in Haringey being able to
meet the recycling targets set by Government. However, the council
does agree with Defra’s suggestion, that in order to ensure that
these sites remain open to all residents within the NLWA area, the
costs for transport and disposal of waste from CA/RRCs’' sites
should continue to be funded via a council tax base within NLWA's
‘other expenditure levy'.

Non-household wastes

Separate payment to the Joint Waste Disposal Authorities by their
constituent borough councils for the disposal of collected commercial
waste under Section 52(9) of the Environmental Protection Act 1990
would continue.

Recycling Credits

Payment of recycling credits by the Joint Waste Disposal Authorities to
their constituent boroughs would cease, since the tonnage based
household waste levy inherently would provide the equivalent financial
incentive for the boroughs to undertake recycling. The incentive for
boroughs would simply be the reduced levy contribution that would
follow from recycling waste and not sending it to the SUWDA.

Transitional relief

The consultation paper offers no transitional arrangements.
Dlscussmns with DEFRA before and during the consultation meeting
on 20" September have raised the possibility of statutory transitional
relief arrangements being provided to assist constituent borough
councils that would be substantially adversely affected by the changed



9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

Page 166

funding mechanism. DEFRA officials are currently not able to confirm if
the Government will be able to support transitional relief financially.

THE DEFRA PROPOSALS IN PRACTICE

Total amount to be levied

If DEFRA's proposals are implemented in time for the setting of next year's budget
and levy, the main part of the 2006-07 budget and levy process would be the same
as it is now. In other words, as before, the NLWA would agree its budget, including
its non-household waste charges, and then decide the total amount to be levied. It
is not entirely clear, however, how NLWA should treat any balances. Currently
these are taken into account when deciding the total amount to be levied. It
appears, however, that in the future these may be apportioned either between the
two parts of the levy, or they may be apportioned wholly to either the collected
household waste levy or the other expenditure levy. From a practical point of view
it would appear best to apportion balances in proportion to the budgeted costs for
each element of the levy, i.e. the amount that needs to be financed before applying
balances.

Fixing the size of the levy’s two parts

Having agreed the sum to be levied, and assuming no unanimous agreement by
the constituent borough councils to do something different, the NLWA would divide
the total amount to be levied into two parts. The division would be into firstly the net
amount budgeted for collected waste, and secondly for other expenditure.

Apportionment of the two levy parts between the constituent boroughs

After determining the total amounts of each part of the levy, the previous year's
household waste tonnages notified by the constituent borough councils would be
used to apportion the household waste levy according to the draft statutory
instrument. The Council Tax bases notified by the constituent boroughs would be
used to apportion the other expenditure levy.

Non-household waste tonnages and charges

DEFRA's proposals would result in all the boroughs' delivered waste being paid for
on one form of tonnage basis or another. Household waste would be paid for by a
levy apportioned on a previous year's household waste tonnage. Non-household
waste would be paid for on the tonnes delivered in the year in question, but some
agreed method would still be needed to determine boroughs' non-household waste
tonnages.

The NLWA had been working to develop a new, agreed way of assessing the
amount of non-household waste contained within the mixed municipal waste
stream from each constituent council. This work, however, was subsumed into
developing a voluntary tonnage-based levy system. Now that a statutory tonnage-
based levy is being proposed, it appears prudent to again postpone detailed
discussion on the merits of any change in this area until the effects of the new
statutory default levy arrangements are clear.



10.
10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

1.
11.1

11.2

12.
12.1

Page 167

FINANCIAL EFFECTS OF PROPOSALS ON NLWA BOROUGHS

To provide an indication of the effects of DEFRA's proposals, the NLWA has
worked out some exemplification’s using the Authority’s approved budget for
2005/06 and the medium term forecasts for 2006/07 and 2007/08 as reported to
the NLWA at its budget and levy meeting on 9 February 2005. In each case the
figures have been adjusted to reflect the up-to-date recycling data that has been
provided by boroughs to assist with this comparison, the effect of which is to
reduce the Authority’s recycling credit budget and therefore its levy requirements
under the current levy arrangements. No allowance is made for possible revenue
balances in 2006/07. The exemplification’s are set out at Appendix 2.

For each year, the spreadsheets show the estimated levy payments that would be
made by each borough on a council tax basis together with an estimate of the
income that each borough would receive based upon each borough’s latest
estimate of their recycling activity. The net effect is to illustrate the net payment
made by each borough to the NLWA. This is set out in table 1.

The information contained in table 1 provides a base for comparing the estimated
financial effect on constituent boroughs of Defra’s proposals in table 2.

The exemplification’s indicate that the financial impact for Haringey is likely to be
broadly neutral for the year the changes are proposed, a gain of £25k compared to
the current system. In the main only Hackney and Waltham Forest are likely to be
disadvantaged in the year of a change in the levy apportionment arrangements.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Members note the proposed changes to the NLWA levy apportionment basis
and it's estimated impact for the Council.

That Members confirm the Council’'s response to the consultation paper which had
to be submitted to DEFRA by 28 October 2005.

COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE

To provide an indication of the financial effects of the Defra proposals, the NLWA
have undertaken some exemplification’s using the Authority’s approved budget for
2005/06 and medium term forecasts for 2006/07 and 2007/08, which are attached
at Appendix 2. These show that the predicted financial effect for Haringey is very
broadly neutral. Had the changes happened this financial year the net effect for
Haringey would be an additional cost of £80k. For the proposed year of change
2006/07 Haringey would gain by £25k compared to it's share under the old system
and for 2007/08, there is an additional cost of £119k. Factors for the annual
variances include predicted rates of recycling by boroughs relative to each other
and changes in the overall NLWA budgets for the next two financial years.

S P08 T 7



12.2

13.
13.1

14.

Page 168

The Council’s budget setting process for 2006/07 already includes a provision for
the impact of these changes, which will be kept under review as the
exemplification’s are firmed up in the coming months. However, Defra’s proposails
may result in uncertainty for the constituent borough councils as to the structure
and therefore potential amount of the final levy for next year until a very late point
in their budget-setting processes.

COMMENTS OF THE LEGAL ADVISER

The Legal Adviser has been consulted in the drafting of this report.

Use of Appendices / Tables / Photographs

Appendix 1 — Council’'s response to the consultation paper.

Appendix 2 - Financial effect on constituent boroughs of the Defra proposals.

EBZ22.11.05v1uc



Page 169

APPENDIX 1

Local Authority Funding and Governance Team
Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
Zone 7/E14
Ashdown House
123 Victoria Street
London
SW1E 6DE
28 October 2005

Dear Sir or Madam

HARINGEY COUNCIL CONSULTATION REPSONSE ON ALTERING THE STATUTORY JOINT
WASTE DISPOSAL AUTHORITY FUNDING MECHANISM

Haringey Council is pleased that the Government has come forward with a consultation on changing the
default apportionment of Joint Waste Disposal Authorities funding basis from a Council Tax basis to a
tonnage basis.

The Council supports this on the basis that the current Council Tax base is unsatisfactory and bears no
direct relationship between the expenditure incurred in disposing waste from each borough and the levy
that each borough pays. Furthermore the proposals would accord with the “producer pays” principle,
would give boroughs more control over their own costs and would encourage efficiency, recycling and
waste minimisation generally.

The Council is pleased too that your officials were able to come to North London to set out the
Government's views and to listen to the NLWA and Borough views first hand. This aspect of the
consultation is very much supported by the Council and we would prefer this approach again on any
future Government consultation processes.

The Council supports the view expressed by NLWA that any new regime provides a certain,
unambiguous funding base for this essential public service. In this regard the new default arrangements
must be very clearly expressed, so that there is no scope for interpretation or challenge to any decision-
making processes and their implementation. The continuing freedom to implement any alternative cost
apportionment system that gains unanimous local approval should remain the avenue to correct any new
imbalances that emerge over time.

The Council also sets out in Appendix A answers to your direct questions. Appendix B is other
comments, observations or requests that relate to the proposed change.

Yours sincerely,

Clir Peter Hillman
Executive Member for Environment and Conservation

EB22.11.05v1uc 9



Page 170

Appendix A
DEFRA Questions

Q.1

A1

Q.2

A2.1

A22

A23

Q3

A3.1

A3.2

Do you consider, in principle, that introducing a tonnage-based levy to be the best way of
introducing a link between the size of the levy on the waste collection authorities and the
amount of waste they deliver to JWDASs for disposal? If not, please give reasons

Yes. The principle of a tonnage-based levy is supported by the Council.

Do you agree that the other elements of the JWDAs costs, aside from disposal costs,
such as administration costs and the costs of running the JWDA civic amenity sites
should be excluded from the new funding mechanism and instead continue to be funded
through a levy based on the current council tax base? If not, please state how these costs
should be funded.

The Council is of the view that wherever possible all costs should be funded through the
tonnage-basis, except for the costs of the transport & disposal of wastes from Civic Amenity
Sites / Re-use and Recycling Centres (CA/RRC's) operated by councils to satisfy our duty under
S.1 of the Refuse Disposal (Amenity) Act 1978 (RDA). This will ensure that there is no financial
incentive on Councils to impose “residents only” restrictions on their sites, for fear of paying for
waste from other areas.

It is envisaged that the proposed repeal of Section 1 of the Refuse Disposal Amenity Act 1978
will result in: -

The categorisation of waste delivered to CA/RRCs falling in line with the recognised national
interpretation as set out in the Environment Protection Act 1990 together with the resulting
Controlled Waste Regulations 1992.

The provision of CA/IRRCs to revert to the waste disposal authority as prescribed in Section 51
of the Environment Protection Act 1990.

Whilst, the Council agrees with the reclassification of the waste delivered to CA/RRCs, it is
concerned that London Boroughs in JWDA areas should still be able to exercise its local
democratic right to continue to operate its own CA/IRRCs’ sites. Haringey Council has invested
significant amounts of capital and ongoing revenue in the development of its RRCs in recent
years. This investment has enabled the Council to recycle household waste at these sites
providing a vital strategic role in Haringey being able to meet the recycling targets set by
Government.

The Council is disappointed that the Government has decided not to harmonise non-household
waste charging provisions and has thereby missed an opportunity to have a flat rate for
household and non-household waste. As a consequence of this, the debate about the different
systems used by WDAs to assess the amounts of non-household waste in the mixed municipal
waste stream, and the impact this has on the reliability of household waste BVPIs, will remain
unresolved.

Do you agree that the Secretary of State should remove the duty for all JWDAs to pay
recycling credits to their collection authorities? If not, please give reasons.

Yes, as the avoided cost of disposal under a tonnage based levy will fall to the boroughs and a
direct relationship will be forged between recycling and waste disposal costs. :

By definition, this must also apply to recycling and composting services that the NLWA contracts
for when the Authority is calculating each Borough's proportions of future levies.

EB22.11.05v1uc 10



Q4

A4

Q5

AS

Q.6

A.6

Page 171

If the levy default were changed to a tonnage basis, do you agree that the levy should be
based on historical data of waste volumes delivered to the JWDA from previous yoars? If
not, please give reasons.

Yes (assuming DEFRA means waste tonnages rather than waste volumes as above), because
there must be a firm foundation for the levy that must be capable of resisting challenge. The use
of the most recent audited data would offer certainty around the figures being used. The use of
more recent un-audited/estimated figures would benefit authorities whose recycling rates are
increasing quicker but the figures are capable of being challenged. Also at some point these
figures would have to be compared with final audited figures and adjustments made if different.

if a tonnage-based levy was introduced, do you agree that the method of calculation
should be left to individual JWDAs? If not, please give alternative.

No. A clear statutory default position is essential so that it can be reliably applied without risk of
challenge and so that an essential public service can be reliably provided. This should be
achieved by the statutory instrument unambiguously stating the areas of expenditure that should
be allocated to the tonnage-based “pot”, and saying that all other expenditure should go to the
Council Tax “pot”. If, for technical reasons, this is not wholly possible, it must be clear that any
decision that has to be made about the allocation of any area of expenditure to the tonnage-
based “pot” or the Council-Tax based “pot’ must clearly be a majority decision of the SIWDA
alone.

It must also be clear and unambiguous if it is the Government's intention that appropriate
resolutions would have to be passed separately by all seven constituent borough councils for an
alternative to the default to be applied, rather than being able to rely on a unanimous vote at the
relevant meeting of the SUWDA.

Noting the potential for some JWDAs and their constituent authorities in moving to a
tonnage-based levy in April 2006, do you consider there to be any action that Government
should take centrally to assist with the transition. If 80, please give details.

Yes. The Government has previously recognised the need for better financial planning in local
government (and beyond) by introducing three-year spending reviews. Given this consultation's
short timescale and the immediacy and magnitude of change, the Government needs to give
direct transitional relief to those Boroughs which will suddenly have to find significant additional
funds.

EB22.11.05v1uc 11



Page 172

Appendix B

DEFRA Annex B - Draft Statutory Instrument

7. Clause 3(4) - the timetable for notifying the constituent borough councils of the size of the levy
by 10™ March is the same as in the 1985 Order, but this was recognised as |mpractlcal and
amended by the Levying Bodies (General) Regulatlons 1992 (LBGR 1992) to 15" February.
The draft SI must be amended to the 15™ February as being the latest date for notifying
constituent boroughs of the size of the levy otherwise boroughs could have major problems
in meetmg their statutory deadlines for setting their budget and Council Tax. A date earlier
than 15" February would also be very heipful to the boroughs.

EB22 11.05viuc 12



Page 173

NORTH LONDON WASTE AUTHORITY

DEFRA CONSULTATION ON LEVY APPORTIONMENT

ESTIMATED IMPACT OF DEFRA PROPOSALS USING 2006/06 APPROVED BUDGET

2005/06

APPENDIX 2 (1)

BUT ADJUSTED TO REFLECT RECYCLING CREDIT BUDGET BASED UPON BOROUGH RECYCLING UPDATED DATA

TO ESTABLISH A BASIS FOR COMPARISON TABLE 1 SHOWS THE 2005/06 BUDGET APPORTIONED
ON A COUNCIL TAX BASIS AND SHOWS THE NET PAYMENTS TO THE NLWA
(L.E. LEVY LESS RECYCLING CREDIT INCOME)

TABLE 1

BARNET
CAMDEN
ENFIELD
HACKNEY
HARINGEY
ISLINGTON

WALTHAM
FOREST

TOTAL

LEVY PAYMENT

TO NLWA
COUNCIL
TAX
£'000
8,821
5,898
6,976
4,213
5,429
5,136

4,753

41,225

INCOME

FROM NLWA

RECYCLING

CREDITS
£'000

2,736
1,049
2,158
499
1,025
872

1,468

9,807

NET
PAYMENT

TO NLWA
£'000
6,085
4,849
4,817
3,714
4,404
4,264

3,285

31,418

TABLE 2 SHOWS THE ESTIMATED FINANCIAL EFFECT ON CONSTITUENT BROUGHS OF DEFRA'S PROPOSALS

TABLE 2

BARNET
CAMDEN
ENFIELD
HACKNEY
HARINGEY
ISLINGTON

WALTHAM
FOREST

TOTAL

summary 1 2005/06 defra proposals

HOUSEHOLD

WASTE

LEVY

£000

5,474
3,672
4,290
3,908
4,119
3,502

3,683

28,648

LEVY PAYMENT TO
OTHER
EXP
LEVY

£000
593
396
469
283
366
346

319

2,770

30/09/06

NLWA

TOTAL
LEVY

£000
6,067
4,068
4,759
4,191
4,484
3,847

4,002

31,418

NET COST
OR (GAIN)
COMPARED
TO PRESENT (TABLE 1)
£000
(18)
(781)
(58)

477

(417)

717

updated for recycling budget adjustment



Page 174

NORTH LONDON WASTE AUTHORITY 2006/07 APPENDIX 2 (2)
DEFRA CONSULTATION ON LEVY APPORTIONMENT

ESTIMATED IMPACT OF DEFRA PROPOSALS USING 2006/07 MEDIUM TERM FORECAST (FEBRUARY 2005)
BUT ADJUSTED FOR RECYCLING TONNAGES AS ADVISED BY BOROUGHS AS AT 29/8/05

TO ESTABLISH A BASIS FOR COMPARISON TABLE 1 SHOWS THE 2006/07 BUDGET FORECAST APPORTIONED
ON A COUNCIL TAX BASIS AND SHOWS THE NET PAYMENTS TO THE NLWA
(L.E. LEVY LESS RECYCLING CREDIT INCOME)

TABLE 1
LEVY PAYMENT INCOME NET
TO NLWA FROM NLWA PAYMENT
COUNCIL RECYCLING TO NLWA
TAX CREDITS
£000 £000 £000
BARNET 10,651 3,189 7,362
CAMDEN 7,055 , 1,219 5,836
ENFIELD 8,343 2,477 5,866
HACKNEY 5,040 973 4,067
HARINGEY 6,494 1,184 5,310
ISLINGTON 6,143 1,191 4,952
WALTHAM 5,685 1,964 3,721
FOREST
TOTAL 49,311 12,497 37,114

TABLE 2 SHOWS THE ESTIMATED FINANCIAL EFFECT ON CONSTITUENT BOROUGHS OF DEFRA'S PROPOSALS

TABLE 2
—— —LEVY PAYMENT TO NLWA—————— NET COST
OR (GAIN)
HOUSEHOLD OTHER TOTAL COMPARED
WASTE EXP LEVY TO PRESENT (TABLE 1)
LEVY LEVY
£000 £000 £000 £'000
BARNET 6,419 719 7,138 (224)
CAMDEN 4,378 481 4,859 (977)
ENFIELD 4,962 569 5,531 (335)
HACKNEY 4,694 343 5,037 970
HARINGEY 4,842 443 5,286 (25)
ISLINGTON 4,100 419 4,519 (433)
WALTHAM 4,358 387 4,745 1,024
FOREST
TOTAL 33,763 3,361 37,114 )

summary 1 2006/07 defra proposals 30/09/05



NORTH LONDON WASTE AUTHORITY

Page 175

DEFRA CONSULTATION ON LEVY APPORTIONMENT

2007/08

APPENDIX 2 (3)

ESTIMATED IMPACT OF DEFRA PROPOSALS USING 2007/08 MEDIUM TERM FORECAST (FEBRUARY 2005)
BUT ADJUSTED FOR RECYCLING TONNAGES AS ADVISED BY BOROUGHS AS AT 29/9/056

TO ESTABLISH A BAS!S FOR COMPARISON TABLE 1 SHOWS THE 2006/07 BUDGET FORECAST APPORTIONED
ON A COUNCIL TAX BASIS AND SHOWS THE NET PAYMENTS TO THE NLWA
(.E. LEVY LESS RECYCLING CREDIT INCOME)

TABLE 1

BARNET
CAMDEN
ENFIELD
HACKNEY
HARINGEY
ISLINGTON

WALTHAM
FOREST

TOTAL

LEVY PAYMENT
TO NLWA

COUNCIL
TAX

£'000

11,432

7,644

9,039

5,461

7,037

6,657

6,169

53,429

INCOME

FROM NLWA

RECYCLING

CREDITS

£000
3,718
1,535
2,838
1,223
1,577
1,453

2,533

14,877

NET
PAYMENT

TO NLWA
£000
7,714
6,109
6,201
4,238
5,460
5,204

3,626

38,662

TABLE 2 SHOWS THE ESTIMATED FINANCIAL EFFECT ON CONSTITUENT BROUGHS OF DEFRA'S PROPOSALS

TABLE 2

BARNET
CAMDEN
ENFIELD
HACKNEY
HARINGEY
ISLINGTON

WALTHAM
FOREST

TOTAL

e LEVY PAYMENT TO  NLWA

HOUSEHOLD

WASTE

LEVY

£000

6,410
4,658
5,188
5,013
5,128
4,317

4,416

35,130

summary 1 2007/08 defra proposals

490
579
350
451
426

394

3,422

03/10/06

TOTAL
LEVY

£'000
7,142
5,148
5,767
5,363
5,679
4,743

4,810

38,662

NET COST
OR (GAIN)
COMPARED
TO PRESENT (TABLE 1)
£000
(572)
(961)
(434)
1,126
119
(461)

1,184



Page 176

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 177 Agenda ltem 13

HARINGEY COUNCILH

Agenda item:

The Execulive On 22nd November

005

Report Title: Streetscape Manual

Forward Plan reference number: 2005/085

Report of: Anne Fisher, Director of Environmental Services

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-Key Decision

1.0 Purpose

1.1 To agree in principle to the adoption by the Council of a Streetscape Manual that can be
used to ensure a consistent approach to street design in the borough.

2.0 Introduction by Executive Member

2.1 The Haringey Streetscape Manual reflects current good practice for streetscape design.
It is intended to be a reference document for those who design, maintain and carry out
works on our streets. The Streetscape Manual reflects the Council’'s commitment to
improve the quality of the public realm. It aims to enhance the image of the borough and
improve mobility for users of our streets.

Executive Members are asked to note the amendments made to the Streetscape
Manual as a result of consultations that took place with stakeholders during July and
August 2005. Executive Members are also asked to agree the recommendations set out
in Section 3 of this report.

3.0 Recommendations
3.1 The Executive is recommended to :

3.2 Agree in principle to adopt a Streetscape Manual to promote consistency in street
design and furniture throughout the borough.

3.3 Agree that the draft Streetscape Manual (shown as Appendix |) is modified to reflect
comments received during consultation as summarised in para 9.9.

EB22.11.05.v1uc 1



Page 178

3.4 Agree that the final Streetscape Manual be adopted by the Council, with the final
decision on content being taken by the Executive Lead Member for the Environment and
Conservation in consultation with the Director of Environmental Services.

Report Authorised by: Anne Fisher, Director of Environmental Services. AT\A-[%{L\

Contact Officer: Alex Constantinides, Head of Highways
Telephone: 020 8489 1777

4.0 Executive Summary

4.1 In May 2004 the Audit Commission inspected Streetscene and one of the
recommendations of their final report was that the Council develop a design guide to
ensure consistency in the appearance of street furniture. To address this a new
Streetscape Manual has been prepared to encourage consistency in the appearance of
street infrastructure and furniture throughout the borough. Consultation has been carried
out on this manual with Members, Council Business Units, Living Streets Haringey,
English Heritage, the Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Advisor, Transport
for London, London Buses, Haringey London Cycling Campaign, the Mobility Forum,
and recognised residents’ groups. It is now proposed that the Executive adopts this
Manual, agree to incorporate modifications as detailed in para 9.9 to be ratified by the
Executive Lead Member for the Environment and Conservation & Director of
Environmental Services in December/January 2005/06.

5.0 Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if applicable)

51 N/A

6.0 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
6.1 Draft 1997 Streetscape Manual
6.2 Consuitation feedback

6.3 Transport for London Streetscape Guidance

- EB22.11.05.v1uc 2



7.0
7.1

8.0
8.1

8.2

8.3

Page 179

Background

In May 2004, the Audit Commission inspected Streetscene and one of the
recommendations of their final report was that the Council develops a design guide to
ensure consistency in the appearance of street furniture. A Streetscape Manual has been
drawn up based on a draft manual produced by the Council in 1997, a review of
streetscape manuals from other local authorities, Transport for London and current good
practice for streetscape design.

Streetscape Manual

The Streetscape Manual has been prepared not only to address the Audit Commission
Inspection report recommendation but also, as part of Better Haringey, to reflect the
Council's commitment to improve the quality of the public realm. It will also help ensure
value for money, as maintaining many different types of street furniture can be costly. The
aim is to enhance the street environment, improve the quality of movement for all users,
preserve the character of historic areas and promote regeneration within the town
centres. Above all, the Manual aims to enhance the image of the borough.

The purpose of the streetscape manual is:

To set out a high standard of design, consistency of specification and maintenance of the
Streetscene across the whole Borough.

To provide a good practice reference document to assist designers, planners and
highway engineers.

To enable residents and local amenity groups to understand the Council’s vision for the
streets, to develop civic pride and a sense of ownership within the public reaim.

To establish guiding principles on the design and layout of streetscape elements that
reflect and encourage good safe and accessible designs, innovative local solutions, value
for money and sustainability.

To provide a framework for detailed design visions to be developed for the town centres
within the borough over the next five years.

The Manual has eight chapters:

Introduction

Vision for Haringey — Key Principles
Carriageway and footway surfaces
Street furniture

Traffic management schemes

Town centres and conservation areas
TLRN roads

Maintenance

NGO LON

EB22.11.05.viuc 3



Page 180

8.4 The Appendices to the Manual contain streetscape design sheets, which further specify
the materials and street furniture in greater detail.

8.5 It is envisaged that those who design and maintain the streets will use the Manual as a
reference document and this includes Council departments (Highways Design,
Management, Maintenance and Safety, Neighbourhoods, Recreation, Transportation,
Waste, Planning and Conservation) as well as contractors, developers, transport
agencies and utility companies. Once the Manual has been finalised training sessions will
be set up for relevant staff.

8.6 The guidance in the Manual is non-statutory but does link into UDP policies concerning
town centres, the protection of the environment and conservation. The guidance will aid
developers in understanding the requirements of the Council in terms of streetscape
improvements where they relate to Section 106 and 278 agreements.

8.7 Due to legal and time constraints which apply to the adoption process of the emerging
Unitary Development Plan, adoption of the Streetscape Manual as a separate
Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) is not possible. The Council intends to adopt
the UDP and existing draft SPG in April 2006. This is an extremely tight timescale to
which staff resources will need to be focused. Under the Planning and Compuisory
Purchase Act 2004, the Council cannot develop the Streetscape Manual as SPG, but
may develop it as a Supplementary Planning Document. However, this process involves
continuous community involvement and a sustainability appraisal and takes about 12
months to complete. At present the Streetscape Manual is not included in the Council's
Local Development Scheme as a document which will form part of the Council's Local
Development Framework.

8.8 The possibility of incorporating the Streetscene Manual key principles into the existing
draft SPGs, such as the draft "Design Guidance and Design Statements", and "Parking in
Front Gardens" SPGs, is currently being explored. Cross-reference to the Manual will be
made where appropriate.

9.0 Consultation

9.1 Consultation on the manual was conducted during August and September 2005.
Meetings were arranged to present the Streetscape Manual to stakeholders and invite
comment on its contents. A questionnaire broken down into each section of the draft
manual was provided to allow the stakeholders to make their comments by the closing
date of 5 October. The feedback received is summarised in Appendix | of this report. A
full copy of the consultation results and the Manual is available in the Members Room.

9.2 The consultation included the views of internal stakeholders, external bodies such as
Living Streets Haringey, English Heritage, the Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention
Design Advisor, Transport for London, London Buses, Haringey London Cycling
Campaign, the Mobility Forum, and recognised residents’ groups.

EB22.11.05.v1uc 4



Page 181

9.3 We received 11 consultation questionnaire responses and 5 additional comments through
letters and emails. Overall the responses were supportive and there was a lot of useful
feedback on how to improve streetscape design.

9.4 The feedback received produced 100% support for the introduction of Streetscape
Guidance for Haringey. A further 73% of respondents agreed that the draft manual
contained the correct streetscape elements, although it was highlighted that
environmental aspects should be added to the key principles.

9.5 With regards to the palette of materials and products to be used, 45% of respondents
were in favour with a further 27.5% opposed and the remaining 27.5% undecided. The
main issue centred on vulnerable road users, particularly the partially sighted, and their
ability to see dark objects such as lamp columns, bollards etc if they were in black.

9.6 The construction and use of footway space generated a lot of comment. The majority
(55%) of respondents agree with the use of Bitumen Macadam to aid a trip free
environment, However some felt that the visual appearance was unappealing and may
become unsightly when patched after utility works or maintenance. Footway parking was
also highlighted as a safety issue for pedestrians.

9.7 The introduction of porous resin-bound gravel to replace tree grilles was unanimously
supported and all felt it would reduce litter traps, trip hazards and vandalism.

9.8 The introduction of a new street nameplate with improved information and visibility
received a high level of support. It was however highlighted that nameplates with a
historical value should remain and consideration should also be given to conservation
areas.

9.9 Below is a summary of the salient issues that will either be considered or adopted when
finalising the Draft manual:

e Street signage should be in lower case and where they can be seen. (Not possible
because legislation does not allow)

e Road nameplates at junctions should have direction arrows and property numbers and to
be on poles rather than houses. (To be considered)

e Signage is required at entrances to Parades / local shopping areas (To be adopted)
o The manual requires a chapter on energy saving measures (To be adopted)

e The manual should discourage the use of guard rails (To be adopted where there is no
compromise to safety)

» ldentify and protect historic street furniture (To be adopted)

o The manual needs to address planning issues. Planning issues will inevitably effect the
Streetscene. Traffic engineers and planning officers need to liase with each other over
the manual. (To be adopted)

o Lack of detail on seating. There should be more seating on all roads especially for the
elderly and disabled people. (To be adopted where appropriate)

EB22.11.05.v1uc 5



9.10

10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

104

10.5

Page 182

Lack of reference to green verges or landscaping —trees and planting is mentioned but
very briefly. The greenery is being covered by concrete. (To be considered)

Reflective strip to be incorporated on bollards (To be adopted)

Oppose ‘Two up’ footway parking. Priority within footways to be given to pedestrians (To
be adopted)

Mix views on footway surfacing ie Bitmac material (To be debated)

Less clutter strongly supported

Retain character of historic crossovers / original materials such as York Stone and
Granite Setts (To be considered)

Strong support for treatment at the base of trees using Porous Resin bound gravel. (To
be adopted)

Have materials uniformity between conservation and non conservation areas

Bell Bollards are dangerous and cause problem for visually impaired people (To be
considered)

More information required on sustainability (To be adopted)

See Appendix Il for a summary of the responses received. The full results are available
in the Members Room or on request from the Highways Service.

Summary and Conclusions

It is clear from the feedback that the concept of a Streetscape Guidance Manual for
Haringey has a high level of support. There were a number of points that can be adopted
in the manual and others that require further discussion/consideration, as highlighted in
paragraph 9.9 above.

The manual should incorporate a chapter on sustainability and energy saving, as part of
the drive to a cleaner greener borough.

The manual provides non statutory guidance. However, it may be possible to incorporate
the Streetscene Manual key principles into the existing draft SPGs, such as the draft
"Design Guidance and Design Statements", and "Parking in Front Gardens" SPGs. The
link between planning issues and the effect this has on the streetscape environment
raised a lot of comment. It is important that the document should consider “Design
Guidance and Design Statements” to provide closer links to Planning.

There is strong support for the introduction of the new road nameplates as there is for the
porous resin bound gravel around trees and this should be adopted immediately.

Further debate is required on the materials to be used on the footway. Although there
was support for the use of Bitumen Macadam on safety and maintenance grounds it was
also regarded to be unsightly if patched after utility works and maintenance.

EB22.11.05.viuc 6



11.0

11.1

11.2

11.3

12

12.1

13

13.1

14

14.1

15

15.1

EB22.11.05.v1iuc

Page 183

Recommendations

The Executive is recommended to:

Agree in principle to adopt a Streetscape Manual to promote consistency in street design
and furniture throughout the borough.

Agree that the draft Streetscape Manual (shown as Appendix |) is modified to reflect
comments received during consultation as summarised in para 9.3

Agree that the final Streetscape Manual be adopted by the Council, with the final decision
on content being taken by the Executive Lead Member for the Environment in
consultation with the Director of Environmental Services.

Comments of the Director of Finance

The Streetscape manual will ensure that a consistent approach is adopted in terms of
design standards, specification and maintenance of highway activities across the whole
borough. The principles will be applied to all relevant schemes and within approved
revenue or capital budgets as appropriate.

Comments of the Head of Legal Services

Relevant provisions from the Streetscape Manual could be included in the terms of
section 106 Planning Agreements or section 278 Highways Works Agreements entered
into with developers. There are no other specific legal implications.

Equalities Implications

The manual aims to specifically address the accessibility of the street environment and
include good practice on this. The external consultation with stakeholder groups included
the Mobility Forum and presentations to two meetings were held.

Environmental Implications

The manual will also address good environmental practice in the use of appropriate

materials. The external consultation with stakeholder groups has included groups who
are concerned about sustainability. These were from Living Streets and resident groups.



Page 184

16  Use of Appendices / Tables / Photographs

16.1 Appendices

o Appendix | - Draft Streetscape Manual
o Appendix Il — Consultation feedback

EB22.11.05.viuc



Page 185

Appendix |

Draft Streetscape Manual

EB22.11.05.v1uc



Page 186

ol

onA'Go’L1'¢ca3

€

L

sjuswo) Aay

ON

SOA

£1991109 9q 0} sease adeos)aauys ayj Jo suoidLdSap pue Jaquinu ay} 1apisuod nok oq °6

*SaINJea} 210}SIY JO Jajoeleyd ay) Buiuiejas se yons sanssi pa|iejop SJ0W YIM |esp pjnod | I S G
uouidQ
sjuswwo) Aoy ON ON SOA

;popaau si [lejop aiow a19ym Aes aseajd ‘Jou JI 4991100 jenuew adedsjaalls ay) ui s|Ielap sy} alv °g

‘soidiounid Aa)| 0} peppe g pjnoys s)oadse [BJUSLIUOIIAUG
")0 S)i jenuew adeds)oal)s 1Sl 8y} st ) sY 0 ¥ /
uouidQ
sjuswwo) Aoy ON ON SOA

¢ spuawae adeosjaalls 991109 ay} Uiejuod adueping adeds}aalls yelp Yy} seoqg 9

"a|qelISop AJOA JSPN[O JO [BAOWA] S JUSpISal O} }SBISJUI JO YONW SISA0D @ 3|qepeal g |njasn Si | 0 0 Ll
uoiuido
sjuswwo) Aay ON ON SOA

;ooueping adeasjeang Buiaey Hg jo ajdiouud sy} poddns noA oQ '§

‘|enuew 8y} uo suopsanb payse
Jeys salieuuolsanb JN0 PapUBY OS[E SM ‘Ul JUSS SJUSWWOD [BUORIPPE pue sBulaall UONE}NSUOD Sy} WO USXE) SS10U 8Y) LM Buojy

S)jNsay aJleuuo)sanpd

yoeqpeay uoneynsuod jo Alewwnsg

>Peqpe9) uoijejjnsuod jo Arewwng - || xipuaddy




L npA'Go’L1°¢eda

uonoas aal} ay} Aq dn pajio} jou aie sebewep ay| ‘018 _

usX0Iq /pasijepueA ale seal) Auew 0o -asea|d asoy} Jo alojy "poob Alaa s uonosioid 9al) ay) £ abed 1y
s piezey duj spioAe 821049 Jus||90x3 0 0 Ll
uouido
sjuUsWIWon Aay ON ON SOA

Zuaweanoadun [eanoeld e aq 03 uisal snolod ayj Jo asn 3y} 13pISU0d NoA oq *gl

‘sueuysopad jo abessed
ajes oy} ajqeus 0} pue S}00. ay} Yoeal o) Jajem mojje o} sjid 231} ulyyim jaAelb punog-uisal snolod aonposjul ||im [IDUNOYH
ay| 'sdeuy 1a)31] se joe Aew asay} Jey pasiubooal si }1 pue ‘seale ujepad ul papiaoad uaaq aaey saj|ub sa1] :Bunueld sai)

Page 187

joU0IS * s|elajew ajqeuleisns Ajjenb poob asn pjnoys
sjuswaned |je sdeytad ‘Ajjeapl ‘eale pared auojs e uiyum dn yojed o} pasn usym Apybisun Alea aq ueo }|
ESpI POOH
‘Kieap g yiep jiq e aoueseadde jensiA sy} axew Aew )l pasn sAeme si yoe|q Ji
“J9AOMOY ‘JUsWIUOIAUS 8al) du yjoows e Buluiejuiew uj JsISSe |[Im ) se ‘poob spunos wepeoew uswnlig L % 9
) uoiuido
sjuswwon Asy| ON ON SOA

;. sKkemjoo} s,ybnoiog ayj Juawanoiduwi [eioyauaq pue [esnoeld e ag o} [1ejop Sy} JopIsuod noA oqg "ZiL

‘ybnolog ui seale jsow 10} ‘|0 Joaqunu
jlelop S04 xipuaddy ui umoys se (dewjig) wepesew uswniig asn o} si ABsjesys wis) Buo| ay] °siy) asijeuonel o} allsap
e S1 aJay] pue Hg1 oY} ul skemjooy [esoush asepns 0) pasn AjJualind aie S|eLIdJewW JUaIaylp JO Jaquinu v :sadeuns Aemjood

I 4 8

uoiuido
sjuawiwon Aoy ON ON SOA

:ybnolog ay} 03 sjeridoidde aq o} sajysjed pue seale unoj [|e J19pISUOI NOA o "L L

"8108[qo [99)S SSo|uUle}S 10 Yoe|q
{|e uo papeau si adus MO|j9A B 0S “Jep SI Sy '89s 0} }NoiYIp S [98)s sso|uiels o|doad says Ajleiued Jo4 € € G
, uoluido
sjuawwo?) Asy ON ON SOA

23991109 aq 0} eaJse adeds}aal)s |oea 1o} sjerajew Jo ajysjed ayj Japisuod nok oq "0




Zl onpa'Go'LL'¢ccad

3 } 6
uojuldo

sjuswwo) Aay ON ON SOA
¢, Seale UoIJeAIasuo9 s,ybnolog ayj 10} ajerdosdde siyy s| "L

"pasn aq ||IM SPN}s |98)s SSOjuUIe)S JO SSeiq 1o / ajiyoad ajipoe) e spiroid o} punosb Buiaed auo)sHIoA
| gejs 8y} ojul }ses ajyoud 1a3si|g B Y)M sqejs 9)31ouod ‘bBuiaed ajnjoe) Aiejuswajdwiod sid9pisuod [12UNOY 8y} §| ‘Aemjoo}
Buipunouins ayj saysjew jey; Buiaed jo asn ay} asodoad app :sealy uoieAIasuo) uj sbuissol) ueLsapad pajjosuooaun

Page 188

"q4ey 8y} JO Saulj 8y} psie[aiun
Ajjesausb noke| aAioeIBUN AJBA SINOJOD “AliBp|e 0} piezey e ale inqg paiiedw Ajjensia djay Aew Asy |

"Seale UOIJBAJaSUOD Ul pasn A|jeiauab
s|eusjew Ajijenb Jeneq Ui seale JaYJo ||e pue Seale UORBAI9SUOD usamiaq Ajljenbs 88s 0} 81| p|noMm |

‘wajqoud
e A||eaJ Jou Inq ‘ssjes yoiym Buiuesw sSa)un }99) S8UO UO pJey g B s1ayio 10j pue ‘1ebusssed sJieyd
[@aum Joj Adwny Jayies sdeylad Juepodul Jsow st Yoiym “suiyy pinoys | ‘pasiedwi Ajiensia 1oy jnydjay Aap

I

[4

8

sjuswwo) Aay

uojuidQ
ON

oN

SOA

2ybnoiog siyj Jo siasn jeans/peoa pasredw Kjijiqow pue AjjensiA ayj buipie ui ajeusdoidde sjeajew asayj jo asn ay} si ‘9l

‘seale UoleAIasuod ul Jdasxe sbuissosd pajjos3uod je Buiaed ajipoe} pas asn ap “sbuissol) uelysapad paj|ouod

"gale ue ypm Jelwesun ajdoad Joy Ajjeroadsa ‘|nydjay Auap

0

0

L

sjusawwon) Aay

uojuido

ON

ON

SOA

ZInjosn spiejap [ed1dAy pue aAljesysnj|l ay) 19pisuod noA oqg ‘GlL

seale uoljeAlasuod Joadsal asesld Jng SOA

0

0l

sjuswwo?) Aay

uouido
ON

ON

SOA

Ziuawaroaduwi jeanoead e aq 0} asn J19y} Japisuod nok oqg ‘v1

191IN|9

jJoal)s asiwiuiw o} se os subis/sajeld saweu mau Joy sainjonlys/sajod Bunsixa Buisn uo paseld aq osje ||im siseydwzy ‘saje|d
plo ay} asejdau Ajjenpesb [im sajeld mau ay] "sajejdaweu joalls mau Buionpodjul aq |jim Aabujiey :ajejdaweu J9ai)s MoN




Page 189

€l

onjA'Go’L L gegd

~19b1e| INQ BBIE 8} JO SWEU 3} aARY 0} [NidjBYy 8q pjnom }|

[4

[4

L

sjuaWIWon Ad3)

uoudo

ON

ON

SOA

s ojenndoidde si jesodoid pue ubisep siy} jey3 saibe nok oq °1Z

‘wNWIUIW e 0} JaRN|o }2aJ)s daay 0} se Aem e yons u] paulejuiew pue pajuswajdul aq [jIM abeubis Jayjo |y ‘ybnoioq ayj ojul
a5uUBIjUd paulaP pue Jea|d e apiroid 0} d|qises) asaym speou Aiepunog uo abeubis Kemayeb |jejsul 0} pasodoud si 3| :abeubig

"paAOWal S| JI dUIS
umop auoB aney 1915 ybiH uojbuisuay| Ul sjuapiooy “ajqesisapun sbujjies psenb Ajiesausb ‘ejqes) iy

sdojs snq Jeau sbBuijies psenb Jo asn sy Jwij ases|d

€

4

9

sjusawwo? As)

uoiuido
ON

ON

SOA

2 oyenndoadde si ubisap siy3 jey; aaibe noA oqQ "02

‘sjuepiooe ueulsapad jo Ki10)siy e usaq sey aiay) aldym pue Jijjels jo
sawinjoA ybBiy s1 a1ay) a1oym sease ul Buijiespienb asn Ajuo o} wie am ‘Ajajes Buisiwoldwod Jnoypm :Buljieipienc) uelsapad

"51n0j02 sy aydsap ‘paliedw Ajjensia 1o} swa|qold Juesaid SSop pJe|joq [[9] 8y} JBASMOH

paliedwi AjjensiA 10} 8|ge)ins Jou swolyd

[4

[4

A

SjuUsWIWOon) Ad)

uoiuido

ON

ON

SOA

;ajeudosdde ase subisap asay) jey} aaibe noA oq "6l

-ybnoiog oy} uiylim pasn spaejjoq jo sadA} ayj asipiepue)s 0} a1Isap e s| a1vyl :splejjog

seniiqesip Yim sjdoad Jo }sa1ajul ayy ul pabusjieyd aq 0} Speau pue Jno payiom A|peq si anssi 8joym ay |

s|eusjew
ales oy} 9SN SEaJE [BUWIOU § SBaJE UOBAISSUOD Usamaq Ajiuuioyiun 8AeY 0} JaJaq 89 )l ,UPINOM

[4

8

sjuawWwWo’) Aay

uoluido
ON

ON

SOA

2ybnolog ayj Joj ajendosdde siy) s| ‘gl

"(z002) ;seoeHNg Bulred 9|13oe] JO 9N dy}
uo asuepIng, — JU3WNI0P | 4@ JUSLIND Y} YUM 3dueplodde ul aq pjnoys Buiaed aj13ae) Jo Jnoke| ay) ‘Buiaed adA} s9)siiq pal
pue gnq asn am Ajuowwod jsow ‘sbuissold pajjosyuosun je Buiaed ajijoe} asn apm :sBuiIss049 ueuysapad pajjosuodun 1BYIO




Page 190

14 Ao’ LL'gead

a|doad payybis Ajjerued 10} papasu si sSUWN|OD ¥Oe|q punole adL)s Moj|oA peolq Y Z Z l
— — o - T ; Tuojudo | ‘
sjuowwo) Aoy ON | ON | SeA

SHAN o.:,._ou, wum_..no._mn_m ] :d_wav sy} jey) @aibe nok oQq "Gz

‘uJBjUR| ZXZ 10 LXZ © 49U310 o [|IM Pasn 9q O} UIdjue| pJepuels ayj Suoljeso) JSow uj :sursjuer

} ) )

uoiuido
sjuswiwo) Aa)| ON ON SOA

L Ha1 2uy 103 ajeradoadde si ubisap siy} Jey} eesbe nok oq ‘vZ

-paJinbai aq |jIm ubisap Buybij }oa.s piepuels o} suoljdaoxa asaym
ybnoloq ay} UIY}IM SUOIIEDO] BWIOS 8q ||IM 313y "ybnoioq 8y jnoyBnoay) pasn aq |jIm Jey) subisep plepuels -‘Bunybij 98NS

spuiod
Buiddojs-saoeds oiignd aiow 8)eald S)9)| ‘9|qesi|epUeA SSI| Buness |ejow JNOAE) ABW SUOI}EO0] BWOS
“ubISep Mau JNOGE 2INs Jou Jng Bap! poob & aIe S)eas Mau ‘suoiuido juasayig I 8 Z
: R uoluido
sjuswwon Loy ON - ON SOA

2ybnoloq ay} 10} ajendoidde ubisep siy} s| "€Z

-pasn aie Buijeas jo sojA}s jJualaylip jo Jequinu e juasaid }y "ybnosog
3y} UIY}Im s19sn Jeas |je Jo sjudwalinbai ay} jJ9awi 0} Juem pue ybnoiog 8y} SsOIOR S}eas Jaquil JO asn Y} JINOA.) S "S}eds

0 € 8

uouido

sjuswwio) A9y} ON | ON SOA

zybnoiog oyj 10} ajerndoadde ae subjsap esay) jeus 2a1be nok oQq “Z¢Z

-sBuip|ing 21iqnd pue suolje;s jlel Se yoIns suoljeulysap Jejndod
19Y}o 0} 8SO[2 puk sa;uad umo) s,ybnoiog ayj 4o jje ul saiijioe] Bunjsed a|2A91q aindas apiAoid 0} Wik I Spuels 912/Ao1g

N0 )l 9AE9| -sajdipund JnoA 0} %NS -19)Njo 8Jow S| )i Alessadauun aynD| 4 *




Page 191

Gl oniAGoLL'ged3

"U0 pajuled PUE] PESY S)IUM B paau },UOM 7 J9o1U 300| SpJe|jog uowwod ajebybiH “Ajisea AJoA
sdiyo pueq pesy a)iym a8y "‘Syjuow maj e Jaye Aje) 00| Aay) R ysiuy Jo adA)} siy} sAeY SpJe|oq dLop 8Y | Z € 9
uoluido
sjuswwo) Aoy ON ON S9A

:yoeoisdde 3921102 ay) siy} S| 62

‘ysiuy yoe|q e uo
puEq a}Iym & ueaw pinom sty “AJ|IGISIA ple 0} ainjiuiny Joa1)S JO SWaY uo 1nojod Bulysesuod e asodoud app “spueg ANIqISIA

*a|qeaonou jou ale g yiomuled paddiys se yons sjnej sji suesw R |qISIA SS3) SI ¥oe|d 0 ¥ /
uoluidQ
sjuUsWIWIoN Aay ON ON S9A

cyoeoudde 1591109 8y} siy} S| '8¢

‘posn si |99)s ssajule}s aloym ‘uondaoxa
ay} Buleq 813us) UMO] U331 POOM SY} Y)IM ‘Seale JSOW ul ainuiny Joaljs 0} Ysiuly 3oe|q e jo asn ay} asodoud app "seysiuly

SIN0j02 18}YbLq ‘SINOJ0D JUBISPIP S)IT (M 8Y1] LUOp S\ € L4 14
uoiuldQ
sjuawwo Aa) ON ON SIA

ZHg1 @23 40} ajendoudde aq o) peajuasaid ainjuinj }aalls Jo abueu ayj Jopisuod noA oQq ‘12

“(yoe]q "9°1) ysiuy ay} ybnouy) paraiyse si Aous)sisuod ‘pajuasaid suondo
ainjiuing j1991)s ay} J04 -ainjiuinj }aau)s Jo abuel Jualsisuod e aAey o} swie AebulieH jo ybnolog uopuo ayj ‘ainjuinj }dais

‘seleeq g sied ‘ssejb Jo sejoeideoas pue BulpAoa1 JapISU0D 0} pasu noA ing

ubisap |enjoe uey) juepoduw!

2ioW aJe asay) a|qelA Ajjeioueul g uealo @ Aldwa 0) Ases os|e ‘pasojous @ paxij Ajuily 81e sulq papino.d L € /
uojuidQ
sjuswwo) Aa) ON ON SOA

A9 ey 1o} syedoadde s; ubisap siy} Jey} aaibe nok oqg "9z

‘uiq abejuaH seduiq ay si ybnoioq ayj Jnoybnouayy panuiuod aq o3
uBisop piepueys ay] "oboj] [Aabuliey Japeg, ay) Aled ||IM suiq ||y "PASOJdUa pue pajunouw 00|} aJe Jeyj sulq INOA.} 3\ "sulg




Page 192

9l oniA'Go’ Ll ¢cegd

“SMojje yoeosdde
ansiiduwis inoA uay) xs|dwod aJow Jey s 100igns ay) 1nq ‘ajdwis JnoAe| sl asn 0} ybnoua poob alom}| I l 6
uouido
sjuswwio) Aay ON ON SaA

2osn 0} Aseo aouepinb adeosjaallg ay} puy nok oQ ‘€€

"seale oy ul sjuswale Ayjenb Jeyaq Ajje1euab oy} asn 0} Jajeq 8q PINOM } JOASMOH
-g|qissod a1aym paoueyus g pajosjold ‘pansasald 8q pinoys @ seele abejay Ino ale seale UOlBAISSUOD l L 6
uouidQ
sjuswiwo) Aa) ON ON SOA

Zyoeoadde 3021109 ay) siy} s] "Z¢
‘[enuew ay) Jo 2g-¢8 sebed uo paynuepi ale seale UoIBAIISUOD asay) 1o} sajdiound
ubisap ay] "ZOVOI1 'Jol- ¥OO1 xipuaddy ui umoys se ‘seale UOIJEAIaSUOD §Z Payljuapl sey HE :sedle UOHBAIaSUOD

"gdueuUSjUIEW
paaU JBASU |[IM |99)S SSB|ule]S By} '@ WIOjUN 80w S400| SPIe|ioq uowwo? ay) ‘deayd »00j spJejjoq duogd I 2 l
uoluido
sjuswwo) Aay| ON ON SOA

yoeoidde 3001100 ay} siy} S| “LE
“Sa1juad UMO} paljijuapl ayj} o yoes 1oy sajdiouiad ubisap ayj auij3no [enuew ayj Jo 78-89 sabed 'LOVIOLl - J91VIOOL
xipuaddy ui AjjesiydelB umoys ale yaiym sasjuad umoj g payiuapi sey Aabuliey jo ybBnoiog uopuo] dYy] :SaJjudd UMO |

Speol ey} buissold suewu}sepad
10} salnoyyp asneo sdwny peol ‘sainsesu Buiweo owely ‘sjdoad 1o} pasu YIm aaibe ybnoy | L L 6
uojuidQ
sjuowiwo) Aay ON ON SOA

¢ yoeoadde 3004109 ay) siy} S| '0€

"j994)s 4no
uo Ajajes Buipie ul asn o} sainseaul Bujwied oyjel} 9 payljuapi aAey sp -BuijoAs pue Bupjjem 10j JUSWUOIIAUL djes e apiaoad
pue sjuapiooe JudAaid ‘oljel} MOJS pjnoys SadYyIs juawebeuew dujel) Jey} aAal|aq dM S9WBYIS juswabeuew olyjel)




Page 193

A

onA'Go’ L eeaa

‘AeBuueH Jo sopis }Som pue jsea au}
anoidwi Ajenba Jnq apIS 1S9M Y} uo snooj Isnf Jou pinoys -apis
}SOM 9} UO pue SeaJe UOHEBAISSUOD UO pasndo) |je apis [eininD

"ale Koy} a1eym mouy 9jdoad 13 0} ) uo uojeuliojul Jo SUoS

||e ®@AeY ued pJeoq 800U 3y | ‘Ajpuauy uewjsepad alop "ybnoioq
ay) 0} paonposul 8q pinoys spJeoq adjou Aunwwo) “ebeubis
Buirosdwi spiemoy arows poob ‘abeubis -gjdoad Bunosuuo)

"2)210U09 Aq paIaAod buiaq si Kieusalb ay] "Aysuq
f1aA Kuo nq [enuew u) Bupueid pue saai) paUORUSN ‘Kiouaalb
sso| pue ss9| -Buidesspuej 10 sabian usalg 0} aouaiajal JO YO

‘Buibeinooua si Siy | 18RI
jeans Buonpai Jnoge sydesbesed aAljsod Jo 10| B aJom a18y |

“]OIJUOD 3y} JO UOHN|OSSI BU} SUIULIBISP BB
Aj|IGeUIRISNS DIWLIOUOJS pUE |BIO0S ‘[EJUSLILIONAUS By} 8INsud

0} POAU OM 910J0IaL} OS PUE JOIU0D ABY) JUSLIOW B} Y "SODIYSA
ajeaud pue podsuel) oignd ‘sisijoAd ‘sueu)sapad Jo sjsalaju|

-adiound Koy & se papnjoul 8q pinoys Buimojjoj 8y 1ey) 8Asijeq SM

‘Ajojes

pasn aq 0} 8|qe aJe 00| $}9aJ}s JNO MOY JO SULIS) Ul SSRIUNWWIOD
puE Sjuepisal [eo0] 0} Ajuepodui }Sow -sensst JO 10| B SISAGO
ajqepeas i )l -juawnoop |njasn AJGA B SBM Jjas)l [enuew 8y |

“sueljsapad 8y} 0} Joeq sjuswianed ay} SAIH

‘Burjjem obeIN0oUS ||IM S1931]S BU JO YOO ||BISAO 8Y} pue SSOBUNS
peos Japeq ‘Buness aiow Bunuawsaldw ‘Alpuauy uewsapad

asow sjeans ay) bujew pue Bunjiem Buibeinoous ul aAoe

-oid 210w 8q PJNOYS |IDUNOY -1I8quIdLW UONEIdoSSe Suelsepad

-poob sem 1 [enuew adeos)ealis Yelp Jsiy e 104

“pasijepueA Ajjuejsuod si bupeag "psjqesip 8y} pue Auapio 8y} Jo}
Ajjeioadsa speou ||e uo Bueas aiow aq pjnoys a8yl ‘yydep alow
ul pauonuaw aq pinoys Buness ‘Buess UO |IEI3P JO 3BT -buyesg

piemioj dajs e sji— [enuew pooo)

alnjuiny
pue yoo] a8y} }snf jou ajdiound A8 e aq 0} SP8aU JuslUUOIIAUT

Aydosonyd e pajealdo aAey noA
19)je popasu SjlIM-81 SAISSE "PIBJONS 0} SSBUSARONIISIP [BI0]
pue AJAIJISUSS aJ0W 10} Spaau )i Inq aoejd jybu ayj ui sl peay sy

sueu)sepad yoeoidde
0} Spaau jenuey "suew}sapad Jou pue sied 1o} dpew aie Speol
1SOW "sybu jenba eAey pjnoys sJasn ||e ‘seoeds |B100S aJe S)edllS

"JaAsjeyMm ‘saljioe)
ainsig| ‘syods ‘Buiddoys Jo4 ‘SINOABSPUS JNOA ul SS899NS
K19A® NOA YSIM | pUB ‘|NJOPUOM S| ESPI SJOYM SIY} Julyj |

-ajdoed Joj sBulpjing ubisap pinoys -ubisap

Ul paJapIsuod aq p|noys ausds}eallg 0} suonebijqo-juswoaned ay)
0} 9s0|o sBuipjing mau jnoqe sjuiod ay) paybiybiy Aeyy jlenuew
141 @y} Ul paonou -juswdojaAsp MaU Ssalppe },usaop |enuen

"3IqISIA SIOW YINLU WY} a4ew pinom aduys Mmojah e

|99)S SS8|ule)s JO doe|q a1e spiejjoq se yons s109(q0 UBaym aAoqe
pauonuaw se ajqissod uaym buipjing Jesu spalfqo buuonsod
pue spiejjoq % sjjod sseoxa Buirowal Aq - JuBWIUOIIAUD
suewjsapad wouy Japnjo aAoWal 0} SEapi Yum pesea|d Ao/

sjuUdWIWIOD) dARESON

SIUBWIWIOD) IARISOd

SjuswuIo) [euoRIppY jo Arewwing




Page 194

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 195 Agenda Iltem 14

MINUTES OF THE PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE
11 OCTOBER 2005

Councillors *Milner (Chair), Adje, *Diakides and *Hillman.

* Members present

MINUTE ACTION
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY
PC40. |APOLOGY FOR ABSENCE

An apology for absence was submitted by Councillor Adje.

PC41.

LEISURE SERVICES INVESTMENT AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR
FITNESS EQUIPMENT (Report of the Director of Environmental Services —
Agenda ltem 3):

We noted that the date shown in paragraph 4.3 of the report on which the
OJEU notice had been posted should read 12 August 2005 and not 15
August. The wording of paragraph 7.2 also needed to be amended by the
inclusion of the maximum value of the lease of £101,000.

The gym equipment comparison and fithess equipment evaluation which
were set out in Appendices to the interleaved report (Agenda Item 5) were
the subject of a motion to exclude the press and public from the meeting as
they contained exempt information relating to terms proposed or to be
proposed to the authority in the course of negotiations for a contract for the
acquisition or disposal of property or the supply of goods and services.

RESOLVED:

1. That, in accordance with Contract Standing Order 11 and
subject to final design and layout following more in depth
discussion with Crispin & Borst (Build contractors), the
contract for the provision of health and fitness equipment
be awarded to Technogym UK Ltd. to the value of
£454,218.

2. That authority to source finalise lease arrangements in
relation to the procurement of the health and fithess
equipment with Technogym UK Ltd. to a value not
exceeding £101,000 per annum over a 5 year operational
lease as detailed in paragraph 6.2 of the interleaved report
be delegated to the Director of Environmental Services.

D.Env

D.Env

RICHARD MILNER
Chair




Page 196

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 197

MINUTES OF THE TRANSFORMING TOTTENHAM ADVISORY COMMITTEE
13 OCTOBER 2005

Councillors Lister (Chair), *Diakides, Dillon, Dodds, *Khan, *Peacock, *Reith (In the
Chair), Reynolds, *Robertson, *Stanton and Sulaiman

* Members present.

Also present: Councillors

MINUTE ACTION
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY
TTAC20. APOLOGIES

Apologise for absence were received from Councillors Dodds and Lister. [HMS
TTAC21. | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Stanton declared that he was the partner of Zena Brabazon. HMS
TTAC22. MINUTES

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 19 September 2005 be confirmed HMS

and signed.
TTAC22. LOCAL ENTERPRISE GROWTH INITIATIVE AND LDA OPPORTUNITIESACE

FUND (Report of the Assistant Chief Executive - Strategy - Agenda Item 6)

We received the report of the Assistant Chief Executive — Strategy which
acquainted us of the Government’s new funding streams to encourage
enterprise in deprived areas and outlined the Council’s plans in developing
proposal. However no relevant officer was in attendance to present the
report and we instructed that our concern be conveyed to the Chief
Executive — Strategy over this situation.

We noted that the LEGI is the Government’s new initiative aimed at
developing proposals to boost incomes and employment in the most
deprived areas of the UK through enterprise and investment. We noted
also that it is expected that 10 LEGI’s were expected to be awarded in the
first tranche of bidding and a further 20 in the following tranches and that
accordingly that only 2 out of 11 eligible London boroughs would be
successful in the first round.

We also noted that £100k had been made available to develop a proposal
in partnership with key local stakeholders in order to determine local
priorities and how to tackle them and a consultation exercise is currently
taking place. It was also noted that the Council was working with LDA’s to
ensure a proper fit of local proposals within the wider regional economic
strategies which identify long term proposals for enterprise in deprived

Strategy

areas. These proposals had to be developed with the aim of helping




Page 198

MINUTES OF THE TRANSFORMING TOTTENHAM ADVISORY COMMITTEE
13 OCTOBER 2005

people and businesses from deprived areas and the deadline for
submission of the proposals was 9 December 2005.

Finally we noted that the LDA had announced a £38m pot of funds for
London called the Opportunity Fund and that outline proposals were
required to be submitted by 21 October 2005.

In considering this report we had regard to the Borough wide consultation
that was taking place with stakeholders, businesses, business support
agencies, the community and voluntary section with a view to
demonstrating that the Council’s bid had been developed in accordance
with HM Treasury requirements.

RESOLVED:

1. That the Advisory Committee note the LEGI as a new government
initiative aiming to boost incomes and employment opportunities in the
most deprived areas of the UK through enterprise and investment.

2. That the Advisory Committee endorses the necessary plans to develop
a proposal to be submitted to support this initiative.

TTAC23.

ODPM GROWTH AREA FUND, ROUND 2, INVITATION BY THE ODPM
TO SUBMIT FULLY WORKED UP BIDS (Report of the Director of
Environmental Services - Agenda ltem 7): The observations of the director
of Finance were tabled at the meeting.

We noted that the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister and the Government
Office for London had invited the Council to submit “Expressions of Interest”
for Growth Area Funds. We noted that the Council had submitted 7
Expressions of Interest and that in addition 6 other submissions had been
made by our partners/other organisations within Haringey. Furthermore it
was noted that following discussions between ODPM and GolL, 5 of the
Council’s proposals were invited to submit fully worked up bids together with
3 from the other organisations.

Concern was expressed in respect of issues at Markfield Park especially,
having regard to possible flooding and whether the views of the Environment
Agency had been obtained, the need for infilling and the surfaces that are to
be laid. We also accepted the need to enter into public consultation once the
funding package had been agreed.

The Director of Environmental Services reminded Members that a Flood
Strategy Report had been commissioned for consideration by Council. The
report will form the basis of work by the flood management scrutiny review,
panel associated with the Markfield bid. She also undertook to put in place a
briefing session to acquaint Members more fully on the projects.

Councillor Stanton expressed his disagreement at the arrangements for
funding for the GLS site at Tottenham Hale International and asked for
further details in respect of the of the cost of dealing with the tunnels.

Councillor Reith reminded Members of the work being done by Claris on the
allocation of funding and other aspects of the scheme including the tunnels
and on the further study being undertaken by Mssrs Arup which was still

Dir E.S.

awaited.




MINUTES

Page 199
OF THE TRANSFORMING TOTTENHAM ADVISORY COMMITTEE

13 OCTOBER 2005

Finally we noted that the current stage of full capital bids involved a rigorous
assessment of how realistic and viable the proposals would be by means of a
Treasury “Green Book” appraisal. To undertake this assessment would
involve the Council in an expected expenditure of £80k which would not be
refundable if the bid was not successful. The Council’'s 5 “expressions of
interest” were costed and referred to within the report and the Council would
be required to prioritise its projects as only £9.2m is available against these
projects of which £1m has been ring-fenced to one project.

RESOLVED:
1. That the contents of the report be noted.

2. That the prioritisation of the bids, as reported, be confirmed but in the
event that Haringey Heartlands (Eastern Utility Lands) Acquisition of
SRA/Rail Property bid fails it be replaced by the Haringey Heartlands
(Eastern Utility Lands) Business Relocation Project.

3. That the revenue cost implication to the Council of submitting the bids be
noted.

4. That the submissions for funding be further refined and presented to
Members.

The meeting concluded at 8.30 p.m and was followed by two briefings
for members on
1.Tottenham Hale Gyratory Scheme by Transport for London; and

2. GLS Supplies Depot at Tottenham Hale by Architects for the former,
owner of the Depot

HARRY LISTER

Chair




Page 200

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 201

MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN’S SERVICE ADVISORY COMMITTEE
17 OCTOBER 2005

Councillors *Meehan (Chair), Adje, *Adamou, *Hoban, Bax, *Jean Brown, *Santry,
Stanton, *Engert and *Harris.

* Members present

MINUTE SUBJECT/DECISION ACTION
NO. BY
CSAC18. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

None Received HMS
CSAC19. MINUTES (Agenda ltem)

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 5 September 2005 be confirmed HMS

and signed.

CSAC20.

JULY/AUGUST PERFORMANCE DATA FOR CHILDREN’S SERVICES
(Agenda ltem 6 ):

We received the performance report for July and August, which contained
key performance data relating to children looked after, child protection,
referrals and assessments, family support and staffing for members of the
committee to consider. The data was compared to key performance
indicators, which the Council was obliged to meet and contained the
statutory requirements and local time scales for meeting these targets.

We were informed that there had been 255 referrals received in the month
of July and 233 in August. The performance for completion of initial
assessments stood at 31.7% against a target of 56%. The committee
conveyed its concern at the speed of which assessments were being
completed. They were informed by officers that this issue was a priority
and that they would be implementing measures to improve performance in
this area. Officers further explained that social workers were diligently
ensuring that the quality of initial assessments were of a high standard.
We were advised that Haringey completed a greater number of initial
assessments than other London boroughs. Officers advised that they
would complete research to find out why this was the case and would
report their findings in the performance report at a future meeting.

In July 50% of core assessments were completed within timescales and
19% in August. Committee members were assured by officers that core
assessments were being completed and there was not a backlog of cases.
We were further informed that a new management information database
was being implemented which would allow social workers to keep an
electronic social care record. All local authorities were required to
implement an electronic system for recording cases. Staff were being
trained on the new e- care system and this had led to a delay in the speed
of recording cases. This had now been rectified and all outstanding case




Page 202

MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN’S SERVICE ADVISORY COMMITTEE
17 OCTOBER 2005

closures had been recorded on the system.

Committee members reinforced the need to improve performance on
initial and core assessments. Officers responded and gave account of an
action plan devised for improving the performance of initial assessments.

There were 494 looked after children in July, of this figure there were 109
unaccompanied minors. In August this figure had increased to 499 out of
which 104 were unaccompanied minors. Committee members enquired
about the number of unaccompanied minors and if the number were
increasing. Officers informed the committee that the number of
unaccompanied children remained steady. There were children who were
reaching the age of which they were leaving care. We noted that there
was still a shortfall in funding for unaccompanied minors and
representations were continually being made to government on this issue.

We received information on the number of family support cases without
an allocated social worker. We were advised that all the family support
cases received a range of services and assistance. We asked that in
future the report include information on the services provided to each
family support case to make clear they were being assisted.

We were pleased to note good performance in placing children looked
after in foster care and adoption placements. We noted that performance
for placing children under 10 for adoption or foster care was 93.4%in July
and 97.2% in August.

We noted that since data had been gathered for this report all looked after
children had an allocated social worker.

Children on the child protection register were continuing to be reviewed
within timescales and 91.5% of children on the register had been visited in
August. We further noted that there were no children from the child
protection register were reported missing from home at the end of August.

We noted the staffing positions at both Hornsey and Tottenham District
offices. We were further informed that interviews for filling vacant team
manager posts had been successfully completed and all positions filled.

RESOLVED:
1. That we note the report.
2. That the proceeding month’s performance report include a  |[CH/DH
breakdown of services being provided to family support

cases.

3. That we receive a report explaining the training provided to  |[DH/CH
staff on the new e-care system.

4. That we receive an update report on the new electronic CH/DH
process for reviewing the performance of initial and core
assessments and analyse the outcomes of the new process.




Page 203

MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN’S SERVICE ADVISORY COMMITTEE
17 OCTOBER 2005

5. That a report be provided to the committee in January
detailing out comes of the implemented new strategy.

6. That the report back on staffing include details of the long
term employment of agency staff.

CH/DH

CH/DH

CSAC21.

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR SCHOOLS ON EXCLUSIONS &
ALTERNATIVE PROVISION
(Agenda ltem 7):

The report gave account of proposals for the development of provision to
young people who had been excluded from school and/or were hard to
place and sought the views of the committee. The documented proposals
formed an important part of the Haringey Secondary Strategy and Building
Schools for the Future Programme.

We noted that the main part of proposals were based on devolving
resources to schools and commissioning schools to make provisions
enabling, the majority of children and young people to be retained in a
school setting. To help achieve this, it was proposed that Children
Services retained the resources that would ensure that children and young
people were able to access specific support for their needs.

RESOLVED:

That we note the report.

CSAC22.

ADOPTION SERVICE UPDATE REPORT: APRIL — SEPTEMBER 2005
(Agenda ltem 8):

The purpose of the report was to update the committee on the progress of
permanency planning in the adoption service. The report focussed on the
progress being made on granting of adoption orders and contained end of
year projections.

We noted the information provided on all children currently in the adoption
process, this included reasons for understanding the delays i.e. with
placing children with suitable families and received an update on each
adoption order currently in progress. We were also related the factors
which were considered when making a decisions on adoption. We noted
that 4 new adopters had been approved between April 2005 and
September 2005 and that there would the recruitment strategy for this
financial year would include trying to recruit more adopters from, African
Caribbean, Central African and Turkish communities which there was a
need for.

RESOLVED:

That we note the report.

CSAC23.

EDUCATIONAL ACHIEVEMENT OF LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN
(Agenda ltem 9):




Page 204

MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN’S SERVICE ADVISORY COMMITTEE
17 OCTOBER 2005

The purpose of the report was to update the Committee on the
educational achievement of looked after children in the borough and
inform members of the continuing work to enable looked after children to
achieve their educational potential which would in turn improve their life
chances. It was recognised that there were a number of reasons for
looked after children not attaining the same educational achievements as
their peers at key stages and in their GCSE’s. It was also recognised that
although the educational achievement of LAC in Haringey is at or above
the national average, there was still a great need to target reducing the
gap between looked after children and their peers. The main areas which
had been previously identified by members as affecting attainment
included:

Lack of stability

Missed schooling

Lack of support with their education when faced with difficulties
Lack of help for carers of LAC to support a learning environment
The need to improve help for children in care with their emotional ,
mental and physical health

These issues were being addressed by the Children’s service and its
partners and we were presented with information on the strategies and
resources which would be undertaken to improve support to looked after
children and young people.

There were in total 297 Looked after children in school and 61 in
alternative provision. Were provided with information on the number of
initiatives taken to support their educational attainment and these
included:

e The Director of Children’s services communicating with Schools
which had looked after children as pupils to communicate the
importance of raising attainment of looked after children

e Additional tuition for 43 looked after children
e Additional teaching assistant support
e Funding to support preparation of KS2 SATs

e LAC children in years 7, 8, 9 had 10 had been visited by a teacher

¢ Homework club established for looked after children in Yrs 10 and
11

e Social Inclusion Panel ensures that any looked after children
without educational provision is given priory for a school place

e 142 computers allocated to individual looked after children
e Training sessions for carers for supporting children through the
primary and secondary school process

We noted the significant improvements that had taken place and agreed
the importance of continuing to support the educational achievements of
looked after children. We asked to receive a further report once the 2005
comparative data was received and that information on educational




Page 205

MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN’S SERVICE ADVISORY COMMITTEE
17 OCTOBER 2005

attainment include A-level and degree achievements of looked after
children.

RESOLVED:
1. That we note the report.
2. That we receive a further report with 2005 comparatives

and information on A-level and degree attainments
among looked after children.

CSAC24.

PROVISIONAL ATTAINMENT DATA FOR KEY STAGES 1-4, GCE A
LEVEL AND ATTENDANCE INCLUDING CHILDREN LOOKED AFTER
BY THE COUNCIL (Agenda ltem 10)

We were presented with the provisional results for key stages 1, 2, 3,
GCSE’s and A-levels. These results were provisional and were provided to
the committee to provide an understanding of steady improvements made
in these areas over the last 5 years. A more detailed report was due to be
presented to the Executive in November.

RESOLVED:

That we note the report.

CSAC25

MISSING FROM CARE, MISSING FROM HOME, - JOINT PROTOCOL&
PRACTICE (Agenda item 11)

Members of the committee were issued with the joint protocol and practice
guidance for dealing with children missing from care or home.

The guidance and protocols had been created to ensure that there was an
effective response across agencies when a child or young person goes
missing or returns. The guidance had been agreed by the Haringey Area
Child Protection Committee and been compiled in consultation with:

Haringey Social Services

Haringey Police Missing Persons unit
Haringey Education service

Haringey Teaching Primary care trust
Haringey Children’s right service

The booklet provided committee members with an understanding of what
would practically be done when a child is missing and detailed the
responsibilities of the Police, agencies, officers and senior managers.

RESOLVED:

That we note that the guidance has been received by members
of the committee.

CSAC26.

ORAL UPDATE ON CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE PLAN




Page 206

MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN’S SERVICE ADVISORY COMMITTEE
17 OCTOBER 2005

The Deputy Director advised the committee that the Children’s service
was currently information gathering to start developing the Children and
young people’s plan. The committee was asked to put forward their views
on what the priorities should be included in the plan and were asked to
forward these to the deputy director, David Holmes within the next 2
weeks.

RESOLVED:

1. That officers note the need to address health issues of young
people as part of the plan.

2. That members of the committee contact the Deputy Director,
within the next 2 weeks with their suggestions of priorities for the
Children and Young People’s plan.

DH

GEORGE MEEHAN

Chair




Page 207

MINUTES OF THE BSF STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT BOARD
19 OCTOBER 2005

Councillors: *Meehan, Dillon, Santry, Harris.
*Present

Chairs of Governing Bodies, Head Teachers of all BSF Secondary Schools, Blanche
Neville and Vale Special Schools, and Pupil Support Centre: Arthur Philips, Tony Burton,
Tony Hartney, Denise Tunstall, Neil McAllister, Peter Walker, Sue Panter, John Abraham,
Clive Menzies, Margaret Sumner, Mike McKeaveney, Keith Davidson, Edgar Neufeld and
Mark Rowland

Learning & Skills Council: Victor Candlish.

Diocesan / Church Representatives: -

Place representatives: R Wilkins, A Andersson & Rob Carter.

Officers: Sharon Shoesmith, Jon Hiscock, Chris Parr, Rob Graham, David Williamson,
Janette Karklins and Ann Crago

Also present: John McCormack, Paul Guenault, A Sutcliffe, Barbara Simon, Mark Rowland,
Jon Sinclair & Steve Moss.

MINUTE SUBJECT/DECISION ACTION
NO. BY

BSF21. |APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Dillon,
Santry and Harris and also Mrs Berkery-Smith, Judy Downey, Colin Hickey
& Pauline Ashbee.

BSF22. |MINUTES (Agenda Item 4)
RESOLVED:
1. That the minutes of the Building Schools for the Future (BSF)  |HMS

Strategic Management Board held on 21 September 2005 be
approved and signed

BSF23. |UPDATE ON BSF - FEEDBACK ON INTERVIW VISION (Agenda ltem 6):

We received the report the Director of the Children's Service, informing us
that the Department for Education and Skills had thanked the Council for
the discussions that had been held in respect of building schools for the
future.

The Department had been interested at the work being undertaken by the
Council on the following:

Involving young people

Extended schools and family learning within schools

Developing 14 — 19 curriculum flexibility and vocational pathways, and
The cross borough working on School Improvement partners (SIPs).
Ms Shoesmith also advised us that the Department for Education and




Page 208

MINUTES OF THE BSF STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT BOARD
19 OCTOBER 2005

Skills had formally approved Haringey’s Vision Document in support of the
BSF project and commended the Council on the robustness and ambition
of the Vision Document. Finally we were advised that comprehensive
discussions would take place on the funding requirements and
implications and that the publication “Bright Futures” would be finalised
and circulated as soon as possible.

DCS

BSF24.

UPDATE ON FUNDING (Agenda Item 7 and 8):

We received the report of the Director of Children’s Services on the
Haringey BSF — Funding and Phasing Programme on the informal
approval of the PFS to a total funding package of £155m of which £5m is
to be allocated for SEN. We noted that this allocation represented an
increase of £30m and noted the following SBC/OBC to be progressed on
these figures The details reported set out the proposed funding per school
together with other ring — fenced items (new school, ICT etc); and

Schools in the east of the Borough to have works for commencement in
the first phase.

We noted the schedule attached to the report which set out the proposed
spend per school and recognised the inability of some schools to meet
their expectations from the proposed allocations reported and there
followed a discussions on whether any shortfalls could be funded by
alternative means. The Chair of Fortismere recorded his disappointment at
the funding allocation in respect of this School.

We received the advice of the Chair, Councillor Meehan, that he would
write to the Minister seeking a meeting to impress on her the need to
increase the overall allocation.

RESOLVED:
1. That we note contents of the presentation.
2. That an assessment be carried out to mitigate the risk of the

new Sixth Form Centre not opening within the expected
timescale.

BSF25.

THE NEW HARINGEY SIXTH FORM CENTRE — BRAND AND LOGOS
(Agenda ltem 9):

We received the report of the Director of Children’s Services and the
comments of Anna Crago who had engaged the services of agencies
which specialised in marketing for younger people. We noted that the
initial proposals were still being worked on but that the fundamental
approach to the brands and logos had been identified.

We noted the further comments of Sharon Shoesmith that the preliminary
designs and concepts would be reported in the first instance to the Youth
focus Group before being considered by the temporary governing body.
Finally we discussed the importance of creating the appropriate visual
identity especially having regard to the ongoing work being undertaken to
form a Federation.

RESOLVED:

That the progress report be noted and the original design concept and




Page 209

MINUTES OF THE BSF STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT BOARD
19 OCTOBER 2005

brief be passed to the Chair, Councillor George Meehan.

HCS

BSF26.

PROGRESS ON ICT (Agenda ltem 10):

We received the report of the Officers on the consultative process that had
been followed in the preparation of the draft ICT Document and that
following discussions with the major stakeholders the evaluation process
had been completed.

We were assured that the preliminary works had been totally transparent
and that a further updated report would be submitted to Members. Finally
we noted that issues concerning local choice and continually evolving
study and students report writing procedures were structural matters and
were continually being looked at.

BSF27.

PRESENTATIONS FROM 4PS ON GATEWAY REVIEW (Agenda ltem
11):

We received a presentation from representatives of 4PS Gateway Review|
which set out the directions to secure best practice advice and support from a
wide range of organisations undertaking similar projects within local
government. We were advised that over 150 reviews had been undertaken
by 4PS and that the exercises had proved beneficial to those projects
reviewed as well as to those who take part as reviewers. Finally we were
advised of the methodology that would be followed, the need to identify
specific issues affecting the Council and the role of the commissioners in the
procedure.

CLLR GEORGE MEEHAN

Chair




Page 210

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 211

Minutes of the REJCC
20 October 2005

Councillors *Adje(Chair), Bloch, Bull, Canver,*Diakides, Featherstone,*Hillman, Lister, Meehan,
Milner, Reith, *Santry and Williams.

*Members present.

*Mr. Moses Igbasi [VICE CHAIR OF REJCC]

*Mr. Chidi Odili Mrs. Ngozi Chiegina [African Community]

*Ms Martha Osamor

Mr. George Martin *Mrs Beverley D. Willis [African Caribbean Community]
Mr. Pat Tonge *Mrs Lena Hartley

*Mrs Indu Shukla *Mr M.A Moosa [Asian Community]

Mr. D.N. Halder *Mrs. Pushpa Rayvadera

Ms Flora Man Ms Dorothy To [Chinese Community]

Mr. Abe Tse Mr. Peter Chan

Chris Stylianou Susi Contantenides [Greek Cypriot Community]
*Tony Brennan Larry O’'Mahoney [Irish Community]

Carmel Naessens

Shmiel Davidsohn Irene Mansfield [Orthodox Jewish Community]
Irene Mansfield Delia Goldring [Non-Orthodox Jewish Community]
Mr. Erdal Askin Mr. Niyazi Eren [Kurdish Community]

Ms Peray Ahmet *Mr. Ertanch Hidayettin ~ [Turkish Cypriot Community]



Page 212
Minutes of the REJCC

20 October 2005
Mohammed Maigag [Haringey Refugee Forum]
Mr. Fred Ellis *Ms Liz Singleton [Haringey Race Equality Council]

REJCC1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE:

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Bull, Canver, Featherstone, Meehan,
Milner, Reith and Wynne.
Councillor Haley was present as a substitute for Councillor Dodds.

REJCC2. MINUTES:
RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 4 April 2005 be confirmed and signed.

REJCC3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST — No declarations of interest were made.

REJCC4 HOSING AND DVIVERSITY IN HARINGEY: FEEDBACK FROM JULY 2005
HOUSING R.E.J.C.C. CONSULTATION (Report of the Executive Member for Housing —
Agenda ltem 7)

Councillor Diakides, as the Executive Member for Housing, introduced this report and reminded
the Joint Consultative Committee that the Council continued to be totally committed to
meaningful consultation with all the residents within the Borough having regard to rich and
diverse make up of the population and on the programme of consultations which had taken
place.

We noted the contents of the report and specially had regard to the need for affordable housing
which greatly exceeded current demand. We were also reminded that over 5000 households
were living in temporary accommodation and that significant investment was needed to bring
the Council’s housing stock up to “decent homes standards”. Finally we noted the need to
improve conditions in the private rented sector and to make private renting and home ownership
a viable option for local people.

Members raised concerns certain sections of the community had not been part of the
consultation procedure and Councillor Diakides gave an assurance that such groups would be
identified and further briefings would be held.

In considering the report we had particular regard to a range of key strategic developments
around Haringey which included:

e Arms Length Management Organisation (ALMO),

e Homelessness Improvement Project; and

e Private Sector Housing.



Page 213

Minutes of the REJCC
20 October 2005

We noted that these initiatives would form the basis of wide consultation and that in the event of
translators being needed the Chair, Councillor Charles Adje, gave an assurance that the
Council would provide the necessary resources to provide a translation service. The Chair also
expressed the view that we needed more input from consultation with the community and urged
the closer working together of the various representatives making up the REJCC.

RESOLVED:

That we note the report.

REJCC5 IMPLEMENTING RECOMMENDATIONS FROM R.E.J.C.C. COMMUNITY
COHESION CONFERENCE (Report of the Head of Equalities and Diversity — Agenda Item 8)

We received and noted the reports from Children’s Service and Equalities and Diversity Unit
respectively, on their responses to recommendations from the REJCC Community Cohesion
Conference held in March 2005.

We particularly noted the work and range of activities that Children’s Service and schools have
been undertaking to tackle inequality in educational outcomes, and promote interaction and
social cohesion across the diverse communities of Haringey. We noted the comments of the
Director of Children’s Services on initiatives adopted to raise the achievements of certain ethnic
minorities and that a report was about to be submitted to the Executive in November. Ms
Shoesmith also reminded Members of the Parent Involvement Week and that her department
had produced a “good practice” DVD. We also noted the work that the Equalities & Diversity
Unit has been doing in terms of events that bring people together and seek to break down
barriers that prevent cross community interaction. We also noted that the a first step has been
taken to include over time, a range of Community Cohesion indicators that will enable the
Council measure its performance on Community Cohesion. We noted too that Tottenham, along
with the Moss Side district of Manchester were the subject of a Joseph Rowntree national
research pilot on Community Cohesion, the report of which is expected in April 2006. We noted
too that the REJCC would be building on the outcome of its Community Cohesion conference,
and would be undertaking further work in 2006 on this important agenda.

The Vice Chair expressed his view that the work of the REJCC should have a greater
inclusiness of communities within the boundaries of the London Borough of Haringey. He urged
that the review should consider how wider representation could be achieved. We noted the
assurances of the Chair on the efforts being undertaken by the Council to redress this balance
in the representation and also accepted his view that the council was not able to achieve
everything without a positive contribution from the whole of Haringey’s communities.

The Chair, Councillor Adje, re-affirmed the Council’'s commitment to work continually for an

even closed community and urged representatives to meet and discuss these issues with Inno
Amadi.

RESOLVED:

That the position be noted and that further reports be submitted as appropriate.



Page 214

Minutes of the REJCC
20 October 2005

REJCC6 IMPROVING THE R.E.J.C.C. (The leader and chair's Special Information Item —
Agenda ltem 9)

The Chair reported his thoughts on re-energising the REJCC through measures to:
1. Updating the REJCC in line with current practice in local government,
2. Promoting even greater inclusiveness in REJCC membership,
3. Enabling the REJCC to embrace other equality standards; and
4. Improving the effectiveness of the REJCC.

The Chair set out the scope for the review and the timetable for the undertaking and completion
of the various components of his review strategy.

We noted the Chair's comments on the need for wide consultation, wider participation in the
work of the REJCC, the recognition that the Council was not fully achieving its consultation
objectives and the possible need to provide additional funding to the work of the REJCC.

RESOLVED:

1. That we thank the Chair for his report and that it be accepted in principle
as the way forward subject to the timescales set out within the report
being extended by one month.

REJCC7 UPDATE FROM THE CHAIR ON THE ASIAN EARTHQUAKE

The Chair reported that he, as Leader of the Council, had sent letters of Condolences to the
High Commissioners of India and Pakistan on behalf of the Council and Community of
Haringey. The Chair reported also that he had arranged for a public statement to be put on the
Council’'s web page. In respect of fund raising he expressed the view that this was best left to
those agencies who have a wide experience in dealing with global tragedies and said he was
confident that communities and individuals would do all that is possible to give support to those
people so grievously affected by the earthquake.

Time concluded: 9.00p.m.

Clir Charles Adje
Chair



Page 215

MINUTES OF THE PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE
25 OCTOBER 2005

Councillors *Milner (Chair), Adje, *Diakides and *Hillman.

* Members present

MINUTE ACTION
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY
PC42. | APOLOGY FOR ABSENCE

An apology for absence was submitted by Councillor Adje. An apology for
lateness was submitted by Councillor Milner. In the absence of Councillor
Milner, Councillor Hillman took the Chair.

PC43.

MINUTES
RESOLVED:

That, subject to the deletion of Councillor Adje from the list of
Members who had been present on 20 September, the minutes of
the meetings held on 20 September and 11 October 2005 be
approved and signed.

HMS

PC44.

THE MERGER OF PATCHWORK HOUSING ASOCIATION WITH
COMMUNITY HOUSING ASSOCIATION AND TRANSFER OF
CONTRACTS AND UNDERTAKINGS (Report of the Director of Housing
Services — Agenda ltem 6):

We noted that Patchwork Housing Association had been placed under
supervision by the Housing Corporation due to concerns about its
governance and viability but that with the support and assistance of the
Housing Corporation Patchwork had entered into merger negotiations with
Community Housing Association. We also noted that the merger
negotiations were near completion and both Associations were now in the
process of transferring Patchwork’s management and undertakings to
Community Housing Association.

We were informed that Patchwork had two interim Supporting People
contracts with the Council which we had approved in June 2003 as part of
all Supporting People interim contracts. These approvals had been granted
in accordance with the Government’s statutory grant conditions and
guidance covering the set up of Supporting People interim contracts.

At this point Councillor Milner arrived and took the Chair.

Details of the contracts which were set out in the Appendix to the
interleaved report were the subject of a motion to exclude the press and
public from the meeting as they contained exempt information relating to
terms proposed or to be proposed to the authority in the course of
negotiations for a contract for the acquisition or disposal of property or the
supply of goods and services.




Page 216

MINUTES OF THE PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE
25 OCTOBER 2005

RESOLVED:

That, in accordance with Contract Standing Order 14, approval be
granted to the transfer of the contract for Supporting People
services from Patchwork Housing Association to Community
Housing Association.

DH

RICHARD MILNER
Chair




Page 217 Agenda ltem 15

Agenda ltem

The Executive On 22 November 2005

Report title: URGENT ACTIONS TAKEN IN CONSULTATION WITH EXECUTIVE
MEMBERS

Report of: The Chief Executive

1. Purpose
To inform the Executive of urgent actions taken by Directors in consultation with Executive
Members.

The report details urgent actions taken by Directors in consultation with Executive
Members since last reported. Item numbers 16 - 17 (2005-6) have not previously been
reported.

2. Recommendations

That the report be noted.

Report authorised by: Max Caller, Interim Chief Executive

Contact officer: Richard Burbidge

Telephone: 020 8489 2923




Page 218

4. Access to information:
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

4.1  Background Papers
The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report;

Executive Member Consultation Forms
Those marked with ¢ contain exempt information and are not available for public
inspection.

The background papers are located at Civic Centre, N22.

To inspect them or to discuss this report further, please contact Richard Burbidge
on 020 8489 2923.




1. DIRECTOR’S ACTION - 2005-06

Exempt forms are denoted by ¢

No Directorate Date Date approved Date Title Decision
received in by Director approved by
EMO Executive
Member/
Leader
16. | Chief 25.10.05 | J.Suddaby C.Adje Bernie Grant Centre | Approval to the appointment of the Interim Chief Executive to fill a
Executives 12.10.05 Nomination to the vacant position on the Board of this charitable company.
Board
17. | Housing 03.11.05 | S.Clarke N.Canver Purchase of CCTV Approval to the waiver of Contract Standing Order (CSO) 6.4
03.11.05 03.11.05 Equipment to tackle | (Requirement to Tender) as allowed by CSO 7.2 ¢ in connection
Anti Social with the purchase of CCTV equipment to tackle anti-social
Behaviour — behaviour.
Request for a
waiver of
requirement to
tender

612 obed



1. DIRECTOR’S ACTION - 2005-06

Exempt forms are denoted by ¢

No Directorate

Date Date approved Date Title Decision
received in by Director approved by
EMO Executive

Member/

Leader

02c obed



